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') OJ OVERSIGHT INTO THE ADMINISTRATION OF 

STATE AND LOCAL COURT ADJUDICATION OF 
DRIVING WHILE INTOXICATED 

FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 1981 

U.S. SENA'l'E, 
SUBCOMMITTEE ON COURTS, 
COMMITTEE ON THE JUDICIARY, 

Washington, D.C. 
The subcommittee met, pursuant to n~tice, at 9:45 a.m., in room 

2228, Dirksen Senate Office Building, Senator Robert Dole (chair
man of the subcommittee) presiding. 

Present: Senator Heflin .. 
Also present: Senators Boschwitz and Pell and Representative 

Barnes. 
Staff present: Richard W. Velde, chief counsel; Kevin Manson, 

counsel; Douglas Comer, counsel; and Linda White, chief clerk. 

OPENING STATEMENT OF CHAIRMAN ROBERT DOLE 

Senator DOLE. Let me say at the outset that we are pleased that 
so many outstanding witnesses have been able to appear this morn
ing. 

I would also indicate that, as often happens in the S~nate, the 
best laid plans sometimes go awry. I have to run down' to the 
White House after a while to have the President tell us about the 
budget. Hopefully Senator Heflin will be here at that time. If not, 
we will just have to recess the hearings during the time I am gone. 

We are looking for other Senators to chair this session; it is a 
very important session. There are a number of hearings going on. 
Hopefully we will not delay the witnesses. I would like to be pres:
ent for most of the testimony myself, so !we will do the best we can 
to accommodate the witnesses, particularly those who have come 
long distances, and we are going to start promptly. 

I have an opening statement which I will summarize. While we 
are waiting for Senator Pell and Congressman Barnes, Senator 
Boschwitz will make a brief statement and then Senator Pell~ Con
gressman Barnes, and Diane .Steed, the Deputy Administ:r;ator of 
the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration~ U.R Depart-
ment of Transportation. . . , 

The Subcommittee on Courts of the Judiciary Committee con
venes today for the purpose· of receiving testimony on the problem 
of drunk driving. In one sense, ou"'ihearing is the result of the cer
tainty that 1 year from today's date there will be 26,000 Americans 
dead as a result of the deadly combination of an automobile and 
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alcohol. The very fact that we have somehow learned to live with 
this carnage is testimony to our failure to recognize the profound 
damage that the problem drinker has done to our Nation's social 
fabric. 

Our hearings today have a broad focus. We seek to develop an 
overview of the scope of the problem from a quantitative and quali
tative perspective. 

We will hear testimony from a representative of the National 
Highway Traffic Safety Administration, who will detail the results 
of nearly a decade of study of the problem and experimentation 
with various alternative law enforcement and treatment programs. 

We will hear testimony from representatives of citizen action 
groups who will give the benefit of their experience in seeking to 
focus attention at the State and national level on the drinking 
driver and who will discuss legislative initiatives which have re
sulted from those efforts. 

Some of our witnesses are the victims, the faces behind the num
bers reported in the yearly fatality statistics. Representatives of 
the medical and statistics fields who have performed the grim task 
of visiting accident sites and treating victims and whose work has 
resulted in compilation of the hard data which document the prob
lem, will summarize their findings; and law enforcement officials 
who have the responsibility for holding the drunk driver in check 
will detail their successes, failures, and, obviously, frustrations in 
protecting the public from this menace. 

Weare also fortunate today to have testifying Senator Claiborne 
Pell of Rhode Island and. Congressman Michael Barnes of Mary
land, both of whom have been actively involved in focusing atten
tion 011 the problem through continuing legislative efforts. 

Senator Pell has introduced a bill in this session of Congress 
which would mandate the creation by each State of an alcohol 
safety action program and establish mandatory minimum penalties 
designed to remove the drunk driver from the Nation's roads. Sen
ator Pell has a tragic, personal interest in this legislation. Several 
years ago he lost two ve.lued members of his staff to drunk drivers. 

Congressman Barnes has introduced a companion bill in the 
House and has been active in efforts to persuade the President to 
create a special commission to recommend a national strategy to 
attack the problem. 

I would just say that, notwithstanding the interest certainly of 
the public and Members of the Congress, there are certain ques
tions of federalism involved in any effective legislation in this field. 

Our goal, frankly, is to find ways in which the Federal Govern
ment can assume a partnership role with the States in training, 
education, and enforcement. Our specific interest is the response of 
law enforcement and the courts of this Nation to the challenge. 

In that sense, these hearings are exploratory. I would not want 
to leave any impression that somehow, following this hearing, 
there will be. some grand design that will solve this problemJ but 
they are exploratory, and we believe that they can be helpful. We 
want to learn as much as we can from a number of experts in the 
field. 

We believe we understand the scope of the problem, but very 
honestly I must say that the Federal Government has done very 
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little to respond I kn t . 
and what the Federal G~v:'~!~1.1~~~gh~edProblem of States rights 

In anyev7nt, having served as a count o. ros t !'In i;; ~th hfhIng excer~er:ced firsthand ~om~ tr th:c;'~bl:~;Jn ~~~l~ 
these days d~~gV: I h~I:e th~t€Jr the. Influence of alcohol and, in 

:~f focus ~ode bP~blic aftention ~hr:!1 ~h~ ~~ai~b~~ t~:t ~:r:n~ 
~~~e~~ ~;~~~~'!:1~:rf!~e s:~~~~:~t t~o~~a~a~~h\h~i 

I would ask that my t' ~ ~ t 

f:~~r~;d~!e~.her with tha~I~?Se~:t~rH~~i~~ Wi~~~u~ g~:~t~~n~~~ 
[The prepared statements of Senators Dole and Heflin follow:] 

PREPARED STATEMENT OF SENATOR ROBERT DOLE 

The Subcommittee on Courts of th J d" C . 
purp?se ?f receiving testimony on th: p~obl~~:?of dmm~tde. c?nvenes today for the 
hearmg IS the result of the certaintl th t 1 run rlvmg. In one sense, Our 
26,000 Americans dead as a result olthe d~adfear fb~m ;.odays date, there will he 
alco.hol. The very fact that we have somehow r com d~a Il<?n of !in au!omobile and 
testImony to our failure to reco iZA th:> earne 0 lve With thIS carnage is 
has done to .our Nation's social rat,ric:. e profound damage that the problem drinker 

Our hearIngs today have a broad fi W k 
sco~e of the problem from a quantitati~~s~nd e ~ee. t<? develop al~ overvie~ of the 
test~mony from a representative of the N t' q l~~a~ve perspectIve. We will hear 
tratlOn who will detail the results of i lond Jg way Traffic Safety Adminis
exper~entation with various alternath.~aliw ~ £ca e of tstuddY of the problem, and 
We WIll hear testimony fro . n o.rcemen an treatment programs 
the benefit of their ex erien~ i~rresel!-tatIves of CItizen action groupS who will giv~ 
al level on the drinkIng drivel: ~~dking to f?cus.attention. at the State and Nation
have resulted from those effor~ Som Whf WIll ~CU6S legIslative initiatives which 
behind the numbers reported in th e I o£ur 'Y1 nesse.s ::re the victims-the faces 
~edical and statistics fields who h:v~e;~J ata~tlh stab.stIcs. Representatives of the 
SIteS and treating victims anci wh orme e grl~ tasks of visiting accident 
data which documents th~ pr()ble;s~inork has r.esulte~ m c0!Upilation of the hard 
men~ offic!als who have the riBS on~ib '1' ~ummar~e t elr fmdmgs;. and .law enforce
detaIl theIr successes, failurl;!s ~nd f:;tl f~~ hol~mg the d!unk drIver m check will 
menace. s ra Ions In protectmg the public from this 

We are also fortunate today to h th 
Rhode Is.land, and Congressman Mich~~l B~ comTentsMof Senator Claiborne Pell of 
~een actIvely involved in focusin att . arnes rom aryland, both of whom have 
Islative efforts. Senator PeU has 1ntr~~~~d onbt~e.pr~~.lem t~rough continuing leg
woul~. mandate the creation by each State of a 1m h is s~ssIOn of qongress 'Which 
establls~ ~andatory minimum penalties design n da tCO 0 sa etyhactlOn prog:am, and 
the NatIOn s roads. Senator Pell has a tr . e 0 re~ove t e ?runk drIver from 
Several years ago, he lost two valued me a~c, perth~~l I~terest m this ~egisla:tion: 
~essp1an Barnes has introduced a compankmeb~lt th stff to drunk drIvers. Con
m ~frorts to persuade the President to I m. e ou~e, .and has been active 
natIonal strategy to attack the problem create a speCIal commIssIon to recommend a 

Of. Course there are delicate u t' . f fi d . . 
lation in this field. Our ultim~e e:i~nis ~o flneJahsm ~nvolv?d in any effective legis
ment can assume a partnershi role with h sways. m w~I~h the Federal Govern
fo~cement: and Our specific inJrest is the t e tates

f 
In trammg, education, and I:!n

thIS Nation to the challenge. In that sense r~iionsh 0 .aw enforcement·and Courts of 
as much as we can about what has been' dse heat rmgs are exploratory-to learn 
drunk drivers. ,an w a can be, done to cope with the 

Those who have speut their lives st d' th' 
finding a solution must be seized with;: ymg ~s tragedy te~l us that the task of 
efforts must go hand in hand with edu n ~~panf,l'th grasp. StrIcter law enforcement 
problem drinker poses to all of us. I look f~n 0 d t 1hblic on t.he thr~at that the 
that perhaps, at last we can be 'n to a rwar 0 .ese hearltlgs WIth the hope' 
which encourages, rather than d~couragerosutSheethde Akmder~can public from an apathy 

, run rlver. 
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF SENATOR HOWELL HEFLIN 

Mr. Chairman America's number one highway saiety problem is drunk driving. 
According to the' National Highwp..y Traffic Safety Administration, one out of ~very 
100 infants born this year can expect to die in an alcohol related traffic accIdent. 

Of all fatal highway accidents which number consistently b~tween 50,000 a~d 
55,000 each year, slightly more than half are the result of the actions of drunk driV-
ers. -. k 

I would like to command Chairman Dole and his most capable staff for theIr wor 
in the objective and complete review of this matter. 

Six out of every ten drivers who are killed in single vehicle accidents are drunk at 
the time. In the 16 to 24 age group alone, alcohol is responsible for 8,000 highway 
deaths each year, and causes an additional 40,000 young people to be injured, many 
of them crippled or impaired for life. 

I belIeve the federal government can encourage state and local governments to 
expand enforcement against drunk drivers, and at the same time, establish a strong 
national deterrent which will put every drinking driver on notice that he or she can 
expect strict and meaningful punishment when an arrest occurs. . 

There are many problems with our existing state laws, such as a lack of umform
ity, and a high probability that convicted drunk drivers will receive suspended or 
deferred sentences from the Court. 

It is imperative that drunk d":vers receive education at the state and local level 
in order to prevent a reoccurrence of this problem. When I was Chief Justice of the 
Supreme Court of Alabama, I encouraged the establishment of more D.U.I. schools, 
that is, driving under the influence schools. I~ ~972, th~re were only three ~ucp 
schools in Alabama. Now there are 58, one Within 35 mIles of every AlabamIan s 
home. This has been an effective tool in preventing the reoccurrence of drunk driv
iT'g. 

In short improved efforts are needed to combat these problems. Arrested drunk 
drivers m~st be brought to conviction and be punished. Only then will this needless 
tragedy and bloodshed, the root of half of our automobile casualties, be stopped. 

Thank you Mr. Chairman. 

Senator DOLE. I would be very pleased at this time to call on my 
colleague, the distinguished Senator from Minnesota, Senator 
Boschwitz, who has had a long personal interest in this problem, 
for his comments. 

STATEMENT OF HON. RUDY BOSCHWITZ, A U.S. SENATOR FROM 
THE STATE OF MINNESOTA 

Senator BOSCHWITZ. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
In the event you cannot find another Senator, perhaps, while I 

am not a member of this committee, I can come back. As you 
know, my office is right around the corner. 

Senator DOLE. I understand Senator Heflin will be here at 10 
o'clock. . 

Senator BOSCHWITZ. All right. I may come back anyway, but I see 
that a great deal of the testimony has been written, and so I will 
review it. I have reviewed a good deal of the material already. 

I do not claim, Mr. Chairman, to be an expert on this matter of 
drunk driving, and I am not going to relate all of the figures, some 
of which I am very familiar with. The figures I am not familiar 
with are what it does to the people who survive those kinds of acci
dents and what the cost of their care does to medical care in gener
al. I am sure that it is very high. 

I come because of the personal experiences I had with drunk 
drivers-in my company when I was in private business. I also come 
with the conviction that the Federal Government can get involved, 
just as it can get involved in saying that 55 miles per hour is a re
quirement in the event you want Federal funding for highways. 
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I think we perhaps should impose our will in this matter as well. 
And imposing our will, in my judgment, should be done very strin
gently. I am impatient with prosecutors and judges who make 
lower types of offenses out of drunk driving. 
. I would hope as well that whatever we pass here and whatever 

we pass through the Senate will be very restrictive with respect to 
judges and prosecutors who bargain away the nature of the offense. 
That, in my opinion, is very, very important. . 

My experience-and I suppose that many witnesses come and 
relate their experiences here-consists of three or four incidents 
specifically. In one, the victim luckily survived. The wife" of the 
fellow who is now running my company almost lost her life a year 
and a half ago, and luckily 110 other member of the family was 
hurt. 

As is so often the case, in each case associated with my company, 
the drunk driver was essentially uninsured. That aspect of it also is 
difficult. 

Other than Betty Thompson, whom I just spoke about, there was 
Miss Schell,.~y son's young violin teacher, a very beautiful young 
woman of 26 or 28 who just did wonderful things with young 
people in a violin program in the Wayzata, Minn., school system. 
One day she was just lost because a drunk driver happened to hit 
her. _. 

One of my very long-term employees was John Loker, one of the 
best salesmen that my company had among the 400 or 500 people. 
One evening he and his wife, who had eight children, were return
ing from a dinner out together. This was an unusual event for 
them, inasmuch as they had eight children. They were hit from 
behind by a driver who was so drunk that, in the State of Illinois, 
apparently you cannot get consent from such a person to have a 
test of the alcoholic content of his blood, so the man got away scot
free. But John and Ruth Loker did not. 

There was no sadder thing in my life than to see these eight chil
dren, one of them in the arms of her older sister-because the 
youngest child was 6 months old and the oldest was 17-following 
the biers of their mother and father down a church aisle in St. 
Paul, Minn. 

There is also the Schroeder family, in my company, who had a 
total of nine children. For some reason, these tragedies, at least in 
my cOIl,lpany, seem to associate themselves with very large fami
lies. There the father was killed, and I believe one of the children 
was killed as well, in a drunk driving accident. 

Mr. Chairman, as we have discussed, and as I-have also discussed 
with Senator Pell and his staff, I have a very abiding interest in 
curbing the drunk driver; perhaps an interest· that is too stringent 
even. I think somebody driving under the influence of alcohol 
should be severely punished or his license removed for an extended 
period of time. 

It just mystifies me why other countries can deal so well with 
these problems-the N orwegiarts, Swedes, Danes, Japanese, and so 
on-while we seem to be helpless with respect to it. I 

I hope, Mr. Chairman, that you will look upon me as a supportsr. 
I will follow the legislation closely. I will try to get input into it to 
make sure that it is as punishing as possible to the people who 
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drive under the influence of alcohol, not only in the event they 
create a tragedy but in the event they are ~aught driving under the 
influence and before they create a tragedy. I am very interested, in 
addition, in the treatment aspects of those people after they are ar
rested. 

I thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, for being able to testify 
and to express my interest and to do so on so little notice. 

Senator DOLE. I thank the distinguished Senator from Minnesota. 
We will keep you advised, and we appreciate your willingness to 

assist us this morning if necessary. We will keep that in mind. 
Congressman Barnes has a scheduling problem also, I under

stand, but he will be here any minute. 
In the meantime, if it is satisfactory with the administration wit

ness, I would like to call the first panel, so you can listen to that 
panel, and then have you follow them, along with Senator Pell and 
Congressman Barnes. 

At this time I will call the panel, consisting of citizen action and 
public interest groups: Ms. Cindi Lamb, Mothers Against Drunk 
Drivers; Mr. William Plymat, executive director, American Council 
on Alcohol Problems; and Ms. Shirley Johnson, Citizens for Better 
Drivers, Mothers Against Drunk Drivers, Washington, D.C. 

Would that panel come forward now? 
I see that Cindi is not here. She may be lete. We will start, and 

she will be here shortly. 

STATEMENT OF SHIRLEY JOHNSON, CITIZENS FOR BETTER 
DRIVERS, MOTHERS AGAINST DRUNK DRIVERS, WASHINGTON, 
D.C. 

Ms. JOHNSON. Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommittee, 
T am a viC' ~im of drunk driving, not physically but emotionally. 

Two-ai:d-a-half years a~ J, my 25-year-old son was driving to 
work. He was a civilian paramedic with Aberdeen Proving Ground. 
He was going to the 11 o'clock shift, and he was met head-on by a 
drunken driver. The road was divided by a concrete barrier. She 
had been coming from a bar. 

It is hard for me to accept the fact t.hat the system does not 
work. This woman had a very bad previous record. She had had 
her Maryland license revoked; she had applied for a North Caroli
na license; ~~e had no insurance; she had 6 accidents in 5 years. In 
fact, she totaled another woman's parked car 1 month before. The 
police did not give her a breath test because she said she had a 
sore throat and was sucking on lozenges. 

When she Idlled my son, she had a BAC of .26. It was taken at a 
hospital and therefore not admissible as evidence because it was 
done for medical reasons. 

Following this, there were two postponements. When she finally 
came to trial 6 months later, she was found guilty of impairment 

. by alcohol, reckless driving, and homicide by a vehicle. She was 
fined $500, her license was revoked, and she was sentenced to 1 
year in jaiL This was suspended for 2 nights a week to go to AA. 
That was a little hard to take. Nine months later she was picked 
up 'again for driving on a. revoked license. 

... 
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I will say that originally she was put on probation and warned 
that the first time she violated probation sanctions would be im
posed. I assumed sanctions would be imposed. She appealed the 
case to the circuit court. The circuit court judge and the district 
court judge discussed this, and they sentenced her again to 1 year 
i.a jail, and this time they suspended it for 3 years of supervised 
probation. 

The case was sent back to district court last ApriL I talked to the 
district attorney yesterday, and he said, "You might as well figure 
that the whole violation in her record was just thrown out." Her 
license was again revoked. 

I thought this was probably an unusual case, and I found out it is 
not. For the most part, I think that the public is learning to mis
trust the courts, not only in DWI but in a lot of criminal activity. I 
think they are disgusted with plea bargaining, probation, parole 
too soon, B.nd protection of the defendant against fairness toward 
the victim. 

I was surprised to learn that so many of these people who cause 
these fatalities have very bad records. To me, it is a warning 
system, and it is not being used. For instance, the driver register 
could help prevent this. 

I have talked to police, and they say they arrest them, they go 
i~to court, B;nd they come out the other side of the door. Many 
tImes they pICk up the same person. I have been monitoring courts 
and have found that about 75 percent get probation and 20 percent 
get suspended, so there is no deterrent and very little risk. 

~. woul~ like to just rea~ one thing that sums up my feeling, and 
thIS was In State v. Steele In the New Mexico Court of Appeals: 

There are few more compelling demands for protection of the public over the indi
vidu~l t~an in the 8'.re~ which insists upon removing the drunk driver from the 
publIc hIghway. The legISlature must let the courts know how they feel about this. 

Thank you. 
Senator DOLE. Please stay up here, and I will ask Senator Pell to 

come up. He is now here. 
. We ~ave a ,Panel of citizen action and public interest groups. If it 
IS all rIght WIth the panel, I know that Senator Pell has about nine 
other things to do, so I will ask him to proceed now. As soon as 
C~mgressman Michael Bal.'nes arrives, we will be happy to hear 
hIm. 

STATEMENT OF HON. CLAIBORNE PELL, A U.S. SENATOR FROM 
THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND 

Senator PE~L. Mr. Chairman, I would like to commend you and 
the SubcommIttee on Courts for calling a hearing this morning to 
examine a national crime problem that has been overlooked by the 
Congress for much too long a time. 

I have long been amazed that a society which expresses shock 
and outrage over 20,000 homicides annually continues to accept, 
year after year, an ~ven greater number of deaths at the hands of 
drunk drivers. This complacency is hard to understand when one 
realizes that a car with an intoxicated driver is precisely as danger
ous as a loaded gun in the hands of someone who is blinded by 
rage. The combination of an instrument with the power to kill and 
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a person who is past the powers of reason is pr~cisely the saI?~ in 
both cases. In crimes of passion as well as WIth drunk drIVIng, 
there is no premeditated criminal intent, but in both cases the end 
result is a crime; it's just that when drunk driving is the cause of 
death, as it is 73 times each day, 26,000 times each year, we are too 
rarely willing to treat it as one. 

Why does the United States, a societ~ with a sensibility t<: every
thing from dangerous toys to the eVIls of tobacco, con~I~ue to 
accept the highest number of alcohol-related traffic fatalItIes per 
capita, of any nation in the world? . . . 

Drunken driving flourishes in the United States today primarily 
because we tolerate it. In Norway or Sweden, if a blood test indi
cates a sufficient presence of alcohol, the driver knows he's going 
to jail. The jail term for a first offense is not long, but. it is virt~al
ly automatic. People who can afford lawyers 8.re as lIable for Im
prisonment as those who cannot. As a result, people in these coun
tries pay attention to the law. 

In the last 2 years, the West German Government and the police 
have cracked down on drunken driving. At roadblocks, at key in
tersections, and autobahn exits, the police halt drivers at random 
to check for alcohol con sum ption. 

Depending on the results of the blood test, a driver's license may 
be suspended for anywhere from 3 months to 3 years. Many West 
German judges fine a heavy drinker 1 month's wages in addition to 
taking away the license. And if the drunken driver was involved in 
an. accident, the probability is high that he or she will h~ sent to 
prison. 

Other countries have tried different approaches which are in 
some ways equally harsh. In Australia, for example, the names of 
drunk drivers are published prominently in local papers. In 
Turkey, the common practice is to take drunk d.rivers 20 miles 
from town and force them to walk back under police escort. 

In most of the United States today, it's a different story entirely. 
Drunk driving is socially acceptable and even condoned as part of 
the American "macho" image. 

But even though it takes a certain degree of effort to be charged 
with Udriving under the influence," it's clear that most judges and 
lawmakers believe that because a typical drunken driver doesn't fit 
the image of a "criminal," it's not appropriate to invoke serious 
penalties. Hence, even drunks who have killed on our highways 
frequently get nominal or suspended sentences. 

I know this dreadful problem all too well; in the space of just 18 
months a few years back, two of my valued aides were killed due to 
the actions of drunken drivers. 

On November 16, 1974, Elizabeth Powell of my staff was slaugh
tered by a man named Dona~d Larsen, whose car went out of con
trol, crossed a median strip and struck the automobile in which she 
was riding. The man had been drinking. After several delays in his 
case, he pleaded guilty to the charge of manslaughter by auto
mobile and received a I-year suspended sentence. 

On September 27, 1975, Stephen Wexler, the chief counsel to the 
Senate Education Subcommittee and my close friend and associate 
for 10 years, was struck down by a .:trunk driver named Joseph 
Rawlings, who was drag racing with another car at the time of the 
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accident. Steve left a young widow a~~. an infant .s~n. The driver of 
the car that hit Steve was charged WIth drunk driVIng, an~ both he 
and the 'driver of the other vehicle involved in drag raCIng were 
charged with manslaughter by automobile. Again, after innumer- , 
able delays, both drivers were convicted of manslaughter and re-
ceived suspended sentences. . 

Both accidents were well publicized and-just as whe~ any aCCI
dent occurs involving drinking and the loss of young ~Ive~-th~re 
was a sense of outrage and-on the part of some-a call fOlr SWIft-
er, stiffer penalties. . . .. 

Can anything be done to Improve this dreadful SItuation? Are we 
powerless to confront a problem whi.c~ in the spa~~ of a decade has 
wiped out the lives of one-quarter millIon of our CItizens? 

I have concluded that our legal system is not as incapable of de
terrin.g this life-threatening behavior as most .of us have assumed. 
As the Scandinavian and West German experIence sh~ws, the cer
tainty of facing an embarrassing penalty gives a speCIal pause to 
people who are not accustomed to severe. treatment. oy the law. 

I have introduced legislation, Senate bIll 671, whIch would attack 
the drunk driving menace in thr~e ways: . 

First, all convicted drunken drivers would be subject t~ the sa~e 
minimum penalties, namely at least 10 ~ay~ ?f communIty se~Ica 
for a first offense, and at least 10 days In JaIl for those conVICted 
two or more times within a 5-year peri?d.. . . 

These penalties are intended to be lI~ht .enough. to be readIly In
voked yet real enough to make a gemnne I~npresmon. The commu
nity service alternative is intp-nded to conSIst of weekends, or eve
nings, assisting in hospitals wher~ accident vi~tims are b~ought, or 
similar activities intended to deprive drunk drivers of theIr person-
alliberty for the equivalent of 10 days. .. . . 

Second, recognizing that we are a car-bound socIe~y In WhIC.h 
most people are genuinely dependent on the automobIl~ fo~ theIr 
livelihood, my bill proposes that first offenders have theIr lI,ce~ses 
"r.estricted" to essential or work-related travel. Su,ch ~estr~ctlOns 
could be made enforceable by the issuance of readIly IdentIfiable 
special marker plates. The public embar~assm~nt of having to 
drive with such plates would be a powerful IncentIve not to run the 
risk of being caught. . . 

Third, my bill would requ,ire se~tencing judges to determIne If 
the offender is a problem drIn.ker In need of a referral to an alco
hol treatment or rehabilitation center, or followup by alcohol abuse 
coun.selors. No legislative effort dealing with. this ~robl~m. can be 
effective unless it includes a strong emphaSIS on IdentI(VIng and 
treating the problem drinkers. . 

My bill is currently pending before the Commerce CommIttee 
where it has been' cosponsored by Senators Glenn, Goldwat~r, 
Huddleston, and Inouye. An identical bill has been introduced In 
the House by Congressman Barnes, and has 67 cosponsors. 

The cornerstone of my legislation is one idea-that the key to re
building the deterrent potential of the. law ~n this area is to create 
certainty that even a first offense wI!1 bring down rea~ an~ u~
pleasant sanctions. I believe a single pIe,ce ?f Fed~rallegIsla~lOn IS 
the most constructive means of establIshIng thIS expectatIon of 
punishment on a national basis. The punishment does not have t<? 
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be too severe for a first offender-indeed if it i~ too severe? judges 
~nd prosecutors won't invoke it-. but the ~anct~on mus~ stmg

1 
and 

embarrass. Causing a drunk drIver to mIss. hIS st~nding go~f or 
Dokel' game because he's at the local hospItal aCCIdent rO?ID or 
house of correction is just the kind of moderate sentence Judges 
~leed to avoid the persistent entreaties of defense lawyers. . . 

Of course, my bill encourages the States to set only: mIn~mum 
standards' there is nothing to prevent a State from ImposIn~ a 
more stri~gent mandatory sentence, or ~>utright license ~evocatIOn. 

Obviously there is no readymade, sIngle, easy solutIOn to the 
drinking driver problem. Legislation is n?t. the t?tal ansyver to th.e 
problem, and never . ~ll ~e. Drunk drIvIng WIll continue until 
public acceptance of It IS Withdrawn, a process tha~ rna! take dec
ades if not generations. The passage of Federal legI~latlOn, howev
er would be a powerful incentive for everyone fro?1Insura!1ce com
p~nies to educational institutions to mo~nt pubhc e.ducat~on cam
paigns. Drunk driving is a problem that IS truly nat~onal In scope, 
and its estimated $5 billion annual cost to our socIety .rel~t~s to 
much more than just the criminal justice system of the IndIvIdual 
States. t' I 

Already, there are encouraging signs of a na IOna consensu~ on 
this issue. Maine has recently enacted a very tough drunk dnver 
la.v, with a 48-hour mandatory jail ter,m, a $350 fme, and 90-day 
license suspension. That State is a.veragIng more than 800 arrests a 
month for drunk driving, and now has the toughest laws on the 
books. 'L' • h . t t d On the other side of the country, Call1ornIa as JUs. enac e sev-
erallaws dealing with drunk drivers. One wou~d requIre a manda
tory 48 hours in jail or a 90-day license suspe!lslOn an~ fine .f~r fir~t 
offenders. Another bill is designed to restrict plea oargaining In 
these cases by treating re.ckless drivi.ng involving alcohol ~s the 
equivalent of a drunk driVIng offense In terms of the penaltIes ap
plied. Finally, the new California la~s will add $1 to the State ve
hicle registration fees so 670 new hIghway patrol officers can be 
hired to enforce the stronger laws. ..... 

The Maine and California laws, together With sImIlar legislatIOn 
in States like new Hampshire and Mary~a!ld, and a flurry of grass
roots lobbying groups, suggest that our cItizens are fIn!llly demand
ing more effective drunk driver laws. Our task, as legIslators must 
be to mobilize this public support for stronger laws, and translate 
it into realistic workable legislation which will help reduce one of 
our country's ~ost widespread and destructiv.e crimes. . 

I thank you very much indeed, Mr. Cha~rman, f~r lettlQg me 
make this statement. If there are any questIOns, I WIll be glad to 
reply. 

Senator DOLE. I want to thank you, Senator Pell, for your 1~8:der
ship ill this a.rea and also Congressman Barnes who has now JOIned 
you. We will hear from him nelrt,. . 

I do not know how you view the problem, but It seems to me a 
national disgrace in the sense that not~ing has bee~ ~one. ~ under
stand the federalism involved, and I thInk the 8.dministratIOn may 
find some areas of your legislation that rais~ some pr oblems, but. I 
cannot think of a better way that the PreSIdent could serve thIS 
country than to come to grips with this problem. 
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I know that Congressman Barnes, Congressman Hansen, and 
others on the House side, as well as many on the Senate side have 
sent a personal letter to the President suggesting that he address 
this problem at a very early time. Certainly we will support that 
effort. 

As you indicated in the early part of your statement, we focus on 
homicides.-I remember during the Vietnam war there was almost a 
weekly body count, but nobody seemed to add up the thousands 
and thousands of innocent victims in accidents involving drunk 
driving. 

I would hope-and I know that your interest will persist-that 
we in this committee at least could focus on the problem, and if not 
your legislation, something that would address the problem. I think 
that is your primary concern. 

Senator PELL. It does not matter whose name is on it; the impor
tant thing is to try to reduce those 20,000 deaths on the highway 
down to a smaller number. 

Senator DOLE. Senator Heflin, do you have questions of Senator 
Pell? 

STATEMENT OF SENATOR HOW.ELL HEFLIN 

Senator HEFLIN. I have had conversations with Senator Pell over 
a period of many months on this. I have been interested in this. 

When I was chief justice of the supreme court, we went through 
a reorganization of courts and attempted to get into this matter of 
dealing With driving while intoxicated. I think we had a pilot pro
gram under which it ended up that judges had, among their other 
authorities, the right to sentence a' person to go to a school, and 
they were required to go to a school, largely under the National 
Highway Traffic Safety Administration. 

They went through a 10-hour required course that they would 
have to meet. During this, they would come to grips with certain 
things like: "First, why was I drunk while I was driving?" They 
would have to write it out. 

As a result of our program and a similar program that existed in 
Florida on what we would call DWI referral schools, the recidivism 
ra~ dropped from· around 30 percent to about 6 percent. It had a 
tremendous impact. 

This was a State approach. There has been a lot of talk about it. 
That is just one area that I am interested in. There is no question 
that accidents and the driving~while-intoxicated-related deaths is a 
serious problem. 

There is the problem of federalism involved in this. This is a seri
ous problem, but I congratulate you on your interest in this matter. 
The fact is that we ought to look at it very carefully. I think we 
have to look at it within the parameters of federalism. We have to 
deal with it in a lot of different ways. It is a serious problem, and 
in my mind we need to have a nationwide program. The details of 
how that will work, of course, are something we will have to give 
careful study to in the future. 

I congratulate you, Mr. Chairman, for your illtere8t and your 
statement on this. 

----------------------~--~-------~~-~---------------------------~-----~~-------------
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Senator DOLE. As I understand it, in Rhode Island they used to 
have a special tag for anyone convicted of drunk driving. I think it 
was a red tag. At least you could spot them if you ~ould se.e them 
coming. I am not certain whether that had any Impact In that 
State. . . 

Senator PELL. We have a bad record in connection with IntoxICa
tion, I. guess, because we are the only State that. did· not ratify the 
Volstead amendment, and we have the second hIghEri)t rate of alco
holism in our State. 

. Senator HEFLIN. Mr. Chairman, might I ask if the tags were on 
the front or the back? 

Senator DOLE. I.imagine that in the early days they had them on 
both ends. That is just an aside. 

As I see it people grope with ways to deal with the p~oblem. As 
Judge Heflin indicated, we may have some problems wIth the 80-
called federalism issue. However, it seems to me that there are 
enough fertile minds around this country that we ought to be able 
to come to grips with this problem. 

Do you want to stay, or do you need to go on to another meeting? 
Senator PELL. I will just drop back, but I will listen for a little 

while. I know Congressman Barnes is here. I am ,delighted. He has 
really carried the load on the House side on this. Between us, we 
hope, before too many tens of thousands haVf~ been slaughtered, 
that some form of this legislation may be on the books. 

I thank you for your hospitality. , 
Senator DOLE. I might explain to Senator Heflin that I am going 

to have to leave in just a minute or two to run down and see about 
taxes and the budget, but I will be back. I have a lot of balls in the 
air right now. 

We have a panel here, and I did indicate to them that as soon as 
you and 'Congressman Barnes arrived we would interrupt their tes
timony. So we will now hear from Congressman Barnes. 

I would like to insert in the record, without objection~ a copy of a 
statement from Congressman James Hansen, who has been work
ing with Congressman Barnes. 

[The prepared statement of Congressman Hansen follows:] 

PREPARED STATEMENT OF CoNGRESSMAN JAMES V. HANSEN 

I am pleased to provide testimony for this subcommittee on the serious pi"oblem of 
drinking driving. I consider the drinking driver problem as one of our nation's 
greatest tragedies. . , 

My first contact with the drinking driver came when I worked for a large insur
ance company. I handled most of the claims of auto fatalities and I was appalled to 
find that almost 70 percent of our fatal auto accident claims involved arinking driv
ers. 

In recent years, I have owned my own insurance agency where I have continued 
to see the same deplorably ):,tigh percentage of deaths caused by drinking drivers. 
Also as the past Chairman of a Joint Insurance Study Committee in the Utah State 
Legi~laturej I received evidence and figures showing the staggering number of inno
cent people who are maimed or killed by drinking drives. Perhaps one of the saddest 
things I witnessed as I served on the Study Committee was the large number of chil
dren who had needlessly lost one or both of their parents to careless, drinking driv
ers. 

During the past six months, ! have suffered two serious automobile accidents at 
the hands of drinking drivers. In both accidents my cars were totaled and in both 
cases the people who ran into me had been drinking. 
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In the first accident, which happen in Oakton, Virginia, a car ran a stop sign and 
hit my car broadside. The impact pushed my car into another lane of traffic where 
it was struck by a second automobile and forced off the road where it came to rest 
after colliding with a telephone pole. I sustained cuts, bruises and sprains, was 
treated at a local hospital and released later in the evening. 

In the second accident, my wife, myself and our five children were traveling north 
in the far right lane of Interstate 15 in Utah, just outside of Salt Ll3ke City. A 
driver on our left hit the left shoulder of the freeway, over corrected to the light, 
and smashed into the left side of my car. Both cars rolled and were demolished. For
tunately, I only had a few bruises. However, my wife sustained a compression frac
ture of the back, my daughter suffered a cervical fracture in her neck, and my !Jon 
fractured his elbow. My wife was tlat on he back for weeks and still has problems 
getting around . 

I truly believe that the problem of the drinking driver is one of America's great
est tragedies. It is time that my colleagues and I in Congress take action to help 
stem the useless carnage on our nation's highways. This year, alone, 26,000 Ameri
cans will be needlessly killed by drink'ng drivers. The human suffering inflicted on 
the American public by the drinking drivers can no longer be tolerated by a sane 
society. Thank you. 

Senator DOLE. We are very pleased to have you here this morn
ing. We have certainly expressed our interest in your le~dership, 
and I commended you for that. 

If Senator Heflin will trade places, I will be back as quickly as 
possible. 

Senator HEFLIN. I will have some problems. If I have to leave, 
could our friend and very distinguished staff director and former 
director of LEAA preside? . 

Senator DOLE. No; I think we will just recess the hearing. I will 
be back soon, unless they raise taxes too high. I may not want to 
come back at all. [Laughter.] 

I should be back within 30 or 45 minutes. I know you have an
other conflict. We are trying to find other Senators, but I think we 
will just recess the hearing for a few minutes. 

STATEMENT OF RON. MICHAEL D. BARNES, A U.s. 
REPRESENTATIVE FROM THE STATE OF MARYLAND 

Mr. BARNES. Mr. Chairman, before you go, I just want to com
mend your leadership on this critical issue and your taking the 
trouble to schedule this very important hearing. I know it is appre
ciated by many, many people. 

I also want to say how pleased I am to app(~ar this morning with 
Senator Pell, who has demonstrated outstanding leadership over a 
long period of time, the result, unfortunately, as the Senator indi
cated, of two very tragic incidents involving close friends of his. 

I particularly appreciate the opportunity to offer my viewpoints 
as one who has now dedicated the past year and a half to bringing 
to the forefront the drunk driving problem with the hope that it 
will receive the kind of attention that it deserves and to help to 
make the resolution of this tragedy a nationally recognized prior
ity . 

Today I want to describe two major initiatives that are already 
underway in Congress which directly confront the drinking driver 
menace. One is the one that was outHned by Senator Pell. The 
other was alluded to briefly by Senator Dole. 

I believe it is important to understand the broad scope of this 
tragedy as it exists today on our Nation's highways. From this sce
nario I believe that it will be clear that drinking drivers constitute 
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the most critical threat to the health and safety of citizens on our 
roads. It is a threat which deserves immediate and responsible 
action at all levels of government-at the local level, the State 
level, and the Federal level. 

Just last year, about. 52,000 Americans were killed on the 
Nation's highways. Another 2 million were seriously injured. We 
find that cars are getting smaller and lighter; that trucks are get-. 
ting bigger and heavier; that severe budget cuts threaten the safe 
upkeep of our highways; and, typically and tra~cally, motor :vehi
cle collisions pose the greatest threat to the lIves of Ame:rltans 
under the age of 35. 

Yet just last week the administration rescinded all standards re
quiring U.S. automakers to provide automatic safety restraints for 
passengers, which we had expected to save at least 9,000 lives each 
year. These short-term cost savings to automakers, in my judg
ment, do not justify the long-term human suffering experienced by 
Americans which could be averted with a national policy on man
datory passive restraints. 

Sena.tor, what is most alarming to me is the fact that over one
half of these auto fatalities are directly related to alcohol use and 
abuse. Last year alone, 26,000 Americans lost their lives and an
other 750,000 persons were seriously injured, many of them crip-
pled and maimed for life in drunk driving collisions. . 

Paradoxically, according to the National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration, on an average day only 1 of every 2,000 drinking 
drivers is apprehended, and the chance of conviction is slim. As 
Senator Pell indicated, even when convicted, the penalties are very 
limited. 

I am sure that you will learn today from the variety of persons 
offering testimony, especially from victims of drunk drivers, that 
this threat to life and limb is all too real, and it will not go away 
unless we take some vital steps to provide a coordinated effort 
among the Federal, State, and local governmental bodies. 

I first became active in bringing this issue to the attention of the 
American public and our colleagues in the Congress in 1980 when. I 
learned just how serious a threat drunk driving poses to people in 
every community nationwide. 

Later today .we will hear from a young woman who, along with 
her baby daughter, has experienced firsthand the harsh. realities 
and human suffering inflicted on innocent victims of drunk drivers. 

I, along with thousands of citizens in my State of Maryland and 
across the country, were deeply moved and motivated by the trage
dy that struck Cindi Lamb and her daughter Laura. Laura Lamb is 
now paralyzed for life from the shoulders down due to the actions 
of a repeat offender drunk driver. Laura Lamb is living proof that 
this problem is real and that none of us is immune to this daily 
threat. 

Just this week the 16-year-old daughter of close friends of my 
family was killed by a drunk driver not very many miles from here 
in Burtonsville, Md. 

Looking at the problem nationally, the statistics alone convince 
me that drunk driving is a neglected national crisis which experts 
unfortunately tell us is getting worse, much worse. 
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Over the past decade, one-quarter of a million Americans have 
been killed in alcohol-related crashes. In the past 2 years, more 
people were killed in drunk driving collisions than all of our young 
citizens who lost their lives in the decade-long Vietnam war. Last 
year, drunk driving created economic costs soaring above an esti
mated conservative cost of $5 billion. 

Late in the 96th Congress, I introduced legislation which was 
identical to the bill that Senator Pell has described and which he 
sponsored in the Senate, to offer a needed first step in what has 
been an emerging battle against drunk driving and to encourage 
the States to take firm and effective action to protect our citizens. 

My legislation, H.R. 2488, was reintroduced early in the 97th 
Congress along with Senator Pell's bin in the Senate, and it has 
received increasing support among om: colleagues and the Ameri
can public. Currently, over 70 Memb~rs of Congress have joined in 
a strong bipartisan effort which specifically attempts to assist the 
States to better coordinate comprehensive programs in each State, 
in close cooperation with local communities, to deter drunk driving 
and to punish and rehabilitate those who are convicted of this act. 

The bill includes mandatory minimum standards to assure three 
key elements of any successful program aimed at discouraging 
drunk driving-that is, some tough laws, stringent enforcement of 
those laws, and ongoing effective public information efforts. 

An advantage of the legislation, if adopted by the States, is that 
these programs could pay for themselves. The bulk of the money 
needed to pay for 'the programs would come from the mandatory 
fines imposed at the time of conviction and from fees collected 
when entering correctional programs. 

The bill, which received the full support of the previous adminis
tration, has been endorsed by a wide variety of organizations, in
cluding Mothers Against Drunk Drivers, an organization called 
Remove Intoxicated Drivers; the American Academy of Pediatrics; 
the American Council on Alcohol Problems; Independent Living for 
the Handicapped; the Rehabilitation Institute of Chicago, the 
Nation's largest medical center treating spinal cord injured per
sons, many of whom, obviously, are the victims of drunk drivers. 

The Reagan administration, although it has not endorsed the 
bill, agrees with our longstanding contention that drunk driving is 
not only our most critical highway safety problem but is also one of 
the Nation's most serious health and safety concerns. 

The administration questions the bill's threat of loss of Federal 
highway safety funds as a means of enticing effective State and 
local action as an infringement upon the States rights. 

It is true that if the bill is passed by Congress the States would 
be called on to adhere to its provisicds or risk losing their annual 
share of Federal highway safety money. The final discretion, how-
ever, is up to the Secretary of Transportation. . 

While the administration suggests that the legislation is an un
welcome threat to the States and the livelihood of their individual 
highway safety programs, I have to point out that the administra
tion, in fiscal year 1982, has sliced those same funds 'nearly in half, 
from about $200 million last year to an expected $100 million this 
year. These are the funds that the States havedepend~d upon to 
carry out the objectives of their highway safety programs, the very 
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kinds of programs, Senator, that you were alluding to just a few 
moments ago. . 

I believe these specific Federal budget cuts pose a very serIOUS 
threat by the Federal Government to the States' ability to provide 
their citizens with sufficient protection, particularly in law enforce
ment and public information efforts that are so vital to any signifi
cant and long-term crackdown on drinking drivers. 

The administration has praised the intent of the bill, and it sup
ports specific components of the legislation. The administration 
also has offered to work with me, with Senator Pell, and with the 
various committees on the Hill to resolve any existing problems 
that they have with the bill. I welcome and look forward to work
ing closely with the administration and with members of this com
mittee as well as my colleagues in the House on this matter. 

Realistically, the bill does not provide a panacea to a problem 
which our society has allowed to continue and to worsen to the 
point where we are faced with a crisis of what is clearly epidemic 
proportions. 

However, the bill does offer a needed initial step toward what 
must be a comprehensive effort among the Federal, State, and local 
levels. The bill does offer a workable skeletal system from which 
the States and local communities can gear their problems to effec
tively deter and treat drinking drivers. 

In the end, it is up to the States and localities, with continuing 
assistance, I hope, from the Federal Government, to assure that the 
system works. This is why I have publicly endorsed 8tatewide and 
community-wide efforts to form solution-oriented volunteer task 
forces to uncover existing deficiencies in the system and to directly 
address them with realistic, workable solutions. 

Over the past year, such statewide efforts weFe launched by the 
Governors of Maryland, California, and New York, and they have 
successfully led to important and needed changes in each State, 
both legislatively and administratively. 

Recently, local task forces have begun to emerge, bringing to
gether diverse groups of individuals representing the numerous 
fields which touch upon the drinking driver problem, such as law 
enforcers, legislators, judges, prosecutors, clergymen, alcohol reha
bilitators, officials of ·insurance companies, victims of drunk driv
ers, and other concerned citizens. 

In my own' community, Montgomery County, Md., a special task 
force was recently appointed by our county executive, Charles 
Gilchrist. My office is represented 'On this panel, which currently is 
walking through the system in our county, learning from testimo
ny and a thorough investigation just what has worked as well as 
what has failed and how to correct those flaws. 

I might note in that context that our police department in Mont
gomery County, just within the last few days, has instituted a new 
experiment, and that is setting up a roadblock at a time when a 
large number of drunk drivers might be anticipated to be on the 
roads, and stopping everybody, checking to see whether or not they 
appear to be intoxicated. They tried this for the first time just a 
few days ago. They stopped over 500 drivers and made 10 arrests 
based upon that. 
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I salute what is being done by the police in our community. It is 
similar to what I saw when I was a graduate student living in Swit
zerland, where routinely the police would just stop drivers, and 
anyone who was drunk would be arrested. It is understood in Swit
zerland that if you, are arrested for drunk driving you go to jail. It 
should be understood in the United States, as Senator Pell has 
said, that if you are arrested for drunk driving you will lose your 
freedom. 

Mr. Ch~irman, this leads me to the second and most recent ini
tiative that I have undertaken which, as Senator Dole indicated, 
calls on President Reagan to take a firm public leadership role 
against this nationwide disgrace by appointing a blue ribbon na
tional commission, not to study the problem, because this problem 
has been studied, restudied, and studied again, but to finally bring 
together the finest minds, the most qualified persons, and the 
wealth of resources and technologies available to develop a realistic 
master plan to curtail the tragic suffering that is eaused by the 
drinking driver epidemic. 

One month ago I launched this new effort along with my two col
leagues in the House, Jim Hansen of Utah and Glenn Anderson of 
California, to coalesce congressional support for our proposal. 

Jim Hansen's active leadership on this initiative has been 
spurred by his own firsthand experience, similar to that that Sena
tor Pell's staff has had. In the past 6 months alone, Congressman 
Hansen has been struck twice by drinking drivers;1 the last collision 
seriously injuring his wife and his daughter. 

Glenn Anderson chairs the Hous(~ Surface Transportation Sub
committee, which has direct jurisdiction over the drunk' driving 
issue. Obviously, we are very pleased to have his involvement in 
this effort. 

Since launching it, we have been circulating' a letter to President 
Reagan among our colleagues in the House and the Senate.· At the 
moment we have collected signatures from over 200 Republicans 
and Democrats in what is one of the broadest displays of bipartisan 
support that I have seen during my 3 years in Congress. We have 
joined together to ask the President to use the powers of his office 
to finally bring under control the senseless and preventable car
nage due to drunk driving nationally. 

Our effort has also received wide and active support from numer
ous groups throughout the Nation, including the American Council 
on Alcohol Problems, the Alliance of American Insurers, the Gov
ernment Employees Insurance Co., the Maryland chapter of the 
American Association of U niversity Women, the California District 
Attorneys Association, and organizations such as RID and MADD 
that I referred to earlier. I commend these organizations for their 
great help. 

I would like to note that last year, when I formally announced 
introduction of my legislation and Senator Pell's legislation, MADD 
launched its own petition drive at that time urging the formation 
of a presidential. commission. I was proud to have been the first 
signer of their effort which has now collected over 100,000 signa-
tures from citizens all over the country. ,. 
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Finally, I would like to stress two additional aspects related to 
reducing the incidence of drunk driving and the subsequent death 
and injury that it causes. 

One, the Congress with the support of the administration should 
pass legislation sponspred by Jim Oberstar of Minnesota and Sena
tor Pell that would establish a fully funded, fully functioning na
tional driver register. As an original cosponsor of this bill, I am 
aware of the necessity to establish and maintain a comprehensive 
national network to help States track repeat offenders before issu
ing driving permits to applicants. 

Second, we need to focus attention on developing and expanding 
the use of shock trauma centers to quickly and effectively treat the 
type of shock that is most often due to motor vehicle collisions. 
Often people die on our highways because of lack of immediate 
treatment of the symptoms of shock. 

In Maryland, specifically at the University of Maryland in Balti
more, we have established one of the first such shock trauma cen
ters in the country, and I believe it has become a model for physi
cians and other medical facilities allover the Nation. The main 
function of these centers is to treat the hundreds of thousands of 
persons who are severely injured in automobile crashes each year. 

In closing, Senator Heflin, I would point out that one of every " 
. two of us in this room this morning-one of every two of us in this 
room-can expect to be involved in an alcohol-related auto crash in 
our lifetime. As a recent U.S. News & World Report article points 
out, our Nation is allowing itself to be led up a steady and steep 
incline in deaths and injuries primarily due to drunk drivers. 

As I have stated repeatedly, this problem is nothing less than a 
holocaust on our highways, and it will not disappear on its own. It 
is clear that our Nation is going to have to do everything possible 
that is reasonable and responsible to finally stem the tide against 
what I believe is clearly a preventable problem. 

I am convinced that, with the cooperation of the administration, 
the Congress, the Nation's lawmakers, law enforcers, judges, pros
ecutors, educators, parents, and the public generally, we can make 
significant and lasting changes to save lives and to reduce crippling 
injuries. 

This subcommittee, as I said at the outset, is to be commended 
for its leadership in schedulit:lg these hearings to bring this crisis to 
national attention. I am very pleased to have had the opportunity 
to make this statement, Senator. 

Senator HEFLIN [acting chairman]. Congressman Barnes, I con
gratulate you on a very thorough and comprehensive statement of 
testimony directed to this very crucial issue. ... 

I have read in the past, and am more familiar now, with statis
tics of the number of deaths on the highways each year more than 
50 percent of those are alcohol related. Would that be a correct 
statement? 

Mr. BARNES. That would be absolutely correct, Senator. Every 
study that I have seen and the statement of ever.y expert that I 
have ever seen indicates that that is correct. In fact, when I talk to 
the State police in Maryland, they argue that it is very substantial
ly higher than that. 
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Senator HEFLIN. Are there age brackets in which we find that 
there are more offenses that result from driving while intoxicated, 
or is it a universal problem? We know today, for example, that in 
crime, in the age group 16-21, a substantially higher percentage of 
the people who are convicted of criminal offenses fall into that 
group. Is this a problem that not only exists among. certain age 
groups but is prevalent in all age groups? 

Mr. BARNES. Senator, it is something that is prevalent in all age 
groups, although the data would indicate that the young driver 
who becomes intoxicated is a major factor in the problem. 

I hate to keep referring to what we are doing in our State, but 
our legis.lature is now considering raising the age again. They had 
~owered It a few years ago, but they are now considering again rais
Ing the age for purchase of alcohol because of the incidence of 
drunk driving among young people. 

Not only are young people potentially the drunk drivers, but per
haps an even more striking statistic is that young people between 
the ages of 18 and 25 are more likely to be killed by a drunk driver 
than to d~e in any other way. Th~y are more likely to be killed by a 
d:unk drIver than they are ~o ~he of cB:ncer, heart disease, or any 
dIsease. one could name. ThIs IS the bIggest threat to the life of 
young people in America. 

Senator HEFLIN. Thank you, sir. We apf)reciate your testimony . 
Mr. BARNES. Thank you, Senator. . 
Senator HEFLIN. At this time we will call Ms. Cindi Lamb of 

Mothers Against Drunk Drivers [MADD] from Fair Oaks, Calif. 
Ms. Lamb? 
[No response.] 
Senator HEFLIN. Mr. Plymat, executive director of the American 

Council on Alcohol Problems of Des Moines, Iowa, we welcome you 
here. . 

We request you to summarize your statement. Your prepared 
written statement will be made a part of the record. We all hav~ 
time problems this morning. If you would, we would appreciate it if 
you would summarize your' statement. 

STATEMENT OF WILLIAM N. PLYMAT, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
9 AMERICAN COUNCIL ON ALCOHOL PROBLEMS, DES MOINES 

IOWA ' 

Mr. PLYMAT. Senator, I shall certainly do So. 
I should perhaps tell you that I am a lawyer, a retired State sen

ator in the legislature of Iowa, and chairman of the Iowa Commis
sion on Substance Abuse, having just. completed 4 years on the 
commission and having just been reappointed to another 4 years by 
Governor Ray. 

I am executive director of a private organization, the American 
~ouncil on Alcohol ~roblems, w~ich has an affiliate in your State, 
SIr. I am board chaIrman emerItus of the Preferred Risk Mutual 
Insurance Co. I have been involved in this area of concern since I 
was a very young man and am still active. 

The announced purpose of this hearing is to' examine actions of 
State and local courts as they respond to the severe drinking driv-
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ing problem. But if we are to make real progress, we must examine 
the whole spectrum of the drinking driving problem" 

We need to find out what is going on across our ~ountry, what is 
being done that works, and what has been done that fails. The gen
eral public needs to be made aware of the problem in a way' in 
which they have not been made aware, due to the failure of the 
media to do the job. 

The judicial system is highly overburdened. It cannot possibly 
handle the load. The police are often reluctant to arrest because 
our laws are antique. The drinking-driving law is as antique as a 
model A Ford, and we have got to change the basic law of this 
country on the offense of driving an automobile under the influ
ence of alcohol. 

I feel qualified to respond to this because, as I have indicated, I 
have practiced law in Des Moines. I worked to improve the laws in 
my State. I managed to get a 2-day jail sentence put in operation in 
my State. I tried to get a per se law. I organized an auto insurance 
company, and I do not want to belabor that point except to say 
that it started out in a humble way. It is one of the largest compa
nies in the country today. It insures people who, for religious and 
other reasons, do not use alcohol. 

We need to classify drinking drivers in two categories: One, they 
are alcoholics. Two, they are social drinkers and just do not care. 
They are driving without any regard to what the effects are. 

So we need to grab the persons who are charged with the offense 
and put them into an intensive investigation with testing and ex
perts examining them to find out if they are alcoholics. If they are 
indeed, they should be immediately put into therapy under penalty 
of immediate prosecution. But to lock them up in jail or stall their 
charges in a court of law does not get at their problem. 

We are doing that innovatively in Des Moines, Iowa, today. The 
results of this are not yet known, because it is too soon, but we are 
deferring prosecutions even in the case of persons who are obvious
ly alcoholics, while we are going after the volitional violators. 

The volitional violators are a large group. It is arguable whether 
they are 80 percent, 50 percent, or what percent they are of the 
total, but the thing we have got to do if we are going to make any 
progress in this country is to change the drinking-driving law of 
the United States in all States except 15. 

We have got to set a speed limit on drinking and driving. We 
have got to say that when the blood alcohol reading is over .10 it is 
an offense in itself. Then we have got to slap these people in jail, in 
my opinion, for 2 days to give them shock treatment, except where 
they are ill and have to be sent to a court. 

There was a very notable experiment in Chicago in 1970 during 
the Christmas season, where they announced that everybody con
victed would get 7 days. That was a great success in reducing the 
problem in that are fl. 

I see that my time is about to expire. Let me just say to you that 
we need a mass educational program, the kind of thing like this 
[indicating leaflet], "Half drunk drivers are dangerous too." This 
was authored by my son and is being widely distributed. We have a 
little leaflet [indicating leaflet], "Alcohol Facts: 5 ways drinking 
can hurt you." 
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In. your State, Senator, the State liquor store system is going to 
r.eceJ.ve l50,~00 copies of this to go in the sacks of every bottle of 
lIquor sold In your State. That is going to increase public knowl
edge and information. 
. The most imp?rtant thIng that needs to be done, in my opinion, 
IS to have a natIOnal task force or commission appointed by Presi
dent Reagan. I have had a big part in that development here in 
recent days and have been very supportive of what is going on 
here. 

I want to say th~t even in Anchorage, Alaska, they have had a 
referen~u~ on clOSIng th~ bars at an earlier hour, and we ought to 
be monItOring people commg out of bars with these kind of breath
testing devices, so that they can be challenged to check their 
breath .. We ought to be going in the direction of closing the bars at 
an earlIer hour, because drinking all night in bars is insanity. 

Thank you very much for the courtesy. My testimony is on the 
yell~w paper for the press that are here. I am sorry that I cannot 
possIbly cover all the points. Thank you, Senator. 

Senator HEFUN. We appreciate your excellent testimony, Mr. 
Plymat. 

You obviously have spent a great deal of time and a great deal of 
your life dealin~ wit~ this problem and have many, many ap
proaches toward It.' It IS a problem, I suppose, that it would be nice 
to say we could find a ~imple. solutio~ to, but it is a complicateu 
matter, a matt~r t~at needs InnovatIOn and needs the thinking 
that you have gIven It. We appreciate your information. 

Mr. PLYMAT. Thank you. 
Senator HEFLI~. I am going to have to close the hearing for a 

short recess. I belIeve that Senator Dole or Senator Mathias will be 
back. 

Unfortunately, we all belong to an institution that has been 
pr?bably. correc~ly described as a 100-ring circus, there is some
thIng gOIng on In everyone of those rings at the same time and 
most o~ us are. required to be in at least three or four rings ;t the 
same tIme. I~ Is·a real problem, but I am sure that the recess will 
not be anythmg other than what you probably need to stretch and 
that SeI?-ator Dol~ or Senator Mathias will be back very shortly. 

We WIll stand In recess for a brief period of time 
[A brief recess was taken.] . 

. Sena~or DOLE. Again, I apologize for my absence, but we were 
diSCUSSI~g budget ma~ters with the President. Since I am chairman 
?f t~e FInance CommIttee and will have the bulk of the responsibil
Ity, It was necessary that I be there. 

As I understand,' both Senator Pell and Congressman Barnes 
have completed their testimony. We have heard from two members 
of the citizens' panel. Cindi Lamb is now here. . 
. We certainly will welcome your testimony, and I will ha~e ques

tIons of the panel. Then 'we will f~llow with Diane Steed. 
You may proceed. 
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STATEMENT OF CINDI LAMB, MOTHERS AGAINST DRUNK 
DRIVERS, FAIR OAKS, CALIF. 

Ms. LAMB. I am here today, not only as a representative of 
MADD [Mothers Against Drunk Drivers] .but as a personal victim 
of a drunk driver. 

My 2-year-old daughter Laura has been and will remain para
lyzed from the shoulders down since the age of 5 months due to a 
four-time repeat offender drunk driver. 

I am sure you are all aware of the staggering statistics of death 
and injury caused by drunk drivers and of the constant threat they 
pose to all of us every minute we are on or near our Nation's 
roads, otherwise we would not be here, so I will not go over those 
statistics again. 

Since I nave become extensively involved in this issue on a local, 
State, and Federal level, I would like to addr.ess all of you on cer
tain issues where I feel Federal legislation can definitely help to 
protect all of our lives. 

I would like to see a .10 blood alcohol level limit for driving 
while intoxicated and a .08 to .10 for driving while impaired in all 
States. . 

I feel that any open containers of alcohol of any kind should not 
be permitted in a vehicle, and should open liquor in a vehicle be 
found that in itself should be an offense punishable by fine or tem
porary loss of license. 

Generally speaking, without a doubt I would like to see specific, 
across-the-board guidelines set up for much stiffer sanctions 
against repeat offender drunk drivers, including loss of license, 
higher fines, and jail time. 

Victims of drunk drivers should be considered and included as a 
victim of crime and should be financially compensated whenever 
possible from State-operated victims of crime compensation boards. 

I could go on for days with a list of things I would like to see 
changed as far as Federal legislation is concerned, but I would like 
to close with two thoughts: 

First, there is existing legislation, both in the House, by Repre
sentative Mike Barnes, and the Senate, by Senator Pell. I would 
really like to see both the House and the Senate working together 
on this issue. I would li~e to see them meeting together, coming up 
with the most viable solutions for all of us. 

And I would like to tell you that it will be 2 years on Tuesday 
since my daughter and I were hit by this drunk driver. I still have 
really bad nightmares, and I still cry a lot, an awful lot. Laura still 
does not move or feel anything, and she is not going to. She could 
die very quickly because of all of her complications, real quick. 

I am still scared, and I hurt inside really bad, and I want you to 
know this, not because I want pity or, "Oh, let's feel bad for Cindi," 
but because it is fact and it is happening to so many other people. 

Today I am still lucky enough to have Laura. She is still alive. 
There are going to be 70 families today that are just going to die 
inside because somebody they love is going to be killed today by a 
drunk driver. 

I am'begging you~ and I am pleading with you to move as swiftly 
as possible on this issue. I strongly feel that some good, tough Fed-
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eral legis~ation with som~ teeth in it is vital in helping to remove 
drunk drIv~rs f~om our !.ughways· and hopefully saving some lives. 

I would Just lIke to reIterate a --;tatement that I have said for a 
Jong time now. Drunk driving is .. lOt an accident; it is a crime and 
it should be treated as one. ' 

Thank you very much. 
. Senator DOLE. Thank you very much. 

Did Senator Heflin pose questions to the panel earlier? 
Ms. JOHNSON. No. 
Senator DOLE. First of all, I think what we would like to learn 

from the P!IDel, in additi?n to the tra~c firsthand experiences you 
have had, IS how you feel you can motivate law enforcement pros
ecutors, and the courts to more effectively attack the drunk driver 

·pr01;>leI? Wh~t are you doing as an organization or organizations. 
CIndI, we WIll start with you. 
Ms. LAMB. In M~ryland we have worked very closely with the 

Maryland State PolIce. In some of our ways of getting the issue out 
and getting things done, we do not attack people and go to the 
press, yell ~nd scream, and act like wild people. We will try to 
work as ratlOna~ly and closely as we can with anybody. 

The State pohce have been more than helpful in their efforts to 
remove the drunk drivers. In the court system, we have done some 
court watching; we have monitored the courts. We are trying to 
change the judges' attitude; this is vital. . 

~ feel t~at ~ lot of judges, when they see a guy in a three-piece 
SUIt standIng In front of them, all cleaned up, even though he has 
been arreste~ fo~ dru~k driving, may say, "Gee, that could have 
been me; let s gIve thIS guy a break." That attitude needs to be 
changed, and we are working with the judges now regarding hope
fully changing that attitude. 

. Ou~ organization has groyvn tremeI?-dously; it is a national orga
nIzation now. Peo:ple are Just stan~Ing up and saying, "This is 
enough; we are gOIng to do somethIng about this," and they are. 
~enato~ DOLE. Have. you actually identified any judges that you 

belIeve gIve drunk drIvers preferential treatment where it is not 
deserved? Is that. part ~f your efforts to try to identify those law 
enforcement offiCIals or Judges? . 

Ms. LAMB. Yes. 
Senator DOLE. What do you do after yOu identify a judge let us 

say? ' 
M.S. LAMB: Speaking. of my particular cas.e, for the man who hit 

me It was h18, fourth tIme for drunk driving. He had been in front 
of the same Judg~' for his three prior convictions-Judge Stanley 
B~nnett of FrederIck County. When the judge was asked why he let 
t~IS ~a.n. back o~t ~:m the road, his answer was, in effect: "If I put 
hIm In JaIl, he WIll Just get out and do it again." 

I do not mean to sornd like we take an ax to everybody but this 
. kind of attitude is dis~usting and is exposed to the press. 'We have 
,!orked very.closely WIth the press, and we are learning how to uti
lIze the ~edla as far as exposing this type of attitude is concerned 
and gettIn&, o~t the fac.t that more people are killed by drunk driv
ers than VICtims of CrIme. Yet drunk driving is not considered a 
crime. 

;, 

it 



24 

Senator DOLE. What about other members of the panel? What 
are you doing to motivate the public interest and action, not just to 
support your efforts but to pressure law enforcement officials, and 
in this case Congress to not only look at the problem but try to find 
some way to address it? 

Ms. JOHNSON. We are writing a great many letters, and I have 
started monitoring the courts. It has been kind of an eye opener, 
not just in DWI but in finding the attitudes of the judges. It is a 
very difficult situation, becau.se judges do not. w:=tnt to have apy
thing mandated to them-theIr power and theIr Influence. I thInk 
they do feel, as Cindi said: "There, l)ut for the grace of God, go I." 

More than that, I think they do have an argument, in that if yo.u 
put a person in jail, ~he first thing th~y do when they co~e out IS. 
go to a bar. I am talkIng about alcoholIcs. I personally feel It would 
be a very good thing, at least in the second offense, if they gave the 
choice to either go to jailor to in-house treatment. Sending them to 
AA is putting a burden on AA. They do not really feel their job is 
to be police. 

I also know that a lot of them can go to AA meetings, and the 
first place they go when they are out is a bar. There is a great deal 
of time between their arrest and their conviction. They are still 
driving for maybe 6 months or a year. . 

Our own county, Baltimore County, is beginnin!.; to monitor the 
judges. At the end of this period we are goi.ng to compile our fig
ures and find out who we think is doing what. Then I guess we will 
have to go to the press with it. There is no other way to get the 
word out. 

Senator DOLE. I would not wait too long to go to the press. 
Ms. JOHNSON. We want facts. 
Senator DOLE. I know-once you have facts. 
Mr. PLYMAT. Senator, I cannot emphasize too strongly the need 

for a per se law that sets a legal limit in the amount of alcohol you 
can have in the blood. 

I am a lawyer, sir, and a former State senator. In the early days 
we had the provision on speed that unreasonable speed was wrong, 
and then it would be a jury question. 

Then we got smart, and we put in a speed limit. Today, if you get 
caught going 80 miles an hour and the radar says so, you plead 
guilty; you do not have a jury trial on whether you behaved badly; 
that is it, and you pay up. 

What we need to do in this country-and only 15 StateR have 
done it-is get all the States of the Union to pass a specific stand
ard of law violation. If your blood' alcohol reading is over 0.10, it is 
an offense in itself. Then the juries go out of the picture and all the 
fancy defense tactics go out, and people have to' face the fact that 
they are going to get hit. 

I happen to believe in a 2-day jail sentence. It is somewhat argu
able, but it has worked. It is working in my State. I was responsi
ble, as a State senator, for getting that adopted in Iowa. Now we 
have got the per se law in Iowa, and we are going after it. When 
that is done, then we need the media to get that to everybody. 

I am chairman of the Substance Abuse Commission in my State, 
and I am very sympathetic about alcoholics. Right now in Des 
Moines, we are sending the people who look like they are alcoholics 
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into intensive investigation to see if they are. Then we are putting 
them into· therapy, and we are watching them for a year. We are 
on their shoulder. Everybody who drinks and drives knows that he 
is going to go to jail, he is going to get hit, or he is going to go into 
that tiresome analysis and be forced into therapy. 

I cannot emphasize too strongly that half of this problem or 
more occurs between 9 o'clock at night and 3 o'clock in the morn
ing. We need to get people to realize that they are not safe on the 
roads. They should stay off the roads. I do not drive after 9 o'clock 
at night, particularly on Friday and Saturday night when 30 per
cent of the cases occur. 

We have to tell people, and when pecple begin to realize that 
their freedom is being impaired because they cannot drive after 9 
0' clock at night, they are going to be sympathetic and say: "Well, 
I'm going to stop this and help." You see? 

In the absence of a per se law, a lot of enforcement officers say: 
"What's the use? We can see that he has got a blood alcohol level 
of 0.13, and the courts will not do anything." We need to see that 
when. they are convicted they get some suspension. Maybe not a 
year-of course not-the law will not sell. 

I think we need to monitor people coming out of bars with these 
things [indicating machine]. We need to have a policeman, not 
saying, "You have to blow this," but saying to the guy coming out, 
"You appear to us to be impaired. Shall I tell you what your blood 
alcohol reading is?" They can take the reading and say, "Look, 
man, you are 0.12. Get somebody to drive you home who is sober/' 
If the guy says, "I won't," they can say, "OK, we'll follow you, and 
if you leave we will arrest you." We cannot really have roadblocks 
in thil:l country vei'Y easily on account of the U.S. Supreme Court 
decision. So we are stumped there. . . 

We need mass education, such as this little leaflet [indicating 
leaflet] which will be used to the extent of 150,000 copies being put 
into the sacks of every bottle of liquor sold in the State of Ala
bama, Utah, and Iowa. We need to tell people that they have a 25-
percent impairment in driving ability at half of the legal limit. We 
need mass education in that area. 

I also think we need to close bars at earlier hours. They run all 
night in Nevada. They have been running until 5 o'clock in the" 
morning in A.laska and opening at 8. The citizens referendum in 
Anchorage last month came down 2 to 1 to back it up to 2:30 in the 
morning and keep it closed until 10 . 

We have got to realize that drinking all night long in bars is just 
crazy. We have got to zero in on that. There are just so many 
things. My testimony is" 18 pages long, sir, and I do not have the 
time to do it here. 

The most important thing of all, beside th~ per se law, is a na
tional commission needed to find out what good things work in one 
State and what have failed, pass the information back and forth, 
and get citizen involvement. 

President Reat=;'an has stressed the fact that citizen involvement 
is right, and we have multitudes of volunteers who will work for 
nothing. We do not need piles of money, but we need a Federal 
commission. I am so pleased that you have added your signature to 
the letter going to President Reagan. I know you have plenty of ex-
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posure to our President, and I hope you will pass your own person
al word along to him if you get a chance. 

Senator DOLE. I did not mention it to the President, but I did 
mention it to Mr. Friedersdorf, the director of congressional rela
tions, this morning. That is just the beginning. I did indicate to 
him that I thought it might be something the President should 
take a close look at. 

Are you working with the industry? Do you have any contact 
with the industry? 

Mr. PLYMAT. You mean the alcoholic beverage industry? Well, to 
some extent I do. I am a member of a Coalition for Adequate Alco
holism Programs, and they are represented on that commission. I 
realize that they may have mingled feelings about some of this, but 
I find some constructive attitudes. They are concerned about drunk 
driving too. 

Of course, if you really start buttoning down on bars operation, 
there are going to be some people in the industry who might have 
conflicting views on that. But we have got to sacrifice that in terms 
of saving lives. 

I think the intelligent people in that industry ",viII go along with 
reasonable restraints. I personally think so. I have no personal ani
mosity toward them, although I might be suspected of having 
them. 

Senator DOLE .. Cindi, du you have anything else you would like to 
add? 

Ms. LAMB. I just want to briefly give you an outline of what hap
pened in Maryland this past year. Shortly after my daughter's and 
my accident, we went to Governor Hughes and asked for a State 
task force. We utilized the press in this request, which I believe did 
put some kind of pressure on Governor Hughes to take some 
action, and he did. . 

A State task force was initiated. It included all of the top offi
cials and all of the different outlets as far as drunk driving is con
cerned~ with police officers, judges, rehabilitation experts, AA 
people, State senators, et-cetera. They have met, and they, are still 
meeting. They came up with six suggestions for changing the 
Maryland laws. They were revised, re-revised, and they were 
,passed this year. That was action taken on the State level. 

On the local level, we have county task forces in six different 
counties in Maryland now. They are looking at their particular 
problems within their own counties and hopefully making what
ever changes are necessary to protect the people right in their own 
communities. That is where it starts-within the community. 

I am hoping that a Presidential commission can be appointed 
and the top officials from around the country can get together and 
do the same thing and come up with some Federal legislation for 
across the country. I think it would be excellent. I really would like 
to see that. ' 

Senator DOLE. I think that if it is properly structured, it would 
be good. Many Presidential commissions expend taxpayers' dollars 
and file their reports, they are filed with all the other reports of 
Presidential commissions, and nothing ever happens. It would have 
to be structured in such a way that 'there would be some responsi
bility to report some findings as well as suggested legislation. 
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Ms. LAMB. I can assure you that the people of MADD will be 
monitoring whatever the commission does. If there is nothing that 
is new, then the voice of MADD will be heard. 

Senator DOLE. Ms. Johnson, is there anything you would like to 
add? 

Ms. JOHNSON. Just briefly. The American Council on Alcoholism 
asked me to say this if I had a chance. They would suggest to you 
the idea of El minimum drinking age throughout the country. They 
feel a great deal of damage is done with young people going from 
one State to the other and coming back. They think it would be a 
great help. I am passing that on to you. 

Senator DOLE. I think the biggest problem there would be en
forcement, at any age; that might be helpful. 

Mr. PLYMAT. Senator, when Michigan raised the legal drinking 
age from 19 back to 21, there was a marked reduction in fatal traf
fic accidents and offenses among .this group. Many States have 21, 
and that is where it ought to go, and hopefully it win. They are 
sweeping the country now to raise it. That is not going to stop 
every kid from drinking, but it is going to help the school officials, 
and it is going to dampen down the idea that you can do it. 

Young people, when they are learning to drive, are also very sen
sitive to being influenced by alcohol in their driving conduct. 

Senator DOLE. Yes; I assume that we will hear statistics from 
other witnesses on which age group most offenders fall into and 
other data of that nature that will help Ul:; make a judgment. 

I appreciate your testimony very much, and I again apologize for 
keeping the panel waiting. We will make every effort to keep this 
moving. I know that the two ladies involved will make every effort 
to keep the public focused on the problem. 

I would hope that we could encourage this administration in a 
nonpartisan way to really look at this problem a~d find some way 
to address it. Our next witness will be Ms. Steed. Maybe she can 
give us some indication of what they are doing now. 

Ms. LAMB. Thank you very much. 
Ms. JOHNSON. Thank you. 
MI'. PLYMAT. Thank you. 
[The prepared statements of Ms. Johnson and Mr. Plymat and an 

article prepared by the American Council of Alcohol Problems 
follow:] 

PREPARED STATEMENT OF SHIRLEY W. JOHNSON 

. On a Sunday night two and a half years ago .~y twenty-five yeat; old son .w,as 
killed on his way to work by a drunken drIver drIvmg on the wrong SIde of a dIVId
ed highway at high speed. John was a paramedic and had many times expressed his 
anger at drunken drivers when he had to care for the dying and the injured. 

The woman who killed him had had her Maryland license revoked and was driv
ing on a North Carolina license. She had had her insurance cancelled due to three 
times losing control of her car and hitting objects. 

One month before killing my son she totaled a womans parked car and told State 
police she was sucking on throat lozenges, so they did not test her though they as
sumed her intoxicated. In my son's death she had a blood alcohol level of 0.26 taken 
for medical reasons and therefore inadmissable as evidence. Twice her trial was 
postponed, and when finally brought to trial, after plea bargaining, she was fined 
and sentenced to one year in jail which was suspended for attending AA three 
nights a week; and her license was re'Y'oked. This is not satisfB:ct.ory for a fata~ity in 
my mind. Six months later she was pIcked up for drunken drIvmg, and her lIcense 
was again revoked seven months later. I found this out and asked the judge to check 
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it out; her sanctions were imposed for breaking probation but she had the right to 

ap8e:~ i~aiting for further information from the District Court in Belair, Maryland. 
I believe the case is still pending-2% yrs.) . I 

As I became involved I learned that there is .nothiJ:;g unsual. about ~his case. n 
fact the Maryland State Police said thir. woman receIved a strIcter sentence than 

m~~~el that the United States Judicial System is failiD;g th~ p,ublic. My fami~y uPci 
brin ina and my schooling had always taught me to belIeve In!t and to ltrust I~ ~n 
now 1: a~ disillusioned and so is the public. This applies to not Just drunKen dnVIng, 
but all criminal acLS. . . . t' b 

There is plea bargaining to a lesser charge, inCOnsIStency In sen enCIng, pro a
tion, parole, dismissal on technicalities, and v.:hat appears ~o ~e overconcern for the 
ri hts of the defendant at the expense of the rIghts of the VictIm. . 

1n practically all fatal alcohol related accidents the defendant has a prIor h'ecord 
of revoked or suspended license, suspended sentences, and DWI ~rrests. y" e ave. a 
warning system and it is not used or not on the record. The NatlOnal.Dnver RegiS-
ter must be used. . h t t h k 

Local police told me that many judges ~o not bother USing t e comp~ er 0 c ec 
the record, and the police feel discouraged as they arrest drunken drIvers only to 
pick them up again a month later. . d 

I have been monitoring the court on DWI cas~s ~nd fo.unil.75 percent receIve p~o
bation and 20 percent suspended sentences. ThIs IS not ,.ip.clrrent to drunked dfh'
'n L~ws no matter how good they are, are useless 11 uLley are not enforce: e d f? ~st know that there is a real chance that he'll be arrested and conVIct~d, a~d~~~n off the roads until he is judf?ed a. responsible dr~ver. Then maybe we VIC
tims of drunk drivers will not have to lIve WIth such tragedies. 
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.PREPARED~TEMENT OF HI~ N. PLYMAT 

The announced purpose of this hearing is to examine the actions of state and 

local courts as they respond to our severe drinking-driving problem. If we are to 

make real progress, however, we must examine the whole spectrum of the drinking
driving problem. 

We must find out what is happening across the country--what the specific problems 

are and how they are now being approached. We must examine all phases of the problem. 

This may involve many things not related to the court system airectly. And we should 

come up with a comprehensive program of action. This will require research, exchanges 

of information between states, cities, courts, public officials, legislators, police, 

safety organizations, schools, and multitudes of ordinary citizens. 

The general public needs to be made aware of the nature and extent of the 

problem. Citizen involvement in prevention should be invited. Then they will 

become volunteers who can aid law enforcement officials and courts and back the 

<Ictions of judges who develop the c'ourage to assess adequate penalties and provide 
proper restrictions. 

Today our judicial system is overburdened and can not handle the volume of 

cases that normally arise. We must do things that find the alcoholics and get 

them off the roads and into therapy. We must also deal with the car'eless social 

drinkers who drink and drive with little concern for others. 

Police are often reluctant to arrest drinking drivers because they feel 

the courts will not do justice to the cases. The foundation of this problem is 

the fact that in most states we have inadequate laws which are vague and indefinite. 

These laws operate with presumptions instead of a specific standard of law Violation. 

T~erefore police feel it is futile to arrest those who are drinking and driving. 

Often charges are reduced to reckless driving. Often bail is set at a low figure 

a,nd the driver is back on the street, quickly drinking and driving again. Until 

OUI" people become educated and become active in supporting police and the courts 

there will be no really effective judicial action • 

I feel qualified to respond with my testimony today because I haVe been 

involved in the area of alcohOl concerns for the past fifty years. In my high 

School' and college days I was a leader in youth edUcation about alcohol. After 

entering the practice of law in Des Moines, I worked to improve the laws in my 

state which related to the use of alcohol, and also a number of years later when 

I became a State Senator. While affiliated with an auto insurance company. I became 

interested in the specific problem of alcohol-related accidents. I 'conducted 

88-986 0-82--3 
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a national study of the nature and extent of the drinking-driving problem, con

sulting traffic officialsand coroners. I became convinced in the early 1940's 

that drinking was involved in 50% of all fatal traffic accidents. 

This led me to conceive the idea of an auto insurance company to insure 

exclusively persons who did not Use alcohol. This company, the Preferred Risk Mutual 

Insurance Company of Des Moines, started with a very modest capital in 1947. Today 

it is one of the largest and most successful companies in the country. Its 

1980 asset total was over $160,000,000; its premium collection over $119,000.000; 

its policies in force over 400,000; it's current surplus (net worth) is over 

$67,000,000. It is a mutual company owned by its policyholders; it has 2500 agents, 

is licensed in 48 states and has 37 branch offices. Best's Insurance Reports gives 

the company an A+ rating and says that its rate structure averages 15% to 20% 

below the so-called "Manual" which are the rates charged by the "Bureau" 

companies, which comprise 60% of the companies writing casualty insurance. The 

record of this company provides some evidence of what might be hoped for if we were 

able to substantially reduce the excessive 'costs of drinking-driving accidents 

across our country. The losses as a result of a drinking-driving accident are 

sometimes astronomical in dollar costs. 

I have served Preferred Risk for many years as President and then Board 

Chairman and am now Chairman of the Board Emeritus. For many years I served as 

legal counsel for the American Council on Alcohol Problems. Since my retirement 

from active duty at Preferred Risk. I have served the organization as Executive 

Director. This organization has operated in the field fo~ over 75 years and has 

some thirty state groups affiliated with it and some 2000 individual associate 

members. It issues a quarterly publication, The American Issue. and its main office 

is at 6955 University Avenue in Des Moines. Iowa. 

- - - - - - - -
COURTS NEED TO 'DEAL DIFFERENTLY WITH TWO CLASSES OF DRINKING DRIVERS. 

There are two kinds of drinking drivers. One consists of alcoholics or severe 

problem drinkers who should be viewed as addicts to th~ drug alcohol and who do 

!lot have adequate control of their actions in drinking. The other group consists 

of persons Who drink excessively in bars and in socia1 groups without rea.] concern" 

for the dangers they create. Hopefully their minds can be reached and actions 

can be controlled if they are dealt with quickly by il11l1ediate prosecutions and 

penalties. Prompt and positive actions by courts will reach the press and the 

minds of thousands who are drinking and d"riving w'ithout regard to the dangers 
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oy' the penalties will be reached and hopefully they will conclude that the day 

of reckoning has arrived. 

The average judge needs a great deal of education in order to make an 

initial decision on the category that each offender fits as he comes before him. 

However, judges. even if well educated, can not always be expected to do a 

really efficient job of this task. This is where specialists are needed. 

A PROGRAM DEALING WITH ALCOHOLICS AND PROBLEM DRINKERS 

In Polk County, Iowa (Des Moines) an innovative program is in operation. If 

an offender has no felony record and is not otherwise barred, he or she is turned 

over to an assessment center for evaluation. This evaluation takes over two 

hours. It uses testing, a mental examination, contacts with others, use of a 

check list of factors that indicate addiction, etc. If this study i~dicates that 

the offender is truly an alcoholic or severe problem drinker, la(king in adequate 

mental control over his or her conduct. the person is referred to a therapy facility 

for a long term program which hopefully will result in the solution of the problem. 

In the past fiscal year, ending June 30. 19B1. the total arrests in Polk County 

were 1963 and 968 persons were referred to this agency for assessment. In the 

case of the 968, around 90% were referred to a therapy facility. and the remainder 

were returned tq the Country Attorney for immediate prosecution. Those who were 

turned over to the therapy groups were given deferred prose~, which will 

continue for one year. provided there is no recurrence of a drinking-driving charge. 

At the end of the year. if the therapy appears to have resulted in success, and they 

do 40 hours of public service work, the charge is dropped. 

At this time it is impossible to know if this program is effective in handling 

the problem of repeat offenses. One may question how many of this group do find 

and maintain sobriety, i.e., continuing total abstinence (the only real answer to 

these problems), but it is possible that if some of ' these people do continue to 

drink, they may conclude that they will not drink and drive under any circumstance. 

A study will be made to determine the long term effectiveness of this program. This 

deferred prosecution response is based upon the claimed ~rosecutor's discretion 

right. These people are considered to be entitled to this type of handling on the 

basis of the belief that the individuals are sick and unable to control their conduct 

at the time of the offense and this fact justifies the different treatment from 

those who may be considered purely volitional violators. This innovative program 

was instituted by Pol k County Attorney Dan Johnston and JOh'nTapscott~ who is ,head 

of the Des Moines Chapter of the National Council on Alcoholism. Mr. Tapscott. 

~/ith the aid of state and county money, set up the assessment center. 
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IMPORTANT ACTIONS NEEDED FOR RECKLESS SOCIAL DRINKERS 

Records indicate that many offenders are persons in their teens and twenties. 

Most often these persons are not alcoholics or severe probl~ drinkers. Also, 

many others do not classify as alcoholics. The courts should view these people 

as purely volitional la\1 violators. They should be handled firmly by the cOllrts with 

adequate fines, etc. In one recent case a young teenage driver (the press reported 

as intoxicated on alcohol and drugs) ran into two girls on bicycles and killed one 

and injured the other. The bail set by the court was only $300. In another recent 

case in Iowa a 19-year-old driver who had been convicted of speeding seven times 

in 1981 was driving between 75 and 100 miles an hour at 2:35 A.M. While traveling 

in the wrong lane of an int~rstate four-lane road, he ran into another car, killing 

the other driver and severely injuring the driver's wife. The police had been 

looking for this youth for many months to serve a suspension of driver's license. 

He is charg~d with manslaughter and drunk driving. He was released from jail the 

same day upon posting a bond of $5500.00. 

Should our law and court administration be slJch as to permit such a driver 

to be free to drive again immediately, as he might do, even without a legal license? 

What should penalties be in the case of this offense? Should deferred sentences 

be permitted under the law? If so, on what terms? In such cases should there be 

suspension of licenses to drive for some period of time? Some states require a two

day mandatory jail term for convicted drivers? Is this a wise penalty? I will 

consider this a bit latel". 

THE IMPORTANCE OF A "PER SE" LAW IN ADMINISTRATION 

We need the passage of "per se" laws by all states which have not already 

passed such laws. Such a law simply says that operating a motor vehicle with 

an alcohol level above a specified percentage in the blood (.10% in the usual 

case) is an offense "per se" (in itself). A penalty is then ~ffixed for the 

offense. I believe ten states have such laws. They constitute an important and 

necessary.improvement over the usual laws which simply outlaw "driving while intox

icated" or "driving under the influence." These usual laws have defined this state 

i~ terms of a percentage of blood alcohol and then said that if an alcohol reading 

is that. percentage or above, the driver is "presumed" guilty of the offense. Unfo\,,

tunately, those presumptions are often quite effect'!vely overcome by testimony 

of the defendant and his friends. Under a "per se" law a specific and effective 

"speed limit" is put on drinking and driving. 

Under the presumption laws the judge submits the chemical test (blood or 

breath) of the defendant for the jury's consideration in connection with the testi-
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mony of the defendant and friends. Under the "per se" law the judge simply in.structs 

the jury to determine if the test of blood or breath has been properly given. 

If that is found and the test given has revealed (the usual) .10%, the judge says 

the jury shall find the defendant guilty of an offense. 

In the early daysbf our country tile offense of speeding was simply defined 

as "unreasonabl e speed." We got nowhere in controll ing speed under such a vague 

st~~dard. In a similar way we have not made progress under our presumption laws in 

controlling drinking driving. We need the specific limit, as we have in the case of 

speed. 

When we have a "per se" law we can expect a new attitude on the part of police. 

When an officer finds a reading of .10% or above he can tell the driver this is an 

offense. The offender may decide he has no real option but to plead guilty. Today 

when police radar says a person has been exceeding the speed limit, there is not 

much he can do but plead guilty. That has caused most drivers to decide they 

must obey the law. When "per se" laws are adopted and the public is adequately 

educated, with the help of the media. there is reason to believe drivers will 

decide they can no longer get away with drinking and driving if caught. Courts 

will find their case loads dropping to reasonable levels. There will be very few 
.. 

ju.ry trials on the quest; 10 of "driving while intoxicated." Such a case may still 

occur, however, ,~here for one reason or another no chemi ca 1 test readi ng has been 

obtained. 

It is bel ieved that with "per se" laws, police will be inspired to intensify 

their efforts to apprehend those who are drinking and driving. And with the public 

demanding such action, we will begin to reduce the problem. am informed that the 

following states now have "per se" laws: Vermont, New Yor'k, Delaware, North Carolina, 

Florida, Wisconsin, Minnesota, Missouri. South Dakota, Nebraska, Utah, Oregon, Maine, 

California and Iowa.' 

There is ample justification for "per se" laws based on blood alcohol levels 

of .10% or lower. Researchers have known for years that even a small amount of 

alcohol in the blood impairs driving ability. In 1951 the Reader's Digest reported 

on a well-known Swedish study of expert driver:s which revealed that even a slight 

amount of alcohol "caused a deterioration ·of between 25 and 30 percent in driving 

performance." This and many other tests. have revealed the .somewhat surprising 

conclusion that impairment is significant after as little as two beers or two mixed 

drinks, at a blood-alcohol level of .05%. Variolisexpel'ts have concluded that when 

a blood a1coho~ level of .10% is reached, a person is physica11y unfit to drive a car. 

During my term in the Iowa Senate (1972-1976) I was unable to convince the 
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Senate that Iowa should pass a "per se" law; but in 1981 the Iowa Legislature did 

pass such a law with the level of .13%, which I believe is too high. 

SHOULD MANDATORY TWO-DAY JAIL SENTENCES BE REQUIRED? 

~Jhi1e I was unable to secure a "per se" law, as a result of my efforts in the 

Senate. the Iowa Legislature. finally passed a requirement of a two-day jail sentence 

for convicted drinking-driving offenders. At that time I sincerely believed this 

was wise and would have deterrent value on the drinking-driving public. For 

those who went through the traumatic experience it would be a powerful message 

not to repeat the performance. 

I came to this belief upon learning about experience in the courts of Chicago. 

In 1970 a study was conducted there under the supervision of Dr. Edward J. Kelleher. 

Director of the Circuit Court Psychiatric Institute. The study was of 400 drivers 

who had been arrested for driving while intoxicated--250 of which were convicted, 

100 found not guilty and 50 of whom were defendants from suburban courts. It . . 

revealed that only 20% were alcoholics and 80% were occasional or social drinkers. 

This led Judge Raymond K. Berg to say that there existed a prevalent and deplorable 

attitude among the driving public that DWI laws were made for chronic alcoholics 

and not for the occasional or social drinker. He said he thought the occasional 

drinker would th'ink. "That man they're talking about is a drunk, an alcoholic, 

not me." This attitude, Judge Berg c!inc1uded, increased the possibil ity that the 

social drinker would overdrink and drive. 

It is well-known that during the Christmas and New Year season there are 

higher levels of drinking and resulting drinking-driving. In December, 1970, 

under the leadership of Judge Berg, then supervising judge of the Traffic Court 

in the Circuit Court of Cook County, Illinois, an announcement was made by the judges 

of that court that anyone convicted of driving whi'le under the influence after 

December 17th that year would be sentenced to a minimum of seven days in jail 

coupled with a one-year's driver license revocation. This was widely publicized 

by the media in Chicago and known throughout the area. In fact, when I rode a 

plane to Chicago during that period I was warned by. a passenger sitting next to me 

to avoid all drinking-driving in Chicago. 

Fatalities during, the period Dec. '18 through Jan. 3 totaled §. compared with 

22 for the same period in 1959; ~. in 1968; and 25 in 1967. During that period 

al~o there were 994 personal injury accidents, a substantial drop from the totals 

of 2003, 2028 and 2156 io the three previous years. This program was continued 

during the first quarter of )971. T~e fatalities fQr the first quarter of 1971 

represented a 32% decreas~ from the first quarter of 1970: a 42% decrease from 
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the first quarter of 1969; and a 41% decrease from the first quarter of 1968. 

The March 31, 1971 report of the Illinois State Police covering traffic fatalities 

throughout the state indicated that they were up throughout the state with the 

exception of Chicago. Also, personal injury and pY'operty damage accidents 

dropped during the first quarter of 1971 OVBr 1970. Personal injuries dropped 

from 9491 to 8341 and property dam~g~'accidents dropped from 36,116 to 32,891. 

A year later there Was a report of ~ study by three researchers which claimed 

that the Chicago "crackdown" produced no reduction in the city's number of car-crash 

fatalities or arrests. I read the report and was not impressed by what seemed to . 

me to be efforts to explain away the figures by suggesting other possible factors, 

and a claim that Milwaukee had had similar reductions without a "crackdown". It 

is quite possible that the "fear" of arrest on drinking and driving developed in 

Chicago may have carried over into near:\Jy Milwaukee and caused the comparable 

reduction without an actual "crackdown," 

I hear comments that some experts in the field of traffic safety are opposed 

to the mandatory short jail sentence. They say it would fill the jails beyond 

capacity. But an Iowa state safety official who supports mandatory jail terms 

says that during the week most county jails are only 20% filled, There is some 

fear that a jail sentence provision would cause some people to believe this is 

all that needs to be done. Many times the jail sentence is avoided by ~udges who 

permit persons to "plea bargain" down to reckless driving. The severity of 

pena1ity is less important than the feeling that one will be caught and suffer 

almost certain conviction and penalty. 

New York this year passed a law mandating jail sentElnces of 7 to 180 days and 

fines of $200 to $500 for those convicted of drunken driving after their licenses 

were suspended or revoked for an alcohol-related driving offense. 

Maine has just passed new laws on drinking dri~ing. In the case of repeat 

offt.: .. Jers and speeders chargEld with criminal violations and conVicted, judges 

are required to impose a ,minimum $350 fine and at least a two-day jail term. 

Gove,rnor Joseph Brennan recently said: "1 never bel ieved in' mandatory. jail 

sentence before, but we felt that nothing else had worked." 

Whether the fear of a jail term provides good deterrence can probably only 

be ascertained by further research--intervh)ws with those who have received this 

punishment and study of records to determine whether those so punished repeat 

their offenses as frequently as those who have not been jailed. 

When I was i.n the Iowa Senate and we were consideril)g qecriminalizing intoxica

tion. a lawyer who W!lS a recovered alcoholic called me. and urged me npt to vote 
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for that. He said he had had a severe drinking problem but had bep,n refusing to 

admit that he was an alcoholic. Then one night he was picked up and taken to jail. 

He said: "When that jail door swung closed on me and I found myself locked up for 

the night like a caged animal, it hit me like a ton of brick. The next morning 

when I got out I made a decision that this was the end of my drinking days. I 

went for therapy and have been 100% sober since." This caused me to decide that 

the two-day jail sentence was at least worth a real try in my state. 

MONITORING COURT ACTIONS 

Practice§ of deferred sentences, deferred prosecutions and plea bargaining 

have had an adverse effect in causing many persons who drink and drive to feel that 

even if they are caught, the penalty will not be severe. The Iowa Legislature 

has passed a law requiring a period of suspension of driver's license if a 

deferred sentence is granted. There are serious questions on the granting of low 

bail and paroles for persons who have been arrested for drinking driving offeuses. 

Sometimes very modest amounts are set, even where there is a death or severe injuiY 

in an accident. Citizen groups need to monitor what is going on in the courts 

and perhaps see that there is adequate publicity on outcomes, which in turn may 

result in improved actions in our court system. The suspension of drivers' licenses 

is important because, as it has been said: "Many a man will not stop drinking and 

driving to protect himself or others from injury or loss of life, but he will 

do so to protect his driver's license." 

If the courts learn that their actions are being monitored by persons who 

are in the court when cases are heard and by those who may check and tabulate 

results, it will create strong pressure on judges to resist the often skillful 

work of defense lawyers who are able to get people quickly released on modest 

bail, pled down to lesser charges, and in other ways dealt with leniently. 

r40NEY FOR ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS 

It is widely believed that the police do not have sufficient funds to 

and arrest drunk drivers, even where federally funded alcohol properly seek out 

. t' I hear that many of these federally action safety projects hat'e been in opera lon. 

funded programs are being eliminated because of the reduction in federai expenditures. 

Money is needed to provide adequate numb~rs of police) court' officials and others 

in an effective program seeking out and arresting violators., It is believed that 

even where dri'vers' licenses are suspended, large numbers of drivers continue to 

drive without a license. We need afficersto·monit6r such persons by frequently 

watching them when they depart from thefr residences or business places,.' SeVere 

penalties 'should be imposed upon the offense of driving without a license. 

37 

Efforts hav~ been made in Minnesota to pass a law to asses~ a 5e tax un 

liquor-by-the-rlrinl: sales. The amount of money that such a tax would raise is 

very large indeed. It would fund good action programs as well as needed funds 

for alcoholic reh~bilitation programs. So far the legislature there has refused to 

bring such a bill up for serious consideration. 

A good solution would be to raise the federal tax on beer, Wine and whiskey. 
There have been proposals in recent days to raise such taxes and taxes on 

tobacco by 100%, which might come close to meeting the federal deficit. It 

appears no such s'izeable taxes will be seriously considered with the 1982 elections 

looming. But a modest tax increase might well be adopted to meet money needs in 

dealing with the drinking driving problem. 

MONITORING OF BARS 

When Prohibition ended, many states set up state-owned liquor stores. It was 

claimed that the old saloon would not come back. The contention was that those 

wanting to drink should buy their bottles and take them home. Yet in due course 

liquor by the drink came back. Most of today's bars run into the wee hours, some

times to 4 and even 5 A.M. I believe it is all night in Nevada. 

My study in Iowa, covering the years 1970, 1971 and 1972 showed that the period 

from 9 P.M. to 3 A.M. of each day of th~ week accounted for 351 out of 665 fatal 

alcohol-related accidents, or 52.8%. These periods starting at 9 P.M. on Friday and 

Saturday nights accounted for 196 out of the 665 total or 29.5%. A similar study I 

did of the years 1976, 1977, 1978, and 1979 showed that these hours accounted for 

514 such accidents, or 56.9% of the total, and the Friday ~nd Saturday night periods 

accounted for 289, or 32% of the total. 

When 1iquor-by-the-drink became legal in most states it was argued that a 

man should be able to have a drink with his dinner. But bars do not close at. the 

end of a normal dinner period, but run hours afterward. 

It would be wise to require that any bar legally operating after 9 P.M. 

should ,be required at its ,cost to have an officer in attendance to observe patrons 

leaving the bar. The officer could invite patrons to test themselves with a 

convenient breath-testing device. If one suspectea of being impaired were to 

refuse, the officer could say that he or she would be followed. If the driver's 

conduct seemed impaired, then the person would be stopped and required to submit 

to a test on pain of losing a license in states which have the implied consent'laws. 

Since the passage of the new tough Maine laws on drinkin9 and driving. one 

popular night spot in Bangor added to their establishment'la pocket-size gadget 

which would test the blood alcohol level. A green li~ht indicates the'driver 
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can drive safely and an amber light indicates that someone who is sober should 

take the person home • 

If lahmakers are unwilling to require bars to pay for sucr. monitoring, it 

could be done with public funds, and then on a spot check basis, if funds were 

not ample to serve all bars in an area. 

CLOSING BARS AT AN EARLIER HOUR 

If bars were required by law to close at 9 or 10 P.M., I believe there would 

be 1 great reduction in our alcohol-related accident toll. Some claim this would 

merely shift the problem from the late night hours of closing to the hour after 

an eariier closing. This might be true to some degr~e. But when bars run into the 

wee hours, people who might have to go home earli~r before they became impaired 

sit and drink on and on, often losing track of the number of dnnks tilcY have had. 

They wind up a real menace on the road. Perhaps it seems unrealistic to expect 

that $tate laws could be passed to do this in the immediate future, but undoubtedly 

many city and county ordinance~ could be passed in areas where public concern 

proves adequate. 
MEDIA SHOULD RESPOND TO THE PROBLEM 

It is believed that the media has not given proper attention to the problem. 

There should be special efforts to get the 'media to carry the message to the 

public about the fact that in the case of arrest there will ,be adequate investiga

tions, license suspensions, adequate bail. and that citizen groups will monitor 

court actions. This would have deterrent value. The recommendation for people 

,to avoid driving on streets and h'~ways after 9 P.M. to the maximum extent 

possible would eliminate many targets for drinking drivers. There is a real 

challenge for the media in educating the public. 

NEEDED WARNINGS ON DANGERS OF MODERATE DRINKING AND DRIVING 

Most Americans drive with little knowledge of the dangers involved in even 

moderate drinking. They need to' be informed that the National Safety Council has 

recommended that everyone should wait one h('ur after e~'ery drink before driving. 

The alcoholic beverage trade ras campaigned with the statement that everyone 

should "know your limits." This implies that there is a safe level of alcohol 

as far as driving, is concerned. The focus should be on the avoidance of !LL 
drinking and driving. Attention should be given to the fact tht,t "HALF DRUNK 

DRIVERS ARE DANGEROUS, TOO." This is the title of a very popular and effective 

educational 1eaflet whic'h has been widely distributed by the P. aferred Risk 

Mutual Insurance Company and the A(rferican Council on Alcohol Problems. My son, 

William N. Plymat, Jr., was the author of this leaflet. 
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The following pages 42-45 contain material protected by the Copyright 
act of 1976 (17 U$S.C.): HOW (EVEN A LITTLE) DRINKING AFFECTS DRIVERS , 
HALF DRUNK DRIVERS ARE DANGEROUS TOO!,American Council of Alcohol Problems 
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The following pages (46-47) contain material protected by the copyright 
Act of 1976 (17 U.S.C.): ALCOHOL FACTS, 5 WAYS DRINKING CAN HURT YOU, 
American Council on Alcohol Problems, Inc. 
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A NEW NATIONAL ETHIC NEEDS DEVELOPMENT 
( 

This same idea 'is now being presented in the State of Wisconsin. Dr. Ralph F.Hudson 

of Eau Claire, Wisconsin, has challenged h:is fellow doctors in a three county 

medica1 society to adopt a resolution that ~drivers be required to follow 

the requirements imposed on public vehicle drivers and operators who must have 

zero· % level of alcohol in the blood. Railroad engineers, bus. drivers, airplane 

pilot!> and ambulance drivers and others are required to. be total abstainers while 

driving. As.a result their safety records are outstanding. This doctor, who has 

see~ the sad results of many alcohol-related accidents, ask;why~ drivers shQuld 

not be required to refrain from all use of alcohol. He is asking his state 

medical so(:iety to urge that policy as a matt-.!!r .of law. Following his leadership, 

a high school leader in his town and .his principal have just dispatched a letter 

to all high schools in Wisconsin, calling attention to the fact that one of thei~ 

student leaders was killed by a drunk driver, and asking that the above-mentioned 

pol icy of no alcohol for drivers be made a matter.of law in Wisconsin. Hopefully 

the day will arrive when this would become a national policy. Sjmi1ar citizen 

action throughout the country may hasten that day, In the meantime, even 

without such a law, good citizens should be stimulated to indicate their 

intentions to refrain from driving after drinking. 

NEED FOR EDUCATION 

As we said at the beginning, there is a need to face the entire alcohol 

problem if we are goin? to solve the drinking driVing problem, and this calls 

for much education of the public, especially ~outh and newly licensed drivers. 

The American Council on Alcohol Problems last ye:a:r brought forth a leaflet titled, 

WHAT YOU NEED TO KNOW ABOUT ALCOHOL FOR YOUR HEALTH AND SAFETY. This covered 

the subject of drinking and driVing, as well as other subjects and presented 

apr~posed warning for alcoholic beverage bottles. We printed 600.000 copies of 

this 1eaf1et for widespread distribution. We managed to persuade state-owned 

liquor stores\to distribute these to their customers. Now we have brought fortl1 

a new leaflet considered to be .of special value in educating youth. It is titled, 

ALCOHOL FACTS--5WAYS DRINKING CAN HURT YOU. It also deals with drinking and 

driving. Over 200,000 of these will be printed and made available very shortly. 

NEED FOR LABEL WARNINGS 

This need is now be'lng l'ecognized. ~. 1543 which would require warnings 

on labels of liquor bottles is ,a b~l1 which should pass •. Purchasers of bottled. 

iiquor ShCluldbe'confronted with the information such warnings would contain. 

and constantly rem'inded of the dangers involved. A section of such a warning 
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refers to the danger of drinking and driving. S. 1543 is being co-sponsored by 

12 U. S. Senators. There is a companion bill in the House sponsored by Rep. 

Geo. E. Brown,Jr. and co-sponsored by 17 other Representatives. Senator Jepsen 

proposes to amend S. 1543 to 'Include wilrnings on beer and ~/ine bottles also. 

ALCOHOL ADVERTISING 

It is reported that about $500 million a year is expended by the alcoholic 

beverage industries in promoting consumption of their products. Much of this;, 

is glamorous in nature and directed at youth. women and minority groups. It 

would be very desirable if such a volume of advertising could be reduced. Even 

where it is permitted. so-called "lifestyle" ads should be avoided. If the 

industry wishes to prove its sincerity in preventing alcohol problems al/d . 

aCcidents, without the requirements of legislation. it could avoid such advertising. 

The passage of the bill. H. R. 1800. by Rep: Geo. E. Brown. Jr. (0:. CAl to 

make expenditures for alcoholic beverage advertising a non-deductible business 

expense in c.omputing net income fol" tax purposes would be of value. and also 

increase tax revenues into the U. S. Treasury. It could. in itself. provide the 

extra funds needed for the actions specified above. 

CURRENT EFFORT TO OBTAIN A NATIONAL COMMISSION 

The current Congressional effort to secure a National Commission to be appoint

ed by the President on the drinking driver problem follows the effort which began 

with the American Council on Alcohol Problems to obtain such a Commission. In 

August I was contacted by Sandy Golden. of Gaithersburg. Maryland. an investigative 

reporter. who told me of his efforts" spanning 15 months to secure such a COJmlission. 

I invited him to speak at the Annual Board Meeting of our Council in Minneapolis 

on September 17th. He suggested a letter to President Reagan and presented a pro

posed text. The Board responded immediately and 45 persons present at that 

meeting. representing some 30 organizations. jOined in signing it. This was sent 

to the President and we are hopefully awaiting a reply. 

This led. in turn, to a Congressional press conference on October 6th. The 

conference was hosted by Representatives Michael D. Barnes, James V. Hansen and 

Glenn Anderson. and resulted in many newspaper articles across the country and 

including the Washington Post. Mr. Golden was involved in helping preparations. 

testifying at the hearing and exhibiting a filln which showed the problem and the 

needs. At this conference. the Representatives m~ntioned announced they were 

sending a "Dear Colleague" letter to all members of the House and Senate. asking 

them to jOin with them in Signing a letter to President Reagan, which was 
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essentially the same in text as our letter. Already. at the time of prepal"ing 

this statement, 30 SenatOl's and 143 Representatives have authorized their names 

to be attached to the letter gOing to the President. 

Sandy Golden left private investigative work to dedicate himself to t~is 
mission of research. public speaking on the issue. working with government agencies. 

and organizing public education and activities in this field. He has worked 

independently without compensation during this period and deserves much credit. 

It shows what can be accomplished by one person when a serious human problem is 
recognized and needs attention. 

WHAT CAN A FEDERAL COMMISSION DO? 

As this statement indicates, there are many important aspects to be considered 

in responding total1y to. the seriousness of the dl'inking driving problem. I have 

outlined a number of them. This leads to the realization of the reason why a 

National COJmlission, on this problem would be helpful--even necessary. It ,could 

produce a master plan to cope with this problem. It could provide leadership and 

coordination for the task. It could develop publ iCiiwareness and inspire 

indiViduals, communities and states to volunteer their vigilance and support. 
Further, it could: 

1. Make investigations and receive reports of conditions in the various 

states; study trends in the problem ilnd actions taken which have worked and c'ould 

be followed in other states; study l~ws in various states and suggest changes; 

seek uniformity of laws across the country. 

2. Encourage formation of state and local task forces to take needed action. 

Efforts of citizen task forces, inM~rYland and Cal ifornia have a1 ready accomplished 

much with new 1aws being passed. law enforcement enhanced and citizen involvement 
accomplished. 

3. Seek co 11 abora t i on wi th enforcement, au~hor.i ti es, courts. medi a. 

rehabilitation agencies, public officials, schools and citizen groups. 

4. Develop changes in public attitudes on drinking and driving t9 prevent 
accidents. 

A National Commission on the drinking driving problem would implement many 

of the ideas and suggestions contained in this statpment. and in the end result 

in a substantial reduction of the annual de,~th toll from this problem. It would 

result in the reduction also of many other costs which are now borne by the 

taxpayers of this country. I am hopeful there wili be imnlediate forward motion 
in this direction. 

';1"~~·:9 . ~~~ _________________________________________________________________________ l __ ~ ______________ j'~l~~ __ ~~ ____________________ ~ _______________________________________________________ ~ __ ___ ~ ~"". . - I ' , _.,,, .. , ...... 
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The human brain has often been 
compared to a computer. Like a com
puter, the brain handles incoming 
data, then draws conclusions and 
makes decisions. However, unlike the 
computer, the brain takes a longer 
time to solve some problems and fre
quently makes mistakes. Unfortun
ately, some mistakes are fatal, e~
pecia11y those made behind the wheel 
of a car. 

Approximately 50,000 people lose 
their lives every year in traffic acci
dents, and about half of all traffic 
deaths result from accidents involving 
drinking drivers--driv~r> whose brains 
are "impaired" as a re.'.llt of consum
ing alcohol. 

In most states 8 blood.alcohol con. 
centration of one-tenth of one percent 
(0.10%) is considered evidence of 
drunk driving. The blood-alcohol con
centration (or "b.a.c. ") is usually de
termined by the arresting officer who 
requires the su,pected drinking driver 
to exhale into a breath analyzer; later 
a blood test may be taken to confirm 
how much alcohol was present in the 
driver's body. 

The figure of 0.10% should be 
kept in mind as the legal measure of 
"drunk driving". (The average person 
would have to drink 4 beers or mixed 
drinks in one hour, or 5 in two hours, 
or 6 in three hours to reach this blood
alcohol concentration since the body 
burns up alcohol at the rate of about 
one beer or mixed drink or glass of 
wine per hour.) The blood-alcohol 
concentration is important to under
,tanding how alcohol affects driving 
performance. 

ARE DANGEROUS TOO! 

How Do We Know? 
There are two methods by which 

researchers study the effects of alcohol 
as it relates to highway accidents. One 
is to give experienced drivers measured 
amounts of alcohol, then observe their 
actual driving performance in specially 
designed road tests. Another method 
is to test the effects of alcohol on 
various components of driving ,kill 
while the subject is seated in a labo
ratory. 

In the 1950's a number of research
ers conducted driving performance 
tests obtaining very similar results. One 
such test 'vas designed by Dr. Leonard 
Goldberg of Sweden's Caroline Insti
tute. He chose 37 expert drivers, mo,t 
of whom were driving instructors, and 
gave them enough to drink to produce 
blood-alcohol concentralions of .05%. 
The drivers performed a number of 
tests on a closed course, and their ini
tial sober scores were compared with 
their performance after drmking. Al
so, part of the group did not consume 
any alcohol, serving as a "control 
group". As reported in a Reader's 
Digest article published in 1951: 

"The drivers in the drinking group 
took lunger to make their second run 
than their first, although they now had 
the advantage of familiarity with the 
lests and the feel of tl:e car. In con
trast. Dr. Goldberg's control group
the drivers who did not drink between 
fITst and second runs-shortened their 
driving time by almost 20 percent. Dr. 
Goldberg concluded that even a slight 
amount of alcohol 'caused a deteriora
tion of between 25 and 30 percent in 
driving performance of expert driv~rs.' 
And on the three tests most closely 
corresponding to actual driving, ahility 
was impaired on rbe average by 41.8 
percent." 

The most noteworthy result of this, 
and many similar tests, is not that al
cohol impairs driving ability, which is 
3 lAcll known fact, hut rather the !\omc
what ~urprbing conclu~inn that imp.nir~ 
ment is significant after as little as two 
beers 01' two mixed drinks, at a blood
alcohol level of .05%. 

How Does Alcohol Affect 
Driving Perfonnance'! 

Road tests can ,how that alcohol 
docs Impair driving !,erformance. But 
thcy dQ not explain how alcohol pro
duce, It, detrunental effect. Labora
tory tests, however, have provided 
that informatIon, and impuinnent of 
various drh'ing skills under the inllu· 
cnee of alcohol bas bi.'Cn precisely 
measured. 

The 1974 report, "Alcohol, Drug~ 
and Driving", prepared for the U.S. 
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Department of Transportation, states: 
"Alcohol affects driving because 

driving demands division of attention 
between a visual search·and·ruogni· 
tion task and a traeking task. 'l11b 
conclusion is supported by evidence 
that alcohol impairs the rate of pro
cessing information, an important in
gredient in rapid time.sharing of atten
tion between several inputs. 

The phrase "visual scarcb·and-rec
ognition task" simply means that driv
ing requires continual observation of 
olher vehicles, potential obstacles, stop 
lights and signs and road conditions. 
Looking through the wind~hield is not 
enough, the driver must al;o rely on 
the rear-view mirror and an occasional 
turn of the head to check the blind 
,pot when changing lanes. All the~e 
"isual procedures constitute a "search
and-recognition task". 

The term "tracking task" simply 
means "using the ,teering wheel". 
What the eye sees through Ihe wind
shield must be translated by the brain 
inlo corrective movements of the 
"heel to keep the vehicle in the proper 
lane of traffic, and to accurately nego
tiate turns at intersections. 

"Time.sbaring" can be tran,laled as 
"doing .everal thing, at once". Driv
ing is a time-sharing activity, requir
ing the brain to divide its attention be
tween "search-and-recognition" and 
"tracking". Different bits of incoming 
information must be analyzed in com
pUler-like fashion. then different kinds 
of decbions must be made. With thesc 
definitions in mind. consider what the 
scienlists have learned. 

What The Tests Show 
When a person vi~its an optome

trist for an eye examination, they are 
a,ked 10 read letters from a chart on 
the wall. The ability to see the letters 
clearly is referred to as "static visual 
acuity". Static visual acuity is not 
greatly afleeted by alcohol. so that the 
at>ility of the eye 10 resolve images 
clearly b not impaired if the visual 
torget is standing still. 

The ability to clearl} see objects in 
mol ion i, called "d}'namic ,'isunl BCU
itf'. This visual ability i~ very im
portant for driving. and it is impaired 
at blood le,·cls as low as .02 % in 
some subjects. So, nt one·fifth the 
blood·alcohol lewl needed for a drunk 
drh ing com'iclion, after as lillie a, one 
drink, a driver's ability to see and dis. 
tinguish moving objects will be im· 
paired, 

In haseball. the batter must follow 
Ihe flight of the ball after It leave, the 
rllcher', hand. That is an example of 
Umotoric coordination of binocuJar 
molilil} ", and it is impaired by alcohol 

at blood·levels as low as .03 %. 
"Dark adaptation" relates to the 

ability to see clearly at low light levels 
such as Occur when driving at night. 
The ability to detect low contrast, low 
illumination I11rgets is usually impaired 
at b1ood.alcohol levels of .08 % or 
bigher. 

"Peripher.1l vision" refers to what 
is cC'Ilmonly known as "seeing out of 
Ihe corner of the eye". When the ef
fects of alcohol on peripheral vision 
were firsl tested, no impairment was 
found. However. one teall' of research
ers tested" ... the signal detectability 
of Intemlillentl) presented lights over 
an extensive rallge of the ... visual 
field ... (while) the central visual field 
was occupied with a simple tracking 
task." Under these conditions peri
pheral vision vms impaired by 10% 
at a blood·alcohol level of .05%, and 
by 28% at a level of .10%. The re
scarchers conel"ded that the effect of 
alcohol on peripheral vision is a func
lion of the information load on central 
vision. 

What This Means 

To sum up the effects of alcohol on 
'\carch-and-rccognition tasks" t con
sider the following example. A driver 
is approaching an intersection which 
is controlled by a traffic light. It b 
night, and the intersection is dimly il
luminated. Also, this hypothetical 
driver has had two beers in the pre
ceding hour and has a blood-alcohol 
level of about .05%. As the driver ap
proaches the intersection the signal is 
green. but anolher car enters the in
lerseClion from the other street, run
ning the red light. Will an accident 
occur? The driver with the green light 
has been drinking. His ability to sec 
Ihe other car approaching is impaired 
because he is concentrating on steer
ing his own car. The ability of hi, 
ryes to follow the other car is im
paired, as is the ability 10 sec it clearly. 
The question of whether an accident 
\\iII occur depends 011 many Olher 
faclors. How quickly will the driver 
react after seeing the other car? How 
quickly "an his foot reach the brake 
peda!'! Merely from the standpoint of 
t'search-and-rccognition", the impaired 
driver is faeed wilh a much greater 
likelihood of an aecident than if he 
"'ere stoncoocold sober; however. "track
ing" and "lime-sharing" will also de
termine Ihe outcome of this situation. 

Complications 
"Tracking''. as we have defined it, 

lIIeans the abililV to ,teer a car aC~II
ralel} E)'c-hillllf LOllrulIlatU.m I!<' the Pri
mary ingredIent. Tracking experi
mcnts conducted in laboratory seltings 



have shown that alcohol does not pro
duce any substantial decline in per
formance when attention can be de
voted solely to the tracking task, at 
least not at low to moderate blood
alcohol levels. However, when "time
sharing" is introduced into th.e e~
periment, such as wben tracking IS 

combined with a search-and-recogni
tlon task, performance will decline 
substantially at blood levels below. 
.05%. . " 

It appears .that the "tim~-shanng 
requirement IS the most Important 
factor in predicting. the outcome ~f 
drinking-driver situatIOns. Jus~ as ~en
pheral vision was found to be Impal~d 
when a central-vision task was takmg 
place, tracking performance will also 
deteriorate under the influence of a 
"time-sharing" requirement. The more 
complex the driving situation, th.e 
more visual inputs that must be mom
tored, the greater the degree of im£!air
ment that wiiI result from a gIven 
hlood-alcohol level. 

"Time-sharing" then, is the (ri.ti.cal 
factor. While search-and-recogmtlOn 
and tracking have been shown to be 
somewh?t resistant to the effects of 
alcohol when studied individually, the 
time-sharing function is highly suscep
tible to even small doses of alcohol. 
One research team found measurable 
impairment at blood-alcohol levels as 
low as .015%, equivalent to less tbsn 
one beer or mixed drink. 

The portion of the brain that con
trols time-sharing activities is called 
the "reticular activating system" (RAS). 
When at!en!ion is divided under the 
influence ..If alcohol, the RAS works 
more slowly and with less accuracy. 
Alcoh,;>1 may not greatly inhibit a par
ticular system within the brain, such 
as motor coordination necessary for 
tracking, however, when systems are 
called upon to work together, alcohol 
has a profound influence on the ability 
of the brain to rapidly process infOl"
mation and make accurate decisions. 
Since a vehicle traveling 55 miles per 
hour covers more than 80 feet every 
second, time is a critical factor in 
highway safety, and alcohol reduces 
the time-cfficieney of the brain. 

Consider once again the hypothet
ical situation in which an alcohol-im
paired driver approaches an inter~ec
tion, only to encounter another vehicle 
which has run a red light. The likeli
hood of an accident depends upon 
rapid visual recognition of the dan&er, 
and rapid processing of inf0f!Datlon 
to arrive at a successful defenSive ac
tion, such as steering to avoid colli
sion or stepping on the bra~e. The ~ey 
ingredient in this situation IS ''reaction 
time", defined as the time taken to 
initiate r~sponse. 
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In the laboratory, reaction time ap
pears not to be greatly affected by 
small and moderate doses of alcohol, 
so that, in a simple reaction time ex
periment, the subject will not take ~ny 
longer to press a button when a light 
flashes. However, as we have seen, 
individual functions tested separately 
often do not show much alcohol im
pairment while functions combined 
into a c~mplex task arc highly sus
ccptible to alcohol's effect. 

Road tests designed to measure re
action time have yieldcd contradict~ry 
information. One test reported no !D

crease in time taken to initiate a lane
change maneuver when a light flashe~, 
however, drivers with alcohol in theIr 
blood streams made more tracking 
crrors while executing the maneuver. 
Another test found a 35% increase in 
braking distance whcn drivers reached 
blood-alcohol levels of .10%. 

So the question of alcohol's impair
ment of the reaction-time function has 
not been answered conclusively. Yet 
it seems rcasonable to conclude that 
since defensive reaction to a crisis sit
uation depends upon time-sharing be
tween visual and motor functions, re
nction timc must be impaired by alco
hol in practical appEcations. 

Summing Up 
From the information prescnted 

above, it is obvious that alcohol has 
a profound impact on driving skill 

since it affects the ability of the brain to 
process information quickly and accurate
ly. However, the impact of. alcohol on 
traffic safety extends beyond lIS effect on 
those functions and tasks r;:ported above. 

As a mind-altering drug. alcohol re
sembles sleeping pills and tranquil
izers in that il acts as a depressant 
of the central nervous system. 
Enough alcohol can induce stupor and 
sleep though in social settings, small 
dose; tend to produce a kind of stimula· 
tion. This apparent stimulation results 
from the loss of inhibitions which is 
caused by alcohol's depressant action. !he 
individual may become more talkauve. 
may laugh more easily and more loudly. 
and may engage in extravagant behavior 
that would be unlikety ,,' ~=cur if the 
person were completely ·sober. Thus 
alcohol may produce the seemingly 
opposite effects of relaJIation and stimula
tion. 

The depressant mction of alcohol, 
depending on!ite dosage. ~I produ~e 
sedation and IDcreased fatigue. It WIll 
also produce inattention and drowsiness, 
leadmg to a greater li~elihood of .in
sufficient response m a drIvmg 
emergency. '. 

The disinhibitory effect of alcohol WIll 
often result in fear-reduction and increased 
assertiveness. Thus a driver may take 
more risks. such as by driving 100 fast, an~. 
may be less cognizant of the need for 
caution and self-restraint. One of the most 
common effects of drinking is the 
erroneous belief that driving ability 
remains unimpaired. On test courses. 

.. 

drivers have often reported the SUbjective 
feeling of driving as well as if they were 
sober, even when pylons knocked over 
and other performance deficits proved just 
the opposne. 

So, it appears tbst in addition to 
visual search-and-recognition, Crack. 
ing, anI': reaction time, alcohol also 
impairs the emotional and psychologi
cal requisites fOl" safe driving. 

ConclWlion 
Drunk Driving is a crime. The offi

cial charge as recorded by police is 
usually referred to as OMVUI (Ope_ 
rating a Mot.or Vehicle Under the In
fluence) or as DWI (Driving While 
Intoxicated), and in most parts of the 
United States a blood-alcohol concen
tration of .10% is required for con
viction. Unofficially, many law en
forcement office.rs report that they will 

Prepared by the 
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let drivers off with a warning unlesfi 
the blood-alcohol level exceeds .15% 
and a majority of drivers actually 
arrested and convicted for OMVUI 
have blood levels of nearly .20%. 

Studies have shown that for every 
lcgally-drunk driver on the roads, 
there are at least 30 others driving with 
lesser degrees of impairment. Addi
tionally, a number of statistical anal
yses have shown that while drunk 
drivers take th~ir toll, the majority of 
alcohol-related fatal aceidents are 
caused by drivers who are close to or 
under the illegal blood-alcohol level. 
This is startling, and a cause for con
cern, I.ince some 25,000 lives are lost 
each year in alcohol-related accidents. 

The law establishing 0.10% b.a.c. 
ns the line between drunk and sober, 
Jegal and illegal driving, has. in effect 
sanctioned alcohol-impaired driving. 
All the available indicators show that 
drinking drivers with b.a.c.s below 
0.10% arc substantially impaired in 

their ability to drive safely. The pub
lic needs to know what level of alcohol 
consumption constitutes a hazard, 
since most Americans whD drink and 
drive arc almost totally ignorant of 
the potential danger of small doses of 
alcohol. Given such information driv
ers might cut down on driving after 
drinking, and the publie might be 
more supportiv(: of law enforcement 
crackdowns on drinking drivers. 

When thinkilng about drinking
and driving, these points arc important 
to keep in mind: 
-According to the National Safety 

Council, a person should wait one 
hour (or every drink consumed, be
fore driving since it takes the body 
one hour to burn up the alcohol 
from the usual "drink". Black cof
fee, fresh air or cold water will not 
speed up the process. 

-Driving ability is impaired about 
30% after as little as two drinks. 

-Any drinking will cause some jm
pairment of driving ability. 
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iilJ --(traffic; ACcidents 
Alcohol in the bloa,d slows reaction time, reduces 
rr:uscle coordination, and impairs eyesight. Two ' 
beers, two four·ounce glasses of wine, or two mixed 
drinks can impair driving ability by 25% - enough to 
turn a nf':!r.'!!:::.;:; into an a,ccidsnt. Four ,or five drinks, 
can make a person "legally drunk" and subject to 
arrest. 

The degree of imp~irmentdep~nds on, the number of 
drinks consumed and a person's weight. A i00.pound 
person is usually twic~ as impaired as a200.pound 
person by the .,same amount of alcohol. 
Safety experts say that before driving you should 
wait one hour f,or each drink con~umed. It takes the 
pody that long to burn up one beer or other drink. 
Slack coffee and fresh air won't help. 
A person does hot have to be really drunk to be 
dangerous. Half·drunk drivers are dangerous too. 

2. Fatal Overdose 
Everyone knows that an overdose of sleeping pills 
can be deadly. Alcohol works in much the same way. 
Someone who drinks too much can actually stop 
breathing and die . 

\ \ 

\ 
<) ,,' , 

c 

"';, 



Persons who have consumed a large amount or pass 
out after drinking may be in danger. Rush them to 
the emergency room of a hospital. There life·saving 
actions can be taken. Don't just let them "sleep it 
ofJ·"l 
Sleeping pills and alcohol together are more 
dangerous than either by itselt. Aicohol and other 
drugs interact in unpredictable ways. 

• ,I 

: " 'I . , ' . 
. 3. Birth jDefects " ., , 
. 1 .~ 

Babies born to women alcoholics are often deformed 
or retarded. It's called the "fetal alcohol syndrome." 
Research has not yet determined how much alcohol 
in a mother's blood will harm the baby. Since alcohol 

'-reduces the blood's ability to Garry oxygen to the 
unborn child any drinking may be risky, even in the 
first few weeks of pregnancy. 

·The Surgeon General of the Unite~ States has said: 
"Pregnant women should avoid ai~oholic beverages." 

. 4. Damage to the Body 
Alcohol goes directly into the blood stream. It 
damages the liver, kidneys, heart and brain. Some 
doctors believe that every drink a person consumes 

,. 

kills some brain cells. Chronic alcoholics often suffer 
, structural brain damage. 

Drinking is the third leading cause of death in the 
United States, right behind heart disease and cancer, 
though it may actually contribute to both those 
diseases as well. Heavy drinking can lead to 
congestive heart failure. It increases the risk of 
cancer of the mouth, throat, and esophagus. 
Cirrhosis of ttie liver is probably the most common 

<' alcohol·related cause of death. 
" 

5. Addiction 
Alcohol is an addictive drug. Addiction may be due to 
physical or mental conditions, or both. Alcoholism 
has been linked to many factors, such as inherited 
genetic makeup and individual body chemistry. A 
person may have strong will power and still be 
unable to stop drinking. 
A compulsion to drink, inability to limit the number of 
drinks, or memory loss after drinking are symptoms 
of addiction. A person experiencing one of those 
symptoms should seek help. 
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Senator DOLE. Our next witness is Diane Steed, Deputy Adminis
trator, National Highway Traffic Safety Administration, U.S. De
partment of Transportation. 

Ms. Steed, I understand you have staff with you. You might in-
troduce them. 

STATEMENT OF DIANE STEED, DEPUTY ADMINISTRATOR, NA
TIONAL HIGHWAY TRAFFIC SAFETY ADMINISTRATION, U.S. DE
PARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, WASHINGTON, D.C., ACCOM
PANIED BY GEORGE D. BRANDT, CHIEF, ADJUDICATION 
BRANCH; JOHN MOULDEN, ALCOHOL COUNTERMEASURES SPE
CIALIST; AND CHARLES LIVINGSTON, ASSOCIATE ADMINISTRA
TOR, TRAFFIC SAFETY PROGRAMS 
Ms. STEED. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am pleased to appear 

before your subcommittee today to address the extremely critical 
problem of drunk driving in this country. 

Accompanying me today are Mr. Charles Livingston, our Asso
ciate Administrator fol' Traffic Safety Programs, as well as Mr. 
John Moulden and Mr. George Brandt of Mr. Livingston's staff. 
They are the real experts in this area, while I am a relative novice 
on the subject. 

EXTENT OF DRUNK DRIVING PROBLEM 

We have heard a lot of the statistics today and a lot of the infor
mation on the scope of the problem, so I am going to try to summa
rize that portion of my testimony. 

I would like to say that the Administration does recognize that 
drunk driving causes one of the Nation's most serious health prob
lems, and it is one 9f my agency's highest priorities for the coming 
year. . 

Many people have classified the drunk driving problem as an epi
demic. The fatality statistics are shocking, and as I said I will not 
go through them since we have heard them several times today. 

The real question is: Wny are so many d.runk drivers on the 
roads? One reason is that the drunk drivers do not believe that 
they are going to be caught. Statistics show that their belief is well 
founded. The agency estimates that the chances of a drunk driver 
being stopped are between 1 in 500 and 1 in 2,000. Nationwide, 
police officers average fewer than five drunk driver arrests per offi-
cer per year. . 

In addition, drivers assume that if they are caught they will not 
be convicted of an alcohol-related offense. Further, they believe 
that if they are convicted the sentence will be light, and in some 
States we know that only 1 in 10 is actually jailed. 

How is this possible? How can the drunk driver be treated so 
lightly in view of the fatality and injury statistics? I think it can 
fairly be stated that the public has only recently come to consider 
alcoholism a serious health condition. They still do not consider 
driving under the influence of alcohol a serious crime. 

A drunk driver was not considered responsible for his actions, 
even if his actions resulted in a death or serious injury. Therefore 
he was not held accountable~ and the general wisdom has held that 
the driver should not be severely punished. 
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~or ~xample, a study in Michigan revealed that, although one 
dnver ~n four co~~d have been charged with either manslaughter 
or neglIgent homIcIde as a result of a fatal crash involvement only 
about 1 of every 12 was actually charged. ' 

Furthermore, ~ithin the ~~all group actually charged with man
slaugh:t~r or neglIgent homIcIde, only one in four was convicted on 
the ongInal charge; 18 percent of the drivers charged were cleared 
of the manslaughter or negligent homicide charges. 
. Today, however, I am happy to say that there is a shift occurring 
In the general public's attitude toward the drunk driver. Local citi
~ens, such as the ones that you have just heard from are organiz
Ing to force State. and local authorities to expand their efforts to 
fight the drunk drIver. 

~n Maryland, an or~anization kn?wn as Mothers Against Drunk 
DrIvers (MADD] was Instrumental ill persuading Governor Hughes 
to organIZe a State task ~orce on the issue. Grassroots organizations 
have B;lso been respons~ble for the establishment of State task 
forces I!1 Ne~ York, CalIfornIa, Pennsylvania, and West Virginia 

In thIS envIron~ent, I believe that it is an especially g:Jod tim~ 
for your sub~ommlttee 1<:> hold a hearing on this issue. It will help 
us focus natIOnal B;ttentIOn on the problem and possibly catalyze 
more grassroots actIOn. . 

Recognition of the problem, we all know, is not going to solve it, 
but 1:lnder ~he pressure of.greater public concern State legislatures, 
publIc offiCIals, and ~genCleS will have a mandate and thus a great
er resolve to estal;>hsh and maintain more effective programs to 
deter those who dnnk to excess and drive. 

NHTSA EFFORTS 

~et us talk just briefly about what the Federal Government is iOlng about this problem. Since the passage of our Highway Safety 
ct, my .a~ency has worked to determine the magnitude of the 

drunk .dnvIl!g problem and to devise solutions and test them in co
operatIOn Wlt~ State and local governments. 
~ur most l?1portant effo:r:t. has been· a··series of demonstration 

projects run In 35 communItIes across the country between 1970 
an~ 1976. Known. as alcoho! safety action projects, or ASAP, these 
projects ~ere desIgn~d to dIscover what could be done at the local 
communIty level to Increase the effectiveness of drunk driver pro
gthrams. M.uch of what I say here today is based on an evaluation of 

ose proJects. 

PARALYSIS OF THE JUDICIAL SYSTEM 

There is no questi.on but that the drunk driver isa national prob
lem, and yet we belIeve it can only be solved at the State and local 
level. State and local laws govern this area, and Stat~ and local 
courts are the only forums for these cases. 

The crux of the drunk driver problem in most States is not the 
lack ,of !ldequate laws on drunk driving but the lack of consistent 
convH?-cmg enfo~cement .of those laws by State and local officials: 
'Fhe rIsk of punIshment IS low and the deterrent effect of the laws 

. IS therefore weak. 
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Right now, most State judicial s~stems cannot h~nd!e the drunk 
driving cases in a swift and certaIn manner that IndICates to the 
public that this is a serious offense. . 

Although drinking driving cases form a lar~e percentage ot lower 
court dockets, most States have not coordInated the actI<?ns of 
police, prosecutors, judges, licensing officials, and health. officIals to 
improve the processing of these cases. Independent actIOn by any 
one of these groups may only aggravate the system at. a~othe.r 
level. Let me just quickly highlight so~e of the problems I~ IdentI
fying, arresting, penalizing, and rehabI!Itatmg the drunk drIver. 

At the enforcement level, the polIce are reluc~a~t to ~rr~st 
drunk drivers because arrest procedures for DWI (drIVIng whIle In
toxicated) are more cumbersome and time consuming than for any 
other traffic offense. It can take as long as 4 hours for an officer to 
process a driver arrested on a drinking driver charge, not to men
tion the time involved in his subsequent court appearance~. 

At the trial level, the courts ~re often r~luctant to .conVIct on the 
drunk driver charges. In many Instances Judges conSIder the penal
ties established by a State legislature for this offense, such as man
datory jail sentences and license rev?~ation, too harsh. Defendants 
appear in court as norm~l, law-a~IdID:g peop~e for whom harsh 
sanctions seem inapproprIate. LegIslatIye. actIOns to set hars~er 
penalties may well result in fewer conVIctIons and a less effectIve 
program. . . d b 

Drunk driver cases are also time consumIng, and JU ges eco~e 
very amenable to case processing shortcuts, such as plea bargalil
ing, to reduce their docket loads. ~ome Stat~~ have sought to use 
nontraditional methods to deal wIth those arrested f~r the first 
time as drunk drivers. The availability of a less severe penalty and 
an array of possible sanction combinations such as fines, t!eat
ment, and education, encourages some judges to find more drIvers 
guilty of the offense as charge~-28 State:s scre~n those arrested 
and allow the· judges to refer drIvers to al~ohol v:o~~tor schools or 
rehabilitation programs. We find that thIs fleXIbIlIty often does 
more to deter the drunk driving than a stiff sentence. 

Another problem is that drunk driving cases, like all traffic 
cases are heard at the local court level, and at that level a hIgh 
turn~ver rate for judges exists. Novice judges often do not ?~ve the 
experience to deal with the legal and procedural compl~xltIes of a 
trial for drunk drivers. Accordingly, the agency has deVIsed a spe
cial judicial training course to give judges informati?n on the pro
cedural and constitutional issues most frequently raI~ed by the .de
fense counsel in drunk driving cases and what penaltIes can be Im
posed depending on the circumstances of the particular case: . 

Due to plea bargaining and dismissals, many persons orIgInally 
charged as drunk. drivers are not conyicted, and without a convic
tion no record eXIsts. If arrested agaIn on the charge, the person 
would be considered a first-time offender. 

All States currently have laws requiring courts to report all con
victions to a central driver record reposit'Jry. Yet even when the 
court convicts we find that it frequently neglects t(l send a record 
of the conviction to the central repository. As a result, local pros
ecutors and courts are unable to identify multiple dru~k driving of-
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fenders and consequently fail to prosecute, convict, and impose a 
harsher sanction that such defendants deserve. 

In addition to having an accurate record of prior convictions, the 
court must also know the nature of the driver's alcohol problem in 
order to fashion a penalty that is most likely to deter the defend
ant from driving drunk in the future. 

While the social drinker can be humiliated and deterred by the 
typical penalties imposed on the drunk driver, an alcoholic cannot 
help himself. He requires more extensive attention, which may in
clude Alcoholics Anonymous, group therapy, individual counseling 
and. probation. , 

To address this problem, courts in some States conduct presen
tence screening through a central data bank that consolidates all 
existing traffic records on.a defendant and also evaluates the 
extent of his alcohol problem. Such systems standardize presen
tence investigation and make them less costly and time consuming. 

At the punishment level, most States have legislated fines and 
stiff sentence sanctions, license suspensions, or revocations as pen
alties for the drunk driver. Some States Prescribe a minimum jail term. 

. The agency has been instrumental in getting States to use educa
tIon or treatment as an additional sanction for those convictions. 
As I mentioned, however, many judges are reluctant to impose a 
stiff punishment such as license suspension or jail. 

~lso, d~e to the tim~-consuming nature of the process, the penal
ty IS not Imposed untIl many months after. By losing its immedi
acy, the penalty may· become~ in the mind of convicted drivers 
society's unjust intrusion into their lives and a threat to their live~ 
lihood. This produces· resentment rather than contrition. 

A more effective approach may be through license suspension or 
revocation, especially for' first-time offenders. The charge can also 
be p;r<:~cessed administ,,·atively. The court or administrative agency 
preSIdIng over the case may be more willing and able to speed the 
case along and impose the legal penalty. 

THE SOLUTION: A COORDINATED PROGRAM 

, L.et us talk a little about the solution. Despite the appalling sta
tIstICS and the apparent continued inability of the criminal justice 
system to treat drinking and driving as a serious offense, Federal 
State, and local officials are not indifferent to this problem and w~ 
believe a systematic solution is at hand. ' 

The goal of any State drunk driving program should be to in
crease the perceived risk of arrest, conviction, and punishment 
among the drunk driving popUlation. To accomplish this, arrests 
and adjudication must be swift and sure. The bottleneck in the en
forcement and adjudication system must be eliminated. 

State and local officials must not only increase arresw, but they 
must also shorten booking time, shorten trial time, raise the con
viction rate on. the original charge, assure appropriate punishment 
for th?se convIcted, k~ep a record of the convi.ction that is easily 
accessIble to the co~r~ In caSe ,of future arres.ts on the same charge, 
and conduct a publIc InformatIOn and educatIon campaign. 
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To achieve these changes, we believe that a program intended to 
deter drunk driving must: 

First, aim to deter the majority of drinking drivers who are not 
arrested; . 

Second, we must generate citizen support to provide a politlcal 
base for increased enforcement; 

Third, we must place responsibility for management in the hands 
of the local officials; 

Fourth we must coordinate all levels of enforcement, adjudica
tion and sanctioning so that the case processing system works 
quidkly and self-sufficiently by using fines, court costs, and treat
ment fees to defray the costs of a program; and, 

Finally, we must use educational programs to change general 
public attitudes on drinking and driving. 

NHTSA intends to work with the States to develop a comprehen
sive coordinated alcohol safety program based on these six ele
me~ts. We hope that these efforts will provide notable improve
ments and practical information and encourage other States to es
tablish their own programs. A good starting point for any State 
would be a State task force on drunk driving, such as the one Cindi 
just mentioned. 

In response to the rise of citizen action groups, such as MADD, 
RID-remove intoxicated drivers-PARK-IT, and Citizens for Safe 
Drivers, and political pressure over the drunk driving problem, a 
number of States in recent years have established drunk driving 
task forces, and the results have been very impressive. 

New York has improved its drunk driving laws and now sends 
fines back to the local jurisdiction to establish comprehensive, lo-
cally managed alcohol safety programs. . 

Maryland has enacted a preliminary breath-testing law which 
allows police to test the blood-alcohol level of those arrested in 
order to establish probable cause to arrest. 

California has enacted an illegal per se BAC law and new mini
mum penalties. It is also presently holding legislative hearings on 
a proposed 5 cents per bottle liquor tax as a means of financing 
comprehensive alcohol safety programs. 

An effective local dr'unk driving program places greater demands 
on the police, the prosecutors, the courts, licensing agencies, and 
the health and education agencies, and a successful campaign will 
drain money from the municipal treasury. 

One solution to the funding problem is found in a recently adopt
ed New York statute 'which redistributes all drunk driving fines 
back to the county for their drunk driving programs. 

Virginia also sends money collected from DWI-driving while in
toxicated·-fines back to the counties, and under this approach the 
drunk driver-the driver who creates the problem-pays for its so
lution. 

A law making it unlawful, per ae, to drive with a high blood-alco
hol content is also a useful component of a c()ordinated drunk driv
ing program-19 States have enacted such laws that make a high 

. BAC level in a defendant sufficient proof of intoxication. These 
laws reduce not guilty pleas, requests for trials, and thus the pres
sure to plea bargain or to dismiss drunk driving cases. As a result, 
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less police tiine is spent in court and officers have more incentives 
to make more drunk driving arrests. . 

It also stands to reason that publicity in the new State cam
paigns, particularly the increased vigilance by the police as well as 
the rise in the number of actual arrests and convictions, will 
heighten the perceived risk. This approach is presently being used 
effectively by the Maryland State Police. 

THE FEDERAL ROLE 

I want to say just a word about the Federal role in the drunk 
driving question. We, ir.. NHTSA, recognize that it is the State's re
sponsibility to police the roads to protect the health and safety of 
its citizens. The Federal role, we think, is to assist the States to 
perform this function through research and coordination. 

To give you an example, we are distributing a manual for police 
on the detection of drunk drivers and a manual for court casework
ers to improve case processing and dispos~tion. vVe have developed 
the only reliable interview questionnaire for presentence investiga
tion and have conducted studies to improve State reporting systems 
for traffic convictions. 

We have developed a model traffic case management system as 
well as model laws to improve prosecution of the drunk driver, and 
we have cosponsored a national prosecutors conference on DWI and 
vehicular homicide. 

We are also presenting courses to judges and to police on effi
cient processing of those arrested as drinking drivers and to alcohol 
safety program coordinators on how to organize and implement a 
comprehensive, locally managed program. 

Last year the agency conducted a series of workshops, and we 
are pleased to see the ever-growing public determination to do 
something about this national health problem. ' 

SUMMARY 

In summary, the drunk driving problem is not insurmountabh.~. 
We know what needs to be done. The States do not so much need 
new laws on the problem as they need greater resolve to enforce 
existing laws and technical assistance to streamline the criminal 
justice procedures. 

The necessary resolve to change current State practices, howev
er, can only be summoned if local citizens show active and vocal 
interest. Congressional hearings such as this provide a national 
forum to elicit comments from these people and inspire action by 
others. 

The grassroots efforts of citizens' groups in some States have 
. been extremely successful, and task forces have been set up, as I 

mentioned earlier. Now is the time for more citizens to convey to 
their State legislators, police, prosecutors, and judges that drinking 
and driving is a serious offense. The criminal justice system can 
work if Government institutions that maintain the system receive 
this clear signal. 

This. concludes my statement, Mr. Chairman. My colleagues and 
I will be pleased to try to answer any questions you may have. 
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Senator DOLE. I think the first question we need ~o. ask i~: ~ere 
does this problem rank in the priorities ?f the adm1l1I~tratIOn. Yo~ 
are probably now in the assessment perIOd, but does It have a PrI
ority? If so, can you tell us anything in addition to what lOU have 
told us in your prepared statement about future plans. Do ~ou 
foresee any legislative proposal? I understand your problem w~th 
the Federal Government and States, but generally does the admIn
istration set this as a priority matter? 

Ms. STEED. We certainly do. As a matter of fact, when we took 
office in the Reagan administration, we looked at what the agency 
had been doing in the past. Too often we found w.e h:ad ~een con
centrating too much on making the car safer-desIgnIng.In safety, 
if you will. . . 

We think we have got to spend some tIme on ~um~n behaVIOr. 
One of our two top priorities in the coming year~ IS g~mg to be the 
alcohol problem and getting people to wear theIr sealJ belts. Those 
two things are very closely related. . 

I am very pleased to say that, even though we are In a cutback of 
funds, this year we see about 40 percent of the 402 grant pro~am 
moneys going into alcohol. It is the second largest category ~nto 
which that the States are programing Federal f~nds to solve hIg~
way safety problems. It represents a very real Increase of $6 mIl
lion over what the States spent last year on alcohol. In fiscal year 
1982, the States plan to spend approximately $28 million on alcohol 
countermeasures. . . . 

So we see and we are very pleased to see, that thIS IS a contInu
ing priority' and an even higher priority in the future. We support 
that wholeheartedly, and we are encouraging the States to spend 
their highway safety funds for alcohol programs. 

As far as what we are going to do in the future is concerned, we 
are establishing a special task .force within the ag~ncy to conce':l
trate our resources on this issue. We believe that IS a .systematIc 
approach to the problem. That is one that helps the p~hce officers 
identify the drunk driver, helps the States a~sess theIr own laws 
and come up with more effective local solutIOns, helps the court 
system understand what the problem is with drunk drivin~, and 
teaches both prosecutors and ju~ges what needs. ~o h.e done In the 
drunk driving case, working WIth local rehaJnhtatIOn efforts to 
cure the serious drunk driving that we have In the c~:)Untry! cou
pling all of that with what.we see as an enor~ou~. publIc sentIment 
to do something about this problem-we thInk If we have all ?f 
those elements combined in a. program we are gOIng to .succ~ed In 
solving that drunk driving problem in t~is ,:ountry. It I~ gOIng to 
take time and it is going to take determInatIOn, but we In the ad
ministration are determined to succeed. 

Senator DOLE. Have you specifically addressed the legislation 
that has been introduced by Senator Pell and Congres~man Barnes, 
I guess about 70 House Members, and I am not certaIn how many 
Senators? As I understand, you have addressed that in a letter to 
Congressman Howard. . . 

Ms. STEED. Yes, sir, we have. We agree wholeheartedly WIth tP..:8 
objectives of this legislation, but we are trou~led by some of ~he 
very specific provisions that would be enacted Into law and apphed 
nationwide. 

55 

As you mentioned earlier, the problem is really one of enforce
ment, and the enforcement team is at the State and local level We 
believe it is better to encourage the States to come up with their 
own task forces to assess the problem in their own States and in 
their own loca.l communities and develop local solutions to those laws. 

We. ~lso think it is better, for example, not to impose a. manda
tory Jail sentence or a mandatory community service project of a 
certaIn length in Federal legislation. That is better left to the local level. 

For example, I have been· over to Maryland and ridden with the 
State trooper~ to. watc~ th~ir very effective drunk driving program. 
They are ~ndIng that, if a Judg~ can assess the particular person in 
front of him and perhaps decIde to sentence him to spending a . 
weeke~d at the trau~a center over at the University of Maryland, 
watchIng cases that Involve drunk drivers come in this may be a 
better deterrent than a jail sentence or a mandatory 10-day 10-
week, or whatever, community service. It has really got to be flexi
ble and in the hands of the judges. 

Senator DOLE. You mentioned highway safety funds. Has there 
been any thought about withholding those funds until States do 
certain things that might be helpful? 

Ms. STEED. I know that is a proposal in the Pell-Barnes bill and 
that, too, troubles us a little bit. We think that we should not' hold 
the .whole State highway safety program hostage to what is a 
~yrIad ?f problems out there. We think we can work more effec
tIvely WIth them by encouraging the Governor's offices to establish 
alcohol task forces and through local task forces. 

Senator DOLE. Nineteen States now have the per se law' is that correct? . , 
Ms. STEED. Yes, sir. 
Senator DOLE. It would seem to me-and again, it may be in 

process-that ~ould be an area w~ere the press and the Secretary 
of TransportatIOn could have some Influence at the next Governors' 
Conference. They have them frequently. Sometimes we get so con
cerned about taxes and budgets that we overlook people. It may 
have been addressed. 

Certainly in those areas-and I would be interested to know just 
how you plan to structure the task force, who is going to be on it 
what theIr goals m~y be, or what their assignment may be-I d~ 
n~t sugg~st that untIl you have had an opportunity we should start 
WIthholdIng funds, but there must be some way to encourage 
States to move. But even after States move, again it gets back to law enforcement. 

As you pointed out, it takes a lot of time to process one of these 
c~ses. There is not much in it for the States or the local communi
tIes as far as revenues are concerned. 
. Then y?u have the problem with the judges, and you have, par

tICularly in the smaller communities where everyone knows every
one, as Ms: Lamb pointed ou~, the situation where they stand 
before the Judge and he says; vVell, you know I could be there 
an~ he COUld. be up here." You have all those mixed feelings whe~ 
a Judgment IS made. It would seem to me that the per se laws 
would at least make it much easier. It sort of takes the people in 
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law enforcement off the hook. They cannot plead illness or what
ever. I have been through some of these as a county attorney in a 
small county. . 

Are you doing anything in that area regarding encouraging 
States to move? 

IVls. STEED. As a matter of fact, we sent a model per se law to all 
the States, and we are working very closely with some of the citi
zens' groups to get this adopted and to get the State and local task 
forces set up out there to do just exactly th~t. We do hope to take 
advantage of forums like the National Governors' Association to 
encourage action at the local level. 

If I might, I would like to have Mr. Livingston describe one of 
the State laws that we think is a model in this area. 

Mr. LIVINGSTON. What has been described before is the delay 
from the time of arrest until something happens to the individual. 
It is upwards of at least 6 months. 

]VIinnesota has an illegal per se law, and they also enacted an ad
ministrative procedure wherein, when the individual is arrested, 
brought into the station, and tested, as soon as they find that he 
has tested above 0.10, the police automatically at that point in time 
lift his driver's license for 90 days and send it to the Motor. Vehicle 
Department. So you have the immediacy of the sanction right 
there, which is the type 'of thing we are pressing for. 

Senator DOLE. Since several data banks routinely exchange 
driver's license information, have you considered combining the 
National Driver Register with the National Criminal Information 
Center files or the National Law Enforcement Telecommunications 
System? 

Ms. STEED. As a matter of fact, we have. I have to say that I 
think one of the mistakes that we made early on in the agency was 
to consider abolishing the National Driver's Register. We took a 
190k at it and found it is not being effectively run at the present 
time. It is not sJIPported by all of the States, and it takes us far too 
long to get the information back out to the States. 

We are going to continue that system, and we are going to im- . 
prove it. In the meantime we have also been in touch with the Jus
tice Department. As a matter of fact, I have a meeting next week 
with them to explore the use of systems like the NCIC for this 
purpose. . 

Senator DOLE. I have another question or· two, but I think what I 
may do is submit those questions in writing, because they deal with 
areas that have some relevance. 

I want to commend you and the members of your staff and to 
indicate that I would hope that this administration would put this 
on the front burner. 

I know there are a lot of things that I think should be on the 
front burner, and I know changes are being made for the better 
each day, each week, each year, but we really need to focus on this 
at the highest levels, and the highest level I can think of is the 
White House level. 

I am certain that if you focus on it that will be more reason for 
the President to focus on it, because he will have the information. 
It is one thing to say the President should do this or that, but with
out good information I would not recommend that he do anything. 

( 
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h H~PdefbullY, .you will ~ove very quickly, and we can do what we 
s .ou e d01n~ ~~ Members of Congress where we have the com-
mIttee responsIbIlIty. I again thank you for coming and waitin 
ant also for your cooperating with the public interest groups la! 
en o;cemet;tt ~roups, and others, and for your work with the G~ver
nors aSSocIatIOn. 
~o 'Se have a per se .law in Kansas? You might know. I should. 

S. TEED. I am a~:raId to say we do not. We will work on that 

K 
Senator DOLE. We had better work on that when we are both i~ 
ansas. 
Ms. STEED. That is right. 
Senator DOLE. Thank you very much. 

. Ms·.tShTEED. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We look forward to work-
Ing WI you. . 

[The prepared statement of Ms. Steed follows:] 
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PREPARED ~TEMENT OF D~E K. STEED 

f the Subcommittee: l1r. Chairm.an and Hembers 0 

Subcommi tte'e today to I am pleased to appear before your 

. d' in ttds country. problem of the drunk r1ver address th\~ 

Accompanying me today are " ton our Associate r.1r. Charles L1v1ngs , 

Safety Programs as well as Administrator for Traffic 

Mr. John Moulden and Hr. George , t ff Under the Brandt of hlS sa. 

of 1966, the National Highway terms of the Highway Safety Act 

h 1 the States improve Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA), e ps 

and reduce the number of traffic their highway safety programs 

accidents, deaths and injuries. NHTSA carries out that respon-' 

t program in highway safety under sibility through a State gran 

Act as ~.,ell as through a highway safety Section 402 of the 

t NHTSA is the Sectidn 403 of the Ac • research program under 

the States to attack the principal Federal agency working with 

drunk driver problem in this Nation. 

Extent of the Drinking Driver Problem 

the Nation's most serious health Drunk drivers cause one of ~ 

problems. 'f' d it as an epidemic. Many have claSSl 1e The fatality 

statistics are shocking. Over the past 10 years the number of 

vehicle accidents involving kl'lled on our highways in motor persons , 

alcohol has averaged 25,000 per year. In 1979, over 650,nOO people 

were injured in accidents involving alcohol. 

h blems by tIle Departm~n t study of alcohol and healt pro A recent 

'. ~ in 1975 e~ceeded $5 alcohol-related motor vehicle aCClaen~s 

billion. , e a direct result of the These deaths and injurles ar 

" drunk on the Nation's large numbers of people who are drlv1ng 

'ht Accord ing to a study conducted by roads, particularly at n19 • 

for the Stockton, California Police the University of the Pacific 

ou t of every 10 drivers in Stockton on Friday and Department, one 

Saturday nights is legally drunk, i.e., their blood-alcohol 

concentration (BAC~ level exceeds 0'.10 percent. 

r 

59 

Hhy are so many drunk dr ivers .on the roads? One reason is 

that drunk drivers do not believe that they will be caught. 

Statistics show that their belief is well founded. NHTSA estimates 

that the chances of a drunk driver being stopped i;lre hetween 

one in five hundred and one in two thousand. Nationwide, police 

officers average fewer than five drunk driver arrests per 

officer_per year. In addition, drivers assume that if they are 

caught, they will not be convicted of a~ alcohol-related offense. 

Further, they believe that .if they are convicted, the sentence 

will be light. Again, studies confirm this.. The State of lI1aj,ne's 

Bureau of ~Hghway Safety issued a reporJ: in January 1981 on 

enforcement of its drunk driver la\'ls. VJith respect to its law 

mandating jail for drivers convicted for the second time of 

driving drunk, it found that only one out of every 10 drivers 

arrested £or and convicted of a second offense was actuaily 

jailed. 

How is this PosSible? How can the drunk driver be treated 

so lightly in view of th~ fatality and injury statistics? I 

think it can be fairly stated that the public has ,only recently 

come to consider alcoholism a serious health condit~on. They 

still do not consider dr iving under the influence of alcohol a 

serious crime. A drunk driver was not considered responsible 

for his actions, even if his actions resulted in a death or 

Michigan, revealed many prosecution and Court inadequacies. 

Although one driver in four could have been charged with either 

manslaughter or negligent homicide as a result of fatal crash 

general wisdom has held that the driver should not be severely 

punished. Statistics on'penalties meted out to drunk drivers 

involved in accidents rGsulting in .the death of another attest to 

to the strength of this attitude. A NHTSA stUdy of drivers 

convicted of vehicular homicide in which alcohol was involved in 

serious injury. Therefore, he was not held accountable and the 

involvement, only about one out of every 12 was actually 

charged. Fur~hermore, within the small 'group actually charged 

.. 
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with manslaughter or negligent homicide, only one in four was 

convicted on the original charge. Eighteen percent of the 

were cleared of the manslaughter or negligent drivers charged 

homicide. 

signs that a shift is occurring Today, however, there are 

ln the general public's attitude toward the drunk driver. 

force Stat.e and local authorities Lo~al citizens are organizing to 

to expano their efforts to fight the drunk driver. In 

k '1 thors l\gainst Dr.unk Driving l1aryland, an organization nown as ,'0 -

(rtADD) was inst~umental in persuading Governor Hughes to organize 

h · Grass-root organ.izations have a State task force on t e 1ssue. 

/ l' h t f State task forces also been responsible for the estab 1S n~n a 

in New York, California, Pennsylvania and tV-est Virginia. 

f the drunk driver as a more visible With the emergence a 

h ' l'S a good time for the Subcommittee issue, I believe that t 1S 

h · Thl'S hearing will focus national to hold a hearing on t e lssue. 

att~ntion on the problem and possibly catalyze more grass-roots 

action. Recognition of the problem will not solve it. Once 

'f t h ver the State legislagreater public concern is manl es " owe , 

f ' . 1 and agencl'es will have a mandate and, tures, public ,of lCla s 

to establish ana ~aintain more effective thus, a greater resolve 

t de 'ter those who drink to excess and drive. progl:ams a 

NHTSA Efforts 

Since the passage of th~ Highway Safety Act, NHTSA has worked 

to survey the magnitude of the drun~ dri~er problem, devise 

solutions, and test them in cooperation with state, county and 

city governments. Our most important effort has been a series of 

run l' n 35 communi ties across the country demonstration projects 

between 1970 and 1976. Known as Alcohol Safety Action projects 

, t were desl'gned to discover what could be (ASAPs), these proJec s 

1 t ' ase the effectiveness done at the local community leve a lncre 

of ~runk driver programs. Much of what I say today is b~ped 

on our evaluation of the ASAPs. 
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Paralysis of the Judicial System 

The drunk driver is a national problem, yet it can only 

be solved at the State and local level. State and local laws 

govern in this area and State and local courts are the only forum 

for these cases. Unfortunately, despite the thousands of highway 

deaths and injuries attributable to alcohol, State and local 

officials have not 'focused sufficiently on this problem. 

The crux of the drunk driver problem in most States is 

not the lack of adeqUate laws on the drunk driver but the lack 

of consistent, convincing enforcement of those laws by State and 

local officials. The. risk of punishment is low, and the deterrent 

effect of the laws is therefore weak. 

As presently constituted, most State jUdicial systems cannot 

handle drunk driver cases in a swift, certain manner that 

indicates to the general motoring public that it is a serious 

offens~. Although drunk driver cases form a large percentage 

of lower court dockets, most States have not coordinated the 

actions of the police, prosecutors, judges, licenSing officials 

and health officials to improve the processing of these cases. 

Independent action at anyone level of the system may only aggra

vate the problems at another level. 

.ro:rest Level 

At the enforcement level, the police are reluctant to arrest 

drunk drivers because the a,rrest procedures on that charge are 

more cumbersome and time-consuming than for any other traffic 

offense. 
It ,can take as long as 4 hours for an officer to process 

a driver arrested on a drunk driver charge. 
He may then spend 

additional time in subsequent court appearances. 
.f1oreover, police 

chiefs traditionally have not made the arrest of drunk drivers 

a high priority. They would rathE)r have their men invest their 

tj.me in patrolling for majot: 'criminal activity. When the police 

do initiate a crackdown and increase the number of arrests of 

drunk drive:t;s, they often discover that the courts are unable 

88-986 0-82--5 
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I d To manage the increased case to handle the increased case oa. 

. ·th defendants to reduce the load, prosecutors plea-barga~n w~ 

charge to a nonalcoho.lic one or dis!lliss their cases entirely. 

As a consequence, the conv~c ~on ra . t· te plummets, the morale of the 

police falls proportionately, and the crackdown comes' to an end. 

Trial Level 

The courts are often reluctant to convict on the drunk 

driver charge. In many instances, judges consider the penalties 

established by the State legislature fo~ this offense (mandatory 

jail sentences, license revoca ~on 00 • t · ) t harsh Apart from the 

defendants' problems with alcohol, they appear to be normal J.aw

abiding people, for whom harsh sanctions seem inappropriate. 

. t set harsher penal~ies may well result in Legislative act~on 0 

fewer convictions and a less effective program. In our survey 

of local court actions in those States with mandatory jail 

we were repeatedly struck by the degree to wh!ch the penalties, 

courts did not impose jail terms in cases calling for them. We 

found that the judges commonly allowed plea ?argaining the charge 

to a less1lr, nonalcoholic offense to permit themselves the dis

cretion b) fashion their own remedies in lieu of the "mandatory" 

penalties. 

The courts also find the drunk driver cases are very time

consuming. When the penalties are increased the demands for jury 

trials also increase. Jury trials take more time and further 

clog the system. Judges become very amenable to case processing 

short cuts, such as plea bargaining, to reduce their docket load. 

Given large caseloads the reluctance of judges ~o ~onvict 

drivers when severe penalties are ~andated and the time-consuming 

nature of a standard tr ial for the offense, some States have 

sought to use non-traditional methods to deal with those arrested 

the first time as drun'k drivers. The ~vailability of a less 

severe penalty and an, array of possible sanctions combinations 

such as :iines and treatment or education encourages sor.te judges 
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to find more drivers guilty of the offense charged. Twenty-eight 

States screen those arrested and allow the jUdges to refer those 

drivers to alcohol \'iolator schools or rehabilitation programs. 

Arrests under the Statewide Virginia Alcohol Safety Action 

Program (VASAP) have increased considerably in the past years 

from 28,578 in 1977 to 38,472 in 1980. Minnesota has instituted 

an administrative procedure to process, very rapidly, drunk 

drivers based on the results of the standard blood test given 

those arrested. Any driver found to register a blood-alcohol 

concentration (BAC) level above 0.10 percent has his license 

automatically suspended for 90 days regardless of his case's. 

subsequent disposition. A high BAC level is sufficient in'itself 

to prove the offense, without the need for evidence as to the 

defendant's impaired behavior. A drtver refusing to take the BAC 

test has his license administratively suspended for 180 days. 

The l1innesota system raises the probability of swift and certain 
sanctions. 

Another organizational problem hampers judicial effective

ness. Drunk driver cases are heard, as are all traffic cases, 

at the lower court level. At that level, a high turnover rate 

for judges exists. Novice jUdges often do not have the experience 

to deal with the legal and procedural complexities of a trial for 

drunk drivers. To provide them with a quick education on the 

subject, NHTSA has devised a special training course. The course 

was pilot-tested in Tampa, Florida in December 1980 before 

49 judges Under the auspices of the Florida State jUdicial educa

tion office. The course gives judges information on the pro

cedural and constitutional issues most frequently presented 

by traffic cases with emphasis on those issues in drunk driver 

cases. It also shows jUdges the diversity of penalties they 

can impose depending on the circumstances of the particular 

defendant. At present, 22 States have shown j.nterest in 

including the package in their judicial edUcation programs.' 
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Due to plea bargaining and dismissals, many pers::>I~ __ 

h d as drunk dr ;vers are not convicted on the originally c arge • 

charge. Hi1;:hout a conviction, no record exists. If arrested 

again on the charge, the person would be considered a first-time 

offender. All States currently have laws requiring courts to 

report all convictions to a central driver record,repository. 

Yet, even when the court convicts it is not uncommon to find 

that it neglects to send a record of the conviction to the central 

repository. Further, local courts often do not request driving 

records on defendants from the State motor vehicle department. 

Judges may be reluctant to order records because of the cumber

some, time-consuming access procedures required to obtain the 

records. As a result of these problems, local prosecutors and 

courts are unable to ,identify multiple drunk driver offenders 

and consequently fail to prosecute, convict and impose the 

harsher sanction such defendants deserve. Ideally, the States 

should strive to develop a Statewide driver record system to 

which courts will report drunk driver convictions and from 

which the courts can readily obtain conviction reports. To go 

one step further, cases which are plea bargained should be 

recorded as being alcohol-related. This' is now being done in 

Virginia. 

Based on our ASAP experience, we have found that in 

additi.:m to having an accurate record of prior convictions, the 

cOurts must also know the nature of a driver's arcoholic problem. 

With this knowledge, the courts can fashion the penalty that is 

best calculated to deter the defendant from driving drunk in the 

future. While a social drinker can be humiliated·by the 'typical 

penalties imposed on the drunk driver and may be deterred, an 

alcoholic cannot help himself. He requires more extensive 

attention which may include Alcoho.1ics Anonymous, group therapy, . 
individual counseling and probation. NHTSA has developed a 

course to train court caseworkers and probation officers to 

perform presentence investigations to screen defendants to deter-
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mine the level of their alcohol problems. This course has been 

presented in New York, Virginia, Pennsylvania and Texas. 

Courts in Pennsylvania currently conduct the presentence 

screening through the use of a Statew;de • computer system 

known as the Court Reporting lJetworker (CRN). The central 

data bank consolidates all existing, traffic records on a 

defendant and also evaluates the extent of his alcohol problem. 

The CRN system standardizes presentence investigations 

makes them less ~ostly and timeconsuming. With such a 

system, prosecutors and jUdges are more likely to order 

presentence investigations. 

and 

PUnishment Level , 

~fost States have legislated f' ;nes and • stiff license sanctions 

(suspensions or revocations) as penalties for the drunk d~iver. 
Some States prescribe a minimum ]'a;l term. h' • T ~s agency has been 

instrumental in getting the States to use education or treatment 

as an additional sanction for those conv;cted. • As I explained 

beforehand, many judges are reluctant to impose the stiff punish-

ment of license suspension or jail. Also, due to the tirne

consuming nat~re of the process, a penalty is not imposed until 

many months after arrest. 
By losing its immediacy, the pena~ty 

may become, in the mind of convicted d ' 
r~vers, society's unjust 

intrusion into their lives d 
an a threat to their livelihood. 

This produces resentment rather than contrition. 

Despite the difficulties in achieving convictions and 

imposing license sanctions, studies have found license suspension 

or revocation to be more effective in deterring future violations 

than either fines or jail. A study in California showed that 

drivers whose licenses were revoke'd e;ther.' . • d~d not drive, or 

drove more cautioUsly and were less likely to drive during those 

times when the probability of accidents is higher. 
As I mentioned 

earlier, Minnesota, in an effort to shorten the time between 

arrest and punishment, has initiated an automatic license suspen-

• 
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sion system for drivers found with a BAC level above 0.10 percent. 

This is in the right direction for the first offense. If the 

change can also be processed administratively, the court or 

, presl'dl'ng over the case may be more willing administratlve agency 

and able to speed the case along ~nd imp~se the legal penalty. 

The Solution: A Coordinated Program 

Despite the appalling statistics and the apparent continued 

inability of the criminal justice system to treat'drinking and 

driving as a serious offense, Federal State and local officials 

, bl As we all know, for decades, are not indifferent to thls pro em. 

Federal, State, and local governments have attempted to combat 

the drunk driver with projects and programs. Based on our 

evaluation of our ASAP projects, I want to make the following 

general recommendations. 

The goal of any State drUnk driver program should be to, 

increase the perceived risk of arrest, conviction and punishment 

among this group. To accomplish this, arrest and 'adjudicat.ion must 

be s\l7ift and sure. The bottlenecks in the enforcement and 
! 

adjudicati6n system must be eliminated. Therefore, a number of 

procedural actions must be taken simultaneously to prepare the 

police, judges r the prosecutors, probation officers, correction 

officals and health officers for the resultant surge in the number 

of arrests, trials, and convictions. State and local officials 

must not only increase arrests, they must also shorten booking 

time, shorten trial time, raise the, conviction rate on the 

original charge, assure apprOPriate punishment for those con

victed, keep a record of the conviction that is easily accessible 

to courts in case of future arrests on the same charge, and 

conduct a public information and equcation campaign. These 

procedural efforts will broadcast to the public the high priority 

that all e;Lements of the legalcomml.lnity accord a drunk driver 

arrest and their common resolve to punish it swiftly. 

To achieve these changes I we be,Ueve that a program intended 

.. 
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to deter the drunk driver must embrace the following elements. 

It must: 1) aim to deter the majority o'f drunk drivers who are 

never arrested; 2) generate citizen support to provide a political 

base for increased enforcement; 3) place responsibility for 

management in the hands of local officials; 4) coordinat~ all 

levels of enforcement adjudication and sanctioning so that the 

case prc~essing system works quickly and self~sufficiency by 

using fines, court costs and treatment fees to defray the costs 

of the program; 6) use education programs to change general 

public attitudes on drinking and driving. NHTSA intends to work 

with a few States to develop a comprehensive, coordinated alcohol-

safety program based on these six elements. We hope that these 

efforts will provide enough practical information so that other 

States will be encouraged to establish their own programs. 

A good starting point for any State would be a State task 

force, study of the drunk driver problem. In response to the 

rise of citizen activist groups such as MADD, RID (Remove Intoxi

cated Drivers), and PARK-IT and political pressure over the 

drunk driving problem, a number of States in recent years 

have established drunk driving task forces. Task forces have 

been established in New York, California, Maryland, Pennsylvania, 

and West Virginia. 

The results of these task forces have been impressive. 

New York has improved its drunk driver laws and now sends 

fines back to the local jurisdict~ons to' establish comprehensive, 

locally managed alcohol-safety programs. Maryland has enacted a 

preliminary breath,-tes.ting law, Which allows police to test the 

blood-alcohol level of those arrested ip order to establish pro-

bable cause to arrest. California hrtiS enacted an illegal per ~ 

BAC law and new minimum penalties. It is also presently holding 

legislative hearings on a proposed 5 cent per bottle liquor tax 
... 

as a means of financing comprehensive alcohol-safety programs. 

An effective local drunk driver program places greater 

demands on the police, the prosecutors, the courts, licen~in~ 
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agencies and the health/education agencies. A successful ca~paign 

drains money from the mUnicipal treasury. To meet the demands of 

a program, new sources of funding may be needed, such as the fines 

collected in the campaign. Many local governments, however, cannot 

retain fines collected from convicted drunk drivers. They must 

forward them to the State treasury. One solution to the 

funding problem is found in a recently adopted New York 

statute, which redistributes all drunk driver fines back 

to the counties for their drunk driver programs. Virginia, 

based on its experience with the Federal ASAP project in Fairfax 

County in the mid-1970s, also sends, money collected from fees back 

to the counties. Under this approach, the drunk driver, 

the driver who creates the problem, pays for its solution. 

A law making it unlawful per se to drive with a high blood

alcohol level is also a useful component of a coordinated drunk 

driver program. Nineteen States have enacted illeg{il per se.la\!IS 

that make a high BAC level in a defendant sufficient proof of 

intoxication. By reducing the elemen·ts of the crime to one item 

blood alcohol concentration - this law reduces not-guilty pleas, 

requests for trials and thus the pressure to plea bargain or to 

dismiss drunk driver cases. As a result, less police time is 

spent in court and officers have more incentive to make more 

drunk driver arrests. 

It also stands to reason that publicity of the new State 

campa~gns, particularly the increased vigilance by the police as 

well as the rise in the number of actual arrests and convictions, 

will heighten the perceived risk. This proved effective in 

Great Britain (1964) and Uew Zealand (1978). It is presently 

being used effectively by the Haryland Str\te police. 

The Federal Role 

Under the system of Federalism in this country, the States 

have retained the responsibility for policing roads to protect 

the health and safety of their citizens. NHTSA was organized, 
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in .part: to help the ·States more efficiently carry out their 

responsibility and reduce the number of traffic deaths and 

injuries. It has traditionally ~imed at providing the States 

with the latest highway safety research, demonstrating results, 

and serving as a central clearinghouse for the result to State 

pLojects or experiments in all areas of highway safety. 

Today the States look to NHTSA keep them ~P-to-date on 

the latest developments in the drunk driver field. The 

States want NHTSA to keep them informed on the SUccess or failure 

of innovative projects i~ other States. They want to learn from 

the experience of other States and avoid repeating the mistakes 

already made by other States. For similar reasons, the States' 

have requested NHTSA assistance to develop the in-house expertise 

to evaluate the success or failure of their own projects~and 

programs. In an effort to summarize drunk driver techniques 

that work, NHTSA has prepared a series of manuals and courses 

that are in great demand. We are distributing a manual for police 

on the detection of drunk drivers and a manual for court case-

workers to improve case processing and dispositiory. We have 

developed the only reliable interview question~aire for presentence 

investigation. We have conducted studies to improve a State's 

reporting systems for traffic conviction. We have developed q 

model traffic case management system as well as model laws to 

improve prosecution of the drunk driver. We have co-sponsored 

a national prosecutors conference on DWI and vehiclular homicide. 

We are also presenting courses to jUdges and police on efficient 

processing of those arrested as dJ;'unk driv.ers, and to alcohol

safety program coordinators on how to organize anq implement a 

comprehensive, locally .... managed program. 

Summary 

The drunk dr iv.er problem is not insurmountable. We know 

what needs to be done. The States do not so much need new laws 

on the problem as a resolve to enforce ~hem and to streamline 
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their criminal justice system procedures. NHTSA stands 

ready to work with the States and provide practical information 

so that they can set up coordinated and comprehensive drunk 

driver programs. 

The necessary resolve to change current State practices, 

however, can only be summoned if local citizens show active and 

vocal interest. Congressional hearings such as this pro~ide a 

national forum to elicit comments from these people and inspire 

action by others. The grass-root efforts of citizen groups in 

some States have been extremely successful and task forces have 

been set up. Now is the time for more citizens to convey to 

their State legislators, police, prosecutors and judges that 

drunk driving is a serious offense. The criminal justice 

system can work if the government institutions that maintain the 

system receive this clear signal. 

This concludes my statement. I would be pleased to answer 

any questions you might have. 

Senator DOLE" Senator Boschwitz has agreed to come' he should 
be on his way now. ' 

This should be a very interesting panel of representatives of law 
enforcement: Lt. Col. Johnny Lough, chief of the Field Operations 
Bure;au, Maryland ~tate Police; Chief Joe Milner, Department of 
PublIc Safety, AustIn, Tex.; Capt. Wayne Layfield of the Alcohol 
Enfo:cement Unit, Dist:ict of Columbia Police; and Mr. Milton 
SkYrIng, clerk ?f the CIty court, Baton Rouge, La., formerly in 
charge of the VIdeo program of DUI offenders, Baton Rouge City 
Police Department. 

I do not want to depart in the middle of someone's statement. I 
am waiting for Senator Boschwitz to arrive. 

Colonel Lough, are you going to be first? 
Colonel LOUGH. Yes, sir. . 
Senator DOLE. OK. Please proceed, and if you see a change up 

here, Senator Boschwitz will be presiding. 
Again, I wou~d say that we appreciate your taking time to come, 

and we appreCIate the good work you are doing in Maryland and 
t~e oth~r States. We also will try to follow up, and your sugges
tlO~S wIll be mo~t h~lprul, as you deal with it on a daily basis. 
WhIle we deal WIth It In a general way, you deal with the real 
~orld. We are very appreciative of your coming and giving your 
tIme. 
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TESTIMONY OF LT. COL. JOHNNY G. LOUGH, CHIEF, FIELD 
OPERATIONS BUREAU, MARYLAND STATE POLICE, PIKES. 
VILLE,MD. 

Colonel LOUGH. Mr. Chairman, I thank you for the invitation to 
testify in regard to the drinking driving problem. It is not a Mary
land problem alone; it is a nati()nal problem. 

In 1980" approximately 51,700 people died on our Nation's high
ways, and over 50 percent of those were alcohol related. In Mary
land, 782 people died. An indepth study of those 1980 fatal acci
dents revealed that 62 percent of the drivers, 65 percent of the pas
sengers, and 50 percent of the pedestrians ki~led had a positive 
blood-alconol content. 

On May 1 of this year, Gov. Harry Hughes and State Police Su
perintendent CoL Thomas Smith announced the most comprehen
sive effort ever undertaken in Maryland to identify and remove the 
drunk drivers from our highways. 

In 1980, 6,212 persons were arrested for drunk driving in Mary
land. In the first 9 months of 1981, 8,575 drivers have been al'rested 
for'drunk driving in Maryland by the Maryland troopers. This indi-
cates a 38 percent increase over the 1980 totals. ' 

If we continue at our present rate, the projection for drunk driv
ers by Maryland troopers alone will exceed 11,500 by the end of the 
year. The statewide total by all police officers in Maryland will 
exceed 20,000. 

This program is also supported by a Federal grant of $150,000. 
The majority of that is allocated to the payment of overtime for 
our troopers. . 

One of the most frustrating problems of our troopers is the dispo
sition of their cases in court: 4.1 percent of the cases that the troop
ers took to court received probation before judgment, 17 percent 
were convicted of driving while intoxicated, and all others were re
duced to a lesser charge or violation. 

In 1980 Governor Hughes appointed a task force on d:riving while 
intoxicated, and as a result of their efforts six new laws were 
passed and became effective on July 1, 1981. Those six laws can be 
found in the handout that I have presented today. 

I would just like to comment very briefly on one, of those laws. 
That is, when an individual is stopped for drunken driving and re
fuses to take the breath test, the law is that he receives a 60-day 
minimum suspension of his driver's license or a mandatory 6-
months suspension. The records of our State Motor Vehicle Admin
istration indicate that 89 percent of those people have received a 
minimum suspension and only 6 percent a maximum suspension. 

Also, in addition to those figures, 20 percent have restrictions 
placed on their driver's license which permit them to drive while 
their licenses are suspended. 

On August 21 of this year, the drunk driving problem took on a 
new perspective for me. On that day my 8-year-old grandson, Brian 
Robertson, was struck down and killed by a drunk driver. He was a 
second offender and was also drivi,7.1g on a revoked license. 

When I enter my daughter's 8A.d son-in-Iaw's house and see the 
pain and hurt in their hearts and the change in their lives, and 
when I see little Laura Lamb who is paralyzed from the shoulders 
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down and what a drunk driver did to that little girl, I say that it is 
about time for all those people who are in responsible positions to 
get off their behinds and do something about the problem. If they 
do not have the fortitude to do something about this problem, then 
they should get out of their jobs and be replaced by somebody who 
has the guts to do the job. 

Enforcement alone cannot solve the problem of the drunken 
driver. All people involved with these problems must do their job 
and do it well. I am talking about the law enforcement officers, the 
courts, the probation departments, the motor vehicle administra
tors, and all ot!:J.ers dealing with the drunk driver. . 

I thank the Federal Government for the support that they have 
given the Maryland State Police, and I would ask their continued 
support. I would suggest to this subcommittee that they recom
mend to the President of the United States that he appoint a blue 
ribbon task force, not to study the problem of the drunk driver, but 
deal with it on a national basis. 

I thank you for the invitation once again. 
Senator DOLE. Colonel, I thank you very much for that excellent 

testimony. Certainly, a personal tragedy reinforces what you said. 
I think we do have a responsibHity. You are right: We do not 

need a task force to study the problem; we need a task force to 
make strong recommendations and then put enough heat on the 
Congress or on the States, depending on what the task force might 
recommend, to do something. We are going to need the help and 
support of men like we have on this panel. 

I am going to now ask Senator Boschwitz if he would be willing 
to preside for the next 30 or 40 minutes. 

Senator BOSCHWITZ. Certainly. 
Senator DOLE. He may have some questions of the panel later. 
Senator BOSCHWITZ [acting chairman]. Colonel, what happened to 

the driver? What kind of a suspension did that driver receive who 
struck down your grandchild? 

Colonel LOUGH. The case has been adjudicated, sir. He was 
charged with three different charges. He was charged with homi
cide by intoxication and was found not gu.ilty of that charge. He 
was charged with driving while intoxicated and was found guilty. 
He was charged with operating on a suspenrlt"!d license and was 
found guilty on that charge. He was sentenced to 1 year in jail and 
fined $250 for the suspended license, which will mean actually that 
he will receive the fine of $250 and will be on the road again in 3 
months because of good b~havior in all probability. . 

Senator BOSCHWITZ. The jail sentence was suspended? 
Colonel LOUGH. It was not suspended. 
Senator BOSCHWITZ. Weare certainly of a like mind. 
Have each one of you on the panel already testified? 
Chief MILNER. No, sir. 
Senator BOSCHWITZ. In that case, would you please introduce 

yourself and make your statement? 
We are going to continue the hearing until its conclusion, so 

please proceed. 
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TESTIMONY OF CAPT. 'If A YNE LAYFIELD, ALCOHOL ENFORCE
MENT UNIT, DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA POLICE DEPARTMENT, 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 

Captain LAYFIELD. For the past 2 years the District of Columbia 
has recorded the lowest traffic death rate among the 50 States. The 
District's rate of 1.6 persons killed for every 100 million vehicle 
miles traveled is well below the national average of 3.4. 

This success has been achieved primarily through limited 402 
funding. The alcohol countermeasures program led by the enforce
·ment efforts of the Metropolitan Police Department has spearhead
ed this attack upon the No.1 killer on the highway today, the 
drunk driver. 
. Between 1970 and 1974, prior to establishment of an alcohol 
countermeasures program, traffic fatalities were at an all-time 
high, with alcohol being a major factor in over 57 percent of all fa
talities. Fewer than 900 drunk driving arrests were made per year, 
and the average blood alcohol level was an astonishing .31 percent 
at time of arrest. 

With the assistance of 402 funding, the Metropolitan Police De
partment was able to update its archaic programs by replacing 
time-consuming processes such as urine testing, with modern 
chemical test instruments; by expanding the DUI enforcement unit 
through overtime programs; and by developing new nUl arrest pro
cedures through utilization of a mobile alcohol van for on-the"scene 
testing, thereby significantly reducing arrest downtime from 6.5 
hours in 1974 to less than 30 minutes in 1980. 

Senator BOSCHWITZ. What does that mean-the amount of time 
an officer's downtime? 

Captain LAYFIELD. That is correct, sir. In 1974, officers were 
down as much as 6 % hours. With the advent of the new equipment 
and with the advent of the mobile van, we have now reduced that 
time to less than 30 minutes. 

These funds also provided expansion of training programs and 
over 100 officers were trained on a yearly basis in the operation of 
the breathalyzer. In 1979 an automated training system for refresh
er training of police officers was funded. This self-train computer is 
equipped with an inherent feature that provides for around-the
clock availability allowing the officer to train at his most conven-
ient and less busy time during any tour of duty. . 

Funds also provided for the {}urchase of roadside breath testers, a 
screening device used at the scene to determine borderline drunks 
rather than utilizing less scientific methods such as psycho-motor 
testing. 

Through the alcohol countermeasures coordinator, a diversion 
program was established under the auspices of the corporation 
counsel's office. This program permits those arrested with a .20 or 
less blood alcohol level, who have no prior convictions or are not 
involved in a serious accident, to be diverted from the criminal jus
tice system, after pleading guilty, and then receive help' from an 
established and approved alcohol counseling center. 

The cost burden of ihis program is totally the responsibility of 
the respondent, and the recidivism rate is less than 4 percent, com
pared to 16 to 18 percent for those who do not enter the program. 
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Since the implementation of these programs, there are nearly 
4,000 drunk drivers arrested on a yearly basis compared with fewer 
than 900 in the early 1970's. 

The average blood alcohol level has dropped from a .31 percent 
at the time of arrest to .18. Traffic fatalities have decre;:lsed from 
121 in 1970 to 46, an all-time low, in 1980, with alcohol being a 
major factor decreasing from 57 percent to 33 percent. 

These programs are the principal reasons for making the District 
of Columbia the safest city in the United States to drive in. One of 
the things we have to reali'?:e is that law enforcement administra
tors have one common denominator, and that is the reduction of 
crime in their community, and justifiably so. 

However, as opposed to various other criminal justice programs, 
highway safety does not take a front seat in many typical large 
urban police departments. Rather, highway safety systems have to 
be inborn; they have to be instilled through training, through 
strong leadenhip and salesmanship; through a tie-in between high
way functions, such as the reduction of drunk driving, and an 
urban police function, such as the prevention of street crime, and 
the tie-in is the understanding of the relationship between alcohol 
and street crime. 

Federal highwe.y safety programs had helped fillthls gap left by 
many police administrators in their commitment toward crime con
trol and the deemph<:<.sis of traffic enforcement brought about by 
this worthy objective. If this balance is to remain, then it is neces
sary that Federal funding on a cost-sharing basis continue with 
input from both local ana. Federal sources in order to make our 
highways the safest in the world. 

In keeping with PresiClent Reagan's philosophy of cost-efficient 
programing, our alcohol countermeasures program and police traf
fic services programs have been merged. Alcohol countermeasures 
and police traffic serviceq-that is, speed enforcement, accident in
vestigation, et cetera-are the two predominant function::; of any 
urban pollce department's traffic diT.1sion, and aggressive enforce
i:lent of these two prominent causes of fatalities and serious traffic 
accidents involving alcohol and speed will reduce the carnage on 
our highways and our cities' streets. 

Thank you. 
Senator BOSCHWITZ. 1'hank you, Captain Layfield. 
Our next panelist is Chief Joe Milner of the Department of 

r .!blic Safety, Austin, Te~. 
Please proceed. 

STATEMENT OF CHIEF JOE MILNER, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC 
SAFETY, AUSTIN, TEX. 

Chief MILNER. Thank you, very much, Benator. I would like to 
express my appreciation for the interest of this subcommittee in 
this important subject. 

I have submitted a detailed statement of my testimony, and I 
would not be redundant by going through all the figures and the 
statistics that the subcommittee has already taken testimony on. I 
would simply state that the DWI problem is no different in Texas 
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than across the Nation. It is one of our leading causes of traffic 
fatalities. 

From the standpoint of the enforcement officer, at the time he 
confronts the drunken driver, it is not important to him whether it 
happens to be a problem drinker, a social drinker, or what have 
you; it is simply an immediate hazard that his job is to remove 
from the highway. 

You heard it mentioned earlier that it takes a great deal of time 
for an officer to process a drinking driver. Obviously while he is 
processing one he is not available for enforcement of that law or 
other laws. 
. I echo what has already been said-that perhaps stiffer penal

ties, per se, are not the answer, but the certainty of apprehension 
and the certainty of a swift adjudication with appropriate penalties 
would be the gre.atest deterrent for reducing this, what I consider 
a nationwide problem. ' 

frhat is all I have to say. 
. Senator BOSCHWITZ. What is your judgment on swift adjudica

tion, and what should the penalties be, in your judgment? 
Chief MILNER. In my opinion, the greatest deterrent would be a 

s,?spension of,the dr~ver's lictmse. If there was a mandatory suspen
~Ion ~f the d~Iver's hc.e~se of each person convicted of driving while 
mtoxICated, m my OpInIOn that would create the best deterrent for 
removing drinking drivers. 

Senator BOSCHWITZ. For what period of time? 
Chief MI~E~. The period of time would be arbitrary, but 60 days 

to 90 days mmimum would probably be appropriate in my opinion. 
Senator BoscHWITz. Do you also feel that part of the statute 

should not be plea bargaining-they should not be able to plead or 
that ~harges should not be dropped for reckless driving? 

ChIef MILNER. S~nator, the most frustrating thing to a law en
forcem~nt person IS the lack of prosecutions. Plea bargaining is 
somethIng that occurs because of crowded doekets. The criminal 
doc~et~ of ~he Nation are so crowded; it is not unique to driving 
while IntoxICated. Crowe:" 3d conditions force plea bargaining. It is 
not a good way to handle it. I do not know of any other way other 
than increasing the staff of the prosecutor's office. ' 

Senator BOSCHWITZ. Thank you. 
Th~ next member of the panel is Mr. Milton R. Skyring, clerk of 

t~e Clty court of Baton Rouge, La., and formerly in charge of the 
vIdeo program of DUI Offenders, Baton Rouge City Police Depart
ment. 

Mr. Skyring? 

S1'ATEMENT OF MILTON R. SKYRING, CITY COURT CLERK AND 
JUDICIAL ADMINISTRATOR AND ,PROJECT DIRECTOR, HIGH
WAY SAFETY PROGRAM, BATON ROUGE, LA. 

Mr. SKY~!NG; ~enator, o.ur local DWI countermeasures program 
w~s estabhspea In 1~79 WIth 402 seed money as a direct result of 
DIa~e Steed s efforts In.the local community. 

:W~th the understandIng. that we. would receive approximately $1 
millIon for the 3-year perIOd, we Implemented an extremely com
prehensIve program. Our program included public information and 
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education, enforcement, the judiciary, probation and rehabilita
tion, traffic records, legislation, and program management and 
evaluation. . 

Basically, our program consists of a9signing eight off-duty pohce 
officers on Friciay and Saturday nights from 8 p.m. to 6 a.m. t~e 
following morning. This task force has two vans .. Each .van IS 
equipped with an intoxilyzer and videotape recording eq~Ipment 
and sound recording equipment. Each van costs approXImately 
$37,000 to purchase and equip. 

When the project originated, it took approxima~el~ 6 months for 
an individual who was arrested to go to court. WIthin a matter of 
90 to 120 days, we had reduced that pe:riod to 2 weeks.. . . 

We achieved this in three ways: FIrst, a fourth dIVISIOn of the 
city court was created to handle o.nly DWI-related cases. :rhe grant 
funds the judge's salary, two c\erIcal employees for the Judge, .tyvo 
clerical employees in the clerk s office, and one courtroom bruliff. 

Second, the grant funded one additio?al cit~ prosecutor an~ a 
clerical employee that handled only DWI cases ill the DWI sectIon 
of the court. 

Third the grant allo~Ned us to hire three additional probation of
ficers t~ process all referrals, thereby enabling us to reduce the 
pres'entence investigation time to 60 days. Now, from date of arrest 
to date of sentencing is approximately 70 days in our court. 

The videotape made at the time of arrest serves a multitude of 
purposes. One of the very first experimental tapes we h~d w~ of 
an individual who ran a .16. He was arrested on Saturaay nIght, 
was unable to bond out, and was brought into court for Monday 
morning jail callout. 

In my office we W9re reviewing the tapes,. and someone recog
nized the defendant as the same one as bemg In the courtroom. He 
was brought in, and we let him review the tape with us. 

Within approximately 2 minutes, he was begging us not to force 
him to continue to watch the film. He was extremely embarrassed 
and did not realize how he had acted under the influence of alco
hol. It is our u.nderstanding that he subsequently sought medical 
treatment for his problem. 

Because of this person's reaction to the film, we made a decision 
to open the films up to defendants, defense attorneys, prosecuting 
attorneys, and the probation officers. 

Ironically, our preliminary figures for 1980 and 1981 show an 
amazing correlation between DWI arrests recorded on videotape 
and those individuals not recorded on tape. Specifically, of all cases 
that went to trial and were found guilty by the judge, there was 
only a I-percent difference between those on tape and those not on 
tape. 

Likewise, with those who went to trial and were found not guilty 
by the judge, again, there was only a I-percent differen~e. The.larg
est variation was in the area of "changed plea to guIlty prIor to 
triaL" In this instance, 6 percent of all individuals whv are taped 
plead guilty prior to trial. 

Based on our findings-and, again, these are only after 1 year
we would not recommend that every agency desirous of improving 
their DWI conviction rate run out and purchase expensive video
tape recording equipment. 
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We do not profess to have the answers to the multitude of prob
lems presented by the individuals who are driving while under the 
influence. However, of the major cities in Louisiana where histori
cally the number of serious accidents have been steadily increasing 
each year, for the first time in Baton Rouge this lluml'er has been 
held at a constant figure for 2 years now-the same time as the 
inception of our program. We would like to think that this is due to 
our program. From October 1980 to September 1981, our conviction 
rate has been 98 percent. 

Finally, in closing, the greatest difference between our program 
and the previous alcohol safety action projects is that ours includes 
a legislatively mandated judgeship. 

When Federal and State funding runs out in September of next 
year, our program will continue and all the ancillary positions with 
it. The only thing we will suffer is the lack of the public informa
tion and education portion. 

Thank you. 
Senator BOSCHWITZ. Let me say that you seem to have spread 

this money quite a way. I see you had 11 additional people, as far 
as I can judge, plus the vans, plus the eight off-duty police officers. 
You have got a lot of mileage out of the money, I must say. 

Pardon my ignorance; I am not a member of this committee, but 
I am here because of my interest in the subject. I testified earlier 
this morning, and Senator Dole asked me to eonduct the hearing. 

That videotape seems to me to be a very effective mechanism, 
but you say that you do not recommend the videotape for each 
individual department. 

Mr. SKYRING. Again, our figures are only based on 1 year's activi
ty; they are preliminary at best. They are very successful at the 
probation end and the treatment portion of our program. It assists 
the judiciary; it takes out the subjectiveness of the police testimo
ny. The officer testifies that, "He swayed." The gentleman is sit
ting in front of the judge in his three-piece suit and is quite reputa
ble in the community, yet on videotape this individual was swaying 
and staggering. 

Senator BOSCHWITZ. Is that admissible as evidence? 
Mr. SKYRING. Yes, sir. We have been taken all the way up to the 

Supreme Court. 
Senator BOSCHWITZ. So it is admissible. That would be something 

that would be very powerful. Is it something that has been widely 
used? 

Mr. SKYRING. As far as we understand, no other local court is 
using it anywhere in the Nation. It is being used for arraignment 
purposes, but it is not being used for trials. I may be incorrect. 

Colonel LOUGH. It is being used in Anne Arundel County. 
Captain LAYFIf'·LD. In the District of Columbia, we have used it 

for the past 3 years. We did quit the use of it because of one major 
factor, and that was the cost involved. You cannot continue to 
rerun the same tapes, because they become evidentiary materials, 
and they have to be preserved. When you make nearly 4,000 ar
rests a year, that calls for a lot of funds to pay for a lot of tapes. 
that have to be preserved until such time as the case has been ad-
judicated. -
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Senator BOSCHWITZ. I see. Are you able to get the cases through 
as speedily as they are down in Baton Rouge? 

Captain LAYFIELD. Thanks to our diversion program, we have a 
very high percentage going into this program now, which means 
that it really speeds up the total picture of the case. 

Senator BOSCHWITZ. Colonel, do you use that kind of thing in 
Maryland? 

Colonel LOUGH. No; we have a problem with that. Our cases run 
anywhere from 60 days to possibly 3 months before they are adjudi
cated. 

Senator BOSCHWITZ. You have to hold on to the tapes? How long 
do you hold on to them? 

Mr. SKYRING. Thirty days, unless the individual takes an appeal. 
After 30 days, his right to appeal has gone. 

Senator BOSCHWITZ. So you reuse the tapes? 
Mr. SKYRING. Yes, sir. We can reuse the tapes as many as 30 

times. 
Colonel LOUGH. But in Maryland we are not using the tapes in 

the State police. Anne Arundel County is using them, but I think 
they keep them for well over 1 year. 

Senator BOSCHWITZ. Staff tells me he does not think such a tape 
would be admissible in Maryland. 

Mr. VELDE. That was the problem with the Sting cases. We could 
admit the audio portion but not the video under the rules of evi
dence in Maryland as far as the Sting was concerned; I do not 
know about the DWI cases. 

Colonel LOUGH. I believe they are admitting the videotape por
tion on DWI in Anne Arundel County. They are admissible. 

Senator BOSCHWITZ. It is always a pleasure to listen to the expe
riences of Baton Rouge. Do you do that down in Texas, too? 

Chief MILNER. In various counties we have used that, but be
cause, as mentioned, we file abou.t 80,000 DWI cases a year, we just 
could not afford the cost of that on a statewide basis. It has not 
proven, at least on a very limited basis, that much better convic
tion rate. 

Senator BOSCHWITZ. But you say that when the defendant sees 
himself staggering around--

Mr. SKYRING. As far as conviction goes, no, sir, it has not im
proved our conviction rate at all. We bandle approximately 3,000 
DWI's a year, and 98 percent of those plead guilty or are found 
guilty. Of that number, fewer than 50 percent are on videotape. 
Those figures I have used are only with videotape. 

Senator BOSCHWITZ. Let me turn to the staff for a minute, inas
much as I am not a member of this committee, and ask if they 
have any questions or if there is anything further we ehould elicit 
from these witnesses. 

Mr. VEW.B. Thank you, Senator. 
Have you ever experimented with officers using mobile portable 

television equipment actually on the scene of the arrest? 
Mr. SKYRING. That is what we have. 
Mr. VELDE. Oh, that is what you do. I thought it was back at the 

station. 
~Mr. SKYRING. No, sir. We have two vans that are out on the road. 
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Mr. VELDE. It is commonly used, I understand in the station in 
other jurisdictions. ' 

Mr. SKYRING. I think that points up the lack of communication 
between jurisdictions. 
~r. VELDE. Have any of your officers had experience with the 

NatIOnal Driver's Registry? 
Colonel LOUGH. We participate in it; yes, sir~ 
Mr. VELDE. Did you use the Inlet system? 
Colonel LOUGH. Yes; we did. 
Mr. VELDE. Inlet is still in operation, as I understand it. 
What about the overall problem of exchanging driver record in

formation with other jurisdictions? Do you have a problem in 
Texas of persons ~ith a revo~ed, lic~nse status in Texas going to 
other ~tates, gettmg new driver s lIcenses, or assuming another 
name m Texas and getting back on the roads with a license under 
false pretenses? 

Chief MILNER. We do have problems, bl1t I do not know the 
ex~ent of them. We notice it primaril:y in interstate long-haul truck 
drIvers who are commonly lIcensed ill many States. A suspension 
to some of them in one State is not much of a deterrent. 

Mr. VELDE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Senator BOSCHWITZ. Let me ask a question that the staff has 

posed. Do public attitudes toward drunk driving cause the public to 
resent y~ur enforcement efforts? I wonder, Colonel, if you would 
speak brIefly on tl,lat, and we will ask each one of you to speak. 
What are the publIc attitudes toward your enforcement of statutes 
with respect to drunk driving? 

Colol!-el LOUGH. I think the public attitude is probably one of the 
m?s~ difficult problems we have in the enforcement of the drunk 
driVIng laws. As other testimony indicated here today, many of the 
people . who are arre~ted for drunk driving are very reputable 
people In ,~he communIt:r. As ~hey said, "There, ~ut for the grace of 
God, go I. T~ey are SOCIal drmkers. The old saymg, "I just had one 
for the road, or one too many is probably not true. The statistics 
ar~ showing that not to be true now. Many of the people who are 
beIng arrested now are shown to have, as a result of the breath 
tests and the bl~od ~ests, to have a very high concentration of blood 
alcohol. The attitude of the general public is a very serious prob
lem. 
. Senator BOSCHWITZ. Are you saying that the public in general ob
Jects to your enforcement of. these procedures, or are you saying 
that ~hose who are arrested object? Of course those who are arrest
ed object. 

Colonel LOUG~. T~e~ really ~o not object to people being arrest
ed so much; I thInk It IS more Just a general apathy on their part. 
It has not really struck home to the people. 

. For example, my own daughte~ ~ho comes from a police family, 
dId .n~t realIze .that the drunk drIVIng was really a s8rious problem 
until It st~uck In her.ho~e and her son Brian was killed on August 
21; she dId not realIze It was really a problem' the apathy was 
there in the police family. ' 

Senator ~OSCHWIT~. I w~nder ~f any of the others on the panel 
wan~ to dISCUSS the publIc attitude toward drunk driving and 
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whether there is resentment with respect to the enforcement that 
you do. 

Captain LAYFIELD. Senator, I think that "apathy" is a very good 
word to describe the problem that exists. I think that generally the 
community wants to see the law enforced, but when they are sit
ting in the jury box and they are hearing a case, they put them
selves in the shoes of the defendant and say, "Well, I have done the 
same thing. I was just fortunate in not getting caught." I think 
that apathy does exist very, very much. 

Yet the public does say, "\Vell, we want it enforced, but don't en
force it against me; enforce it against everyone else out there who 
is drinking." I think this is the general feeling. Alcohol abuse itself 
is a problem in the District of Columbia, as you may be aware. 
There is more alcohol consumed in the District per capita than 
anywhere in the United States. Without question, alcohol is a prob
lem, especially in the District, and especially when you have a jury. 
The chances are that some member of that jury may be an alcohol
ic as well. 

Colonel LOUGH. One of the very first things that you hear asked 
by a wife when she finds out her husband has been arrested for 
drunk driving is, "Will it be in the local newspaper?" She asked 
that before she finds out how drunk her husband was. They are 
just more concerned about the embarrassment that it is going to 
cause. 

Chief MILNER. The public supports a vigorous enforcement pro
gram. I think the public apathy, as has been mentioned here, is re
flected more in jury decisions or judges' decisions than actual en
forcement. They are all for removing the drunk driver from the 
road. I think they recognize the problem there. It is only later that, 
when you talk about the seriousness of the penalty, it is not related 
to the problem. 

Senator BOSCHWITZ. Do you have anything to add to that? 
Mr. SKYRING. No. We have the complete support of our local 

community. No one is against us in our enforcement. 
Senator BOSCHWITZ. We thank you, gentlemen, for coming here 

today and testifying and participating in this important issue. 
[The prepared statements of Colonel Lough, Chief Milner, and 

Mr. Skyring follow:] 
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PREPARED ~TEMENT OF CoL. JtNY G I loUGH 

Mr. Chairtl1an, other distinguished members' of the Sub-connnittee, 

I thank you for the invitatio; to testify on the problems dealing with 

drunk drivers. 

INTRODUCTION 

A highway safety problem that has been addressed numerous times 

and in diverse ways by various groups within our society is the per

sistent problem of the drinking driver and how the drinking driver 

sig?ificantly correlates with the f~tality rate on our highways. 

The problem is not a State of Maryland problem alone, it is a 

national problem. Preliminary estimates by NHTSA reveal that 51,700 

lives were lost for the year 1980 due to traffic crashes. An average 

of 14~ persons a day died from this senseless slaughter on our high

ways. It is estimated that fifty percent of the deaths in traffic 

crashes i.n the United States every year are alcohol-related. Maryland 

experienced 782 highway fatalities in 1980. Of these fatal crashes, 

60.2% of th~ Victir.1S tested had .a positive BAC. Cost estimates by 

the National Safety Council for ·1979 revealed that motor vehicle acci

dents cost the nation in excess of $35 billion. The Insurance :nstitute 

on Highway Safety reports that since 1975 the total monetary loss 

in highway crashes is second only to cancer in total dollars spent. 

HISTORICAL REVIEW 

Ever since the automobile began to make its appearance on our 

streets and highways, we have been confronted by the hazard of the 

drinking driver. It was not until 1968, however, that significant 

efforts on DWI enforcement began with the Highway Safety Act of 1966, 

and the 1968 Report to Congress on Alcohol and Highway Safety that 

formed the basis for Alcohol Safety Action Projects (ASAPS). In 

1979, NHTSA announced a renewed emphasis on curbing the drunk driver. 

In the spring of 1·980, Governor Harry Hughes of Maryland organized 

a statewide task force in an effort to address the drinking driver 

dilemma. 

A review of Maryland's fatal accidents for 1980 revealed that 

a low percentage ,of alcohol related crashes were being reported. 

Further study foun~ that the medical examiner's results showed a 

greater alcohol involvement than the actual accident report. This 
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prompted an indepth study of 1980 fatal Bfcidents which revealed that 

62% of the drivers, 65% of the passengers, and 50% of the pedestrians 

killed had a positive BAC; Seven out of ten of the driving victims 

had BAC ~evels at or above the le~al limit of .10%. 

On May I, 1981, Governor Harry Hughes and State Police Super

intendent Thomas S. Smith announced the most comprehensive effort 

ever undert~ken in Maryland to identify and remove drunk drivers 

from the highway. 

Our emphasis is being supported in part by a $150,000 federal 

highway safety grant that pays a Trooper overtime to patrol roads 

which have been identified as having a high number of alcohol related 

accidents,. Troopers also received additional training in ways to 

spot drunk drivers and are using a special detection guide that 

was developed by NHTSA. 

POLICE ENFORCEMENT OF DWI 

In 1980, 6,212 DWI arrests were made by the Maryland State 

Police. During the first nine months of 1981, there have been 8,575 

DWI arrests by our Troopers. This represents a 38% increase ovex 

the 1980 total. A projection for 1981 is that our Troopers will 

apprehend nearly 11,500 drinking drivers. Furthermore, it is pro

jected that 1981 statewide figures will exceed 20,700 drinking driver 

arrests. 

A review of at fault drivers killed and tested in fatal crashes 

for the first six months of 1981 revealed th~t 76.2% had positive 

BAC. Additionally, 44% of the persons killed that were tested for 

BAC during the same period had BAC at or above the legal limit of .10%. 

As of May 1, 1981, Maryland was +12.3% in fatalities'over the 

same period in 1980. Our DWI program began on May 1. 1981 and as of 

October 1, 1981, the fatalities were at +3.S% over 1980 fig~res. 

Of those fatalities tested for BAC prior to program implementa

tion, 60.2% of those victims tested had positive BAC. This percent 

was consistent with the 1980 figures. 

Of those fatalities tested for BAC during the second four month 

period, 56.6% were found to have positive BAC. This represents a 

3.6% reduction in over,'all alcohol related deaths when compared to 

1980 figures. 
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Total fatalities tested for BAC during the first eight months 

of 1981 revealed a 58.4% BAC. This is a 1.8% reduction in alcohol 

related fatalities when compared to the 60.2% for 1980. 

The quantity of arrests has increased but the quality has not 

diminished. We are, however, arresting a greater number of intoxi

cated drivers with levels of .05 or more. 

In 1968, a major study by the U.S. Department of Transportation 

revealed that those with drinking problems, as well as social drinkers, 

contributed disproportionately to highway deaths. Individuals with 

chronic drinking problems were found to be responsible for about 

two-thirds of the alcohol related deaths. Most 'recent studies by 

NHTSA in, 1979 revealed that statistics compiled on drunk drivers 

each year contradict the po'pular notion \-f the poor guy who only 

had one too many - 45 to 75% of drivers at fault in fatal crashes 

were severely impaired by alcohol. The majority of drunk drivers 

at fault in the more than 20,000 alcohol-related fatal crashes each 

year are at or above the .10% blood alcohol level of intoxication. 

LEGISLATION VS. ENFORCEMENT 

The authority under which police apprepend and arrest drivers 

for DW: is provided by state and municipal statutes that make it 

unlawful to drive while intoxicated. While these statutes present 

a legal framework within which the police officer may act, they also 

are designed "to prctect the constitutional guarantees of individual 

citizens. 

Elementa of the offense of DWI are subject to considerable 

variations according to statutes of different states. Legal require

ments dictate the nature and sequence of particular steps that the 

police must follow. Thus, the officers must establish probable cause 

prior to arrest, including detection of erratic driving behavior 

and observation or testing the suspect. 

Disposition of DWI cases administered by the Maryland State 

Police in 1980 revealed that 4.1% received probation before judgment. 

Only 17% of all cases disposed of in 1980 received a D~IT conviction. 

TIle other cases were either lesser included offenses or dispo~ed of 

by other means (reduced to another violation). Often, some law 

enforcement officers perceived their efforts to apprehend and convict 
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the DWI offender as a futile attempt at best. A manifestation of their 

cynicism permeates the criminal justice system and creates an unwill-

ingness on the part of law enforcement to divert manpower and resources 

toward this traffic offense. According to most studies, public atti

tudes may be the greatest single obstacle to a successful attack on 

the problem of drinking and driving. 

A package of six new laws which w'as developed by the Governor's 

Task Force on the Drinking Driver was signed into law by Governor 

Harry H~ghes and became effective July 1, 1981. One law allows police 

to conduct a roadside preliminary breath test of persons suspected 

of driving drunk. This pre-arrest screening device can be used to 

help to determine if the driver should be arrested. 

Another law mandates a minimum license suspension of two months 

a~J provides for up to a six month maximum suspension for drivers 

who refuse to take an evidentiary chemical test for alcohol once 

they have been charged by a police officer with driving under the 

influence. Another new law authorizes the arresting police officer 

to determine the type of test to be administered when a motorist 

initially selected one but later decides to change to another test 

which is unavailable within specified time limits. 

Professional drivers will no longer be able to get an extension 

of points in licensing actions where the subsequent points result 

from an alcohol conviction. The previous law allowed certain, pro

fessional drivers to accumulate 16 points before license suspension, 

ev.en if they had an alcohol conviction. 

Under another law, the Motor Vehicle Administration will record 

probation before judgment for alcohol offenses on the person's driving 

record. 

The sixth new law reduces the permissible blood alcohol level 

for drivers using Maryland's highways. 

Driving, under the infauence has been lowered from .10% BAC to 

,08% BAC and driving while intoxicated has been lowered from .15% BAC 

to .13% BAC. 

RECOMMENDATIONS ON HOW LAW ENFORCEMENT PROCESS1NG OF DWI MAY 
BE IMPROVED 

1. Creation of a National Blue Ribbon Task Forc~ by the Pres i-
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dent of the United States, 
not to study the problem of the'drunk 

driver, but to address the problems 

officers and others lo·n removing the 
encoun~ered by law enforcement 

drunk driver from the highway. 
2. Creati~n of a National B h -

minimum req . 
reat Test Law 'it~b.ich would set 

uloreme'nts for .training and instrument performance 
standards. 

3. Federal assistance in developing training 

detec,tion ano apprehension of the drinking drlo'ver. 
programs for the 

audio visual aids, lesson plans and student guides. 
This would include 

4. Federal assistance in th d 
e evelopment of an accurate in-car 

breath testing instrument. 

5. Streamline state laws for the arrest and 
processing of 

DWI offenders. 

6. Federal statute which protects medical persons from civil 

liability who withdraw blood from persons 
arrested for DWI. 

6. Creation of a National Standard which ~ould allow ,the results 
of chemical tests 

to be admitted into evidence without th~ 
- :person 

who conducted the t t b 
es to e present unless summonsed by the defendant. 

SUMMARY 

On August 21, 1981, the problem of the drunk driver took on an 

entirely different perspective to me. . 
My eight year old grandson, 

Brian Robertson, was killed by d 
a secon offender drunk driver. He 

was also driving on revoked license. Wh 
en I visit my daughter and 

son-in-law's home and see the loss, palo·n d h 
an c ange in their lives, 

and what I feel iI, my own heart and that f o my wife, I realize its 
time that those people in 1bl respons e positions do something about 
this problem or bId b e rep ace y people Who will. 

Enforcement alone cannot provide a complete solution to the 

problem of the drinking driver. 

Drinking and driving constitutes a national highway safety 

problem that the st t h a es ave attempted to deal effectively with 
for many years. Contlo· d f nue Support rom the Federal government in 

the areas previously addressed through the Highway Safety Act and 

further support by' the Federal 
government of our recommendations 

directed at unifying state efforts ~o address thl.s national menace 

is necessary to deal with the problem. 

88-986 0-82--7 
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF JOE E. MILNER 

Mr. Chairman and Committee Members, on behalf of the Texas 

Department of Publtc Safety I wish to express our appreciation for 

the opportunity to testify on this important matter. The fo1101'ling 

comments regarding the problem of driving while intoxicated are sub

mitted for your consideration. 

The drinking driver1s effect on the safety of citizens travel-

ing the street~ and highways is comparable to a malignant condition. 

Alcohol1s influence on drivers has resulted in a devastating toll Qf 

deaths, mangled bodies, and an astronomical economic loss td society. 

Driving while intoxicated in Texas during. 1980 was the primary con

tributing factor in 875 fatal accidents; 1,006 traffic deaths; 15,464 

injury accidents; 24,919 personal injuries; and 17,501 property damage 

accidents for a total of 33,840 accidents. Using the National Safety 

Council1s formula. the economic loss was estimated to be $685 million 

statewide. the dr1nking driver attributed to 23% of the fatal traffic 

accidents. The problem reflected in these statistics will probably 

become much worse in our state due to the projected population in

creases, economic growth and business vitality of the sunbelt region. 

Stat1stic~1 data available in T~x~~ on alcohol related motor vehicle 

accidents does not accurately measure the magnitude otf this problem. 

We do not have statutory authority for chemical testing of deceased 

or disabled accident victims but based on findings from states that 

have that auth9rity, drinking drivers are involved in 50% of all 

fata 1 accidents. 

Enforcement of drivipg while intoxicated statutes has encountered 

limitattons that can be attriffuted to inadequate resources. With in

creased public demand for police services in other areas, the re

sources committed to traffi~ law e~forcement by some administrators 
/1 

are not sufficient to ~ontrol or reduce the problem. There is just 

not an adequate deterrent to drun~ driving at the present time. 

Texas Department of Public Safety troopers fiCoed 40,273 driving while 

intoxicated cases ~d 1980. The state total of arrests in 1980 is not 

availab1eihowever, breath alcohol tests were cond.ucted on 81,220···· 
<-' \ 1 

drivers. Although this department's troopers continue to vJgorously 

enforce the.driving while into~icated statutes and do succeed in 

~ 
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momentarily removing the hazardous drive~ from the streets and high

ways~ a significant number of persons arrested are never brought to 

trial. The most apparent reasons for lack of prosecution are crowded 

dockets in the existing courts and limited staffing of prosecuting 

attorneys. This problem is not unique to the prosecution of driving 

while intoxicated cases as it affects all criminal cases in the 

criminal justice system. This indicates that increased funding is. 

needed to expand the judicial system to meet the demand and ensure 

a speedy trial for persons charged with offenses. Cases and dispo
sitions were as follows: 

Total DWI Charge Not Local No Pros-
Arrests Guilty Changed Probated Acquitted Located Dismissal ecution Other 

40621 6073 

40801 / 7353 

40273 6689 

1919 

a433 

2474 

18764 

23035 

12101 

112 

205 

131 

77 

182 

110 

2308 

3492 

2179 

6372 

7291 

6256 

612 

935 

6963* 

* Includes 6326 arrests which resulted in deferred adjudication. 

The Tex~s Legislature has amended the Misdemeanor Adult Probation 

Act relating to driving while intoxicated effective January 1, 1982 

which will allow the courts to require defendants as a condition of 

probation to attend an educational prog~am. The objectives of the 

program are to reh~bilitate persons who have been convicted of driving 

while intoxicated. This educational program must be jOintly approved 

by the Texas Commission on Alcoholism, Texas Department of Public 

Safety, Traffic Safety Section of the State Department of Highways and 

Public Transportation and the Texas Adult Probation Commission. 

Drivers licenses of persons who complete the program shall not be 

automatically suspended. Failure to successfully complete the pro

gram as a condition of probation requires aUtom~tic suspension of a 

person's drivers license for a pertod of twelv~ months. This depart

ment has supported ~,he requi,Yjement of an educational program upon 

conviction to qualify tor drivers license reinstatement; however, 

reh~bi1itat1onprograms allow judicial discret1;,6'n with good cause in 

de~ling with differing ~haracteristics of offenders. 

j/ 
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in resolvi ng this complex problem continue The current trends 

of the impetus should be enforcement and to suggest the majority 

lt Historically, the citizens adjudication with appropriate pen a y. 

of this country seem to accept the horrendous loss from traffic ac

cidents simply because they are categorized as accidents. Before 

major reductions will be achieved, the state of citizen apathy and 

b d Therefo r,e, public education and in-disinterest must e reverse. 

volvement should become a high pr10rfty. It is tine we place traffic 

in the clas.srooms of this nation where attitudes can safety education 

be developed at an early age prior to the development of traditional 

social attitudes toward the use of alcohol. Needed legislative re-

follow w,'despread public support of alcohol countersponse would 

measures. Significant public awareness and parti~ipation must be 

achieved before new and innovative ideas will achieve desired results. 

The role of the federal level should be that of leadership and 

T 1 rams Research in supplemental funding to promote success u prog . 

public education. etc. should be of utmost enforcement strat~gies. 

provide expertise in program ~evelopment. Implementaimportance to 

b addressed by local authorities at the tion of programs can best e 

state ~nd local levels. 

It is ~ssential for our citizens' safety that the number of 

. st~eets and highways be reduced significantly. drinking drivers on our I' 

The combined efforts of Congress, State Legislatures, Governmental 

Agenci:s, an d Citizen Groups will be required. The most important 

challenge is a successful campaign to change citiz~n and indiVidual 

driver attitudes and mOdify behavior patterns regarding traffic 

safety. Without this accomplishment, no real sustained progress to 

resolve the problem of drinking drivers will be achieved: 

In summary, the DRIVING WHILE INTOXICATED PROBLEM is serious and 

complex. invo lve (1) Federal leaders~ip A succe~sful program will 

f loc 'al safety programs; (2) research to develop and funding support 0 

more effective strategies; (.3) countermeasures based on enforcement 

and adjudication w1thapproprhte penalty; (4}rehabi11tation of 

d '(5) publ'ic .education to obtain broad public problem drinkers; an 

support. 
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF MILTON R. SKYRING 

My name is Milton R. Skyring. I am the clerk and judicial administrator for the 
Baton Rouge c~ty court. Additionally, I am the project director for the Baton Rouge 
highway safety committee. We serve approximately 219,000 people within the city 
limits and approximately 368,000 within the county or parish. 

Our local DWI counter measures program was esLabliEhed in 1979 with 402 seed 
money. Under the terms of the grant and through local initiative we established a 
comprehensive DWI counter measures program which includes: (1) Public informa
tion and education; (2) Enforcement; (3) The Judiciary; (4) Probation and Rehabilita
tion; (5) Traffic Records; (6) Legislation; and (7) Program management and evalua-
tion. . 

With the understanding that the grant would total approximately $1 million over 
a three year period. We were able to make projections on how to plan our campaign 
against driving while under the influence of alcohol. 

Basically, through statistics furnished to us from the Louisiana highway saiety 
commission, we assign 8 off-duty police officers, working extra duty, Friday and Sat
urday nights from 8 p.m. to 6 a.m. We !Jave 2 DWI vans furnished with the intoxi
lyzer and video taping and sound recording equipment. Each van costs about $37,000 
to equip and purchase. 

When the Pi;'oject originated it took nearly 6 months from date of arrest to date of 
trial. Trial dates are now set two weeks after arraignment. This reduction in admin
istrative delay was achieved in 3 ways: First, a fourth division of court was achieved 
through legislation to handle only DWI's and relater1 ..:ases. The grant funds the 
judges salary: 2 minute clerks for the judge: 2 additio .al clerical employees in the 
clerk's office and one bailiff for the courtroom: Second, the grant funds 1 additional 
city prosecutor and 1 clerical employee in the prosecutor's office who handle only 
DW! cases: Third, and fmally the grant allowed us to add 3 additional probation 
officers to process all referrals, thereby enabling us to reiuce the pre-sentence in
vestigation time to 60 days. Total time from arrest to sentencing is about 70 days. 

The video tape made at the time of arrest has served a multitude of purposes. If I 
might add a short anecdote here, one of our very first experimental films was of an 
individual who ran a .16. The individual was arrested on Saturday, was unable to 
post bond, and appeared in court Monday for jail call-out. At the same time on 
Monday morning we were reviewing the video tapes for proper sequence of arrests 
procedures, lighting, sound, etc. someone recognized the defe=tdant as the same 
person in the courtroom and he was brought in to review the film. After less than 2 
minutes of a 20 minute film the person begged us not to force him to continue to 
watch the film. He stated he did not realize how he acted under the influence of 
alcohol and as we appreciate it he voluntarily sought medical attention for his problem. 

Because of this personis reaction we subsequently made the video tapes available 
to probatign officers, defense attorneys and the defendant. 

Since the film records the entire arrest procedure the arresting officer has had to 
become more precise in the arresti .. lg process. Of the 2 percent not guilty and 1 per
cent dismissed in 1980-81 few of these can be attributed to officer error. 

Ironically, our preliminary figut~ for 1980-81 show an amazing correlation be
tween DWI arrests. recorded on video tape and those not recorded on tape. Specifi
cally, of all cases that went to trial and were found "guilty" by the judge there is 
only a 1· percent difference between those on tape and those not on tape. Similarly, 
of all cases that went to trial and were found /(not guilty" by the judge, there is 
again only a 1 percent difference between the 2. The largest variation }'J in the area 
of "changed plea to guilty" prior to trial. In this instance 6 percent more people on 
video tape changed plea than those not on tape. 

Based on our findings I would not recommend that every agency desirous of im
proving their DWI conviction rate run out and purchase expensive video tape re
cording equipment. 

Additionally, over a 2-year period we were able to raise the penalty for DWI from 
a maximum of $200 and/or 60 days in jail to a maximun1of$500 and/or 180 days in 
~il. ~~. 

We don't profess to have the answers to the multitude of problems presented by y"'> 

the individual who is driving while under the influence. However, of the majp!,"'/ 
cities in Louisiana, where historically the number of serious accidents have )jEfen 
steadily increasing each year, for the first. time in Baton Rouge this nUWbe'r has 
been held at a constant figure for 2 years in a row. " .' 
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We would likp. to think this is due to our checkmate program. From October 1980 
to September 1981 our conviction rate was 98 percent of all persons arrested for 
DWI. 

And finally, in closing, the greatest difference between our program and other al
cohol safety action projects of the past is that ours includes a legislatively created 
judgeship. When Federal/State funding ends in October 1982 the judge's position 
and all ancillary offices will continue. The only function of this program that will 
cease is the public information and education portion. 

Senator BOSCHWITZ. At this time we will call on the panel consist
ing of representatives of the medical statistics profession: Dr. Roger 
Maickel, head of the Department of Pharmacology and Toxicology 
of the School of Pharmacy and Pharmacal Sdences of Purdue Uni
versity; Dr. Alasdair Conn, medical director of the field operations 
program, l\1aryland Institute for Emergency Medical Systems, Bal
timore, Md.; and Prof. Leonard Schifrin of the Department of Eco
nomics, College of William and Mary, Williamsburg, Va. 

Is Professor Schifrin here? 
[No response.] 
Senator BOSCHWITZ. I understand that Professor Schifrin had to 

be elsewhere at 2 o'clock. We will include his statement in the 
record. 

In that caGe, Dr. Maickel, would you proceed?' 

STATEMENT OF DR. ROGER MAICKEL, H~AD. DEPARTMENT OF 
PHARMACOLOGY AND TOXICOLOGY, SCHOOL OF PHARMACY 
AND PHARMACAL SCIENCES, PURDUE 'UNIVERSITY, WEST LA
FAYETTE, IND. 

Dr. MAICKEL. Thank ·you. I really appreciate the opportunity to 
participate in this hearing. 

I am interested in the drinking driver, and I think a di&tinction 
needs to be made between the drinking driver and the drunk 
driver because of the problem of defining what is drinking or 
drunkenness. 

If you assume that 75 to 90 percent of-all motor vehicle accidents 
are due to human factors-and this would include impairment be
cause of one reason or another-then you have different types of 
impairment, which creates a problem. 

TERMINOLOGY 

Terms such as DW AI-driving while ability is impaired-DUI
driving under the influence, which could mean any drug-or 
DWI-driving while intoxicated, which genera.lly refers specifically 
to alcohol-have no pharmacological specificity. They may have 
legal specificity, but they certainly do not have it pharmacological
ly. 

BAC 

We do know-and this is well documented; it has been document
ed for at least 40 years-that there is a significant impairment of 
human behavior, the type of behavior that is required to perform 
in a motor vehicle operating situation, at a blood alcohol level of 
about .08 and up. This is well documented in studies all over the 
world. .. 
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:!~~~~~~?:lr~:ir!~ ::!:~o';~~.a~t ed::~~8!;:~ I! 
Dr. MAICKEL. This refers t hI d 1 I .. 

milliliters of blood. It is a sy~t:m ~h t ~ve o~ 8 mIllIgrams per 100 
the world. They round it off a IS use pretty ~uch around 
that percentage of alcohol ~sppar~O~ pe~cint because ~t represents 
basis in the blood. ., XIma..,e y, on a weIght volume 

St~~~~~8th~0 entl~eobrasli5s fworh.thhe. imtPklied consent laws in most 
. ,. ,...., .' .- IC IS a en as rt f 

ar~, in tmanBY cases prima facie evidence of intoxf~:~:o 0 stand-
ena or OSCHWITZ .. 08 is eight-tenths? . 

Dr. MAICKEL. In some States d" . 
Europe, .08 BAC is. an ill many countrIes of Western 

~en~or BOSCHWITZ. Is that eight-tenths of 1 percent? 
S r. AICKEL. Yes; under this computed situation . 

enator BOSCHWITZ. Thank you. . 
Dr. MAICKEL.'We also know th t b t 50 

injured drivers have blood alcoh~l iev~Ys welie!cent of the fatally 
fact, in the State of Michi an . h In excess of .10. In 
70 percent-70 4 706 or 7~ 8 I·ovegr t e l~t g years approximately 

b f d . ., ., . n succeSSIve years-of the a I 
nu~ e1.' 0 . rIvers tested for breath tests blew 15 J' h Tnh~u~ 
not Just merely two beers' thi . .'. oring er. IS IS 

:tatht,'f!' C~~da::~f ~~ t~:f:,~~y~~rr:~gA~O~t..~\!~erI~ 
but many drivers have developed a ~e~rain I~~ili~ £ motor vehicle, 
they can get out there and get on th h' h y 0 compensate so . . e Ig way. 

DRUGS OTHER THAN ALCOHOL 
There is another confounding . bl th 

tioned, and that is the possibility th:~I~th: d at needs bto .be men
There has been a lot of contro r. rugs may e Involved. 

ll~~%~~~r., ~"!~ ~~~~':'n:'~:~at~ ~!,3!~~~::~~: 
clusion basically, It() date at leas~r. no,~~hhe IS a pro~lem. The con
ably is, but we can't pin it down ~d ed rls.:~ere IS; t~ere prob-

O~e~:~ j:e::'~h! :~:~'?lheC"."'t ::: th~:nth:;;' ~~~ :~~i:,!~ 
in three th~ngs: Facilitate the cr:a~1:~~f~0~:~foZ;::fti VdrYdsimPdly, 
per se or Implied consent 1 fi l' s an ar an a 
blood alcohol level is either a~w08 o~r ~eGs~ [hvoca~io.n where the 
the road by helpi th" St t' .. e e eXIst:mg DWI's off 
things better. An~g as ~ucili e:s and l?bjl jurisdictions to adjudicate 
getting on the road b educatiri paSSI e,. p~event new DWI's from 
across the_.c0untry. Y g, by aSsIstIng as much as possible 

Thank you. 

D
Senator BOSCHWITZ. Thank you very much. . 

r. Conn, you are the medical' d' t fi h 
program of the Maryland Institut Ir~c orE or t e field 0I?erations 
tems? e or mergency MedIcal Sys-

I ___________________________________ ~~~~~ ____ ~~~ ~~ _________ • _____ ~~~_~~~~ __________________________________ ~ ________ ~,~ ___ _ 
k....I.. ' _ ......... ~.' 



92 

STATEMENT OF DR. ALASDAIR CONN, MEDICAL DIRECTOR, 
FIELD OPERATIONS PROGRAM, MARYLAND INSTITUTE FOR 
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SYSTEMS, BALTIMORE, MD. 
Dr. CONN. Yes, sir. 
Senator BOSCHWITZ. "That is that? . . 
Dr. CONN. It is a combination, si~, of ~wo organIZatIOns. I am 

speaking here in the capacity of medIcal dIrector of the field oper
ations program for the Sta~e o~ Maryland. ~hat means I am re
sponsible for the m~~ical direction of appro~ma~el~ 1~,000 emer
gency medical technIcIans and 1,200.paramedlcs WithIn ch~ ~tate of 
Maryland. That is only part of my Job. I am also a practIcmg sur
geon and I work at the Baltimore Shock Trauma Center. 
Se~ator BOSCHWITZ. I could tell from listening to you that you 

were from Maryland. [Laughter.] . . 
Dr. CONN. As you are probably aware, Within the ~tate of Mary

land we have a Baltimore Shock Trauma Center servmgas the cen
tral hub with nine peripheral trauma centers, and these are all 
linked by the Maryland State Police medivac helicopters. We have 
10 helicopters with paramedics on board. . . 

Severe accidents, industrial explosions, and other Maryland CIti
zens who have sustained acute trauma are flo~ froII?- the scene, 
and rather than being taken to the c!osest hospItal, WhICh may not 
have the facilities to be able to deal with that particular problem, 
they are flown to one of these trauma ce~ters. ~ithin t~es~ ~ospi
tals obviously, we have got mandated ImmedIate availabilIty of 
surgeons, anasthesiologists, operating rooms, and so. forth. . 

Within the Central Baltimore Shock Trauma UnIt, we deaJ With 
approximately 1,400 patients per ye~r. ':fhey ar: ~he most severe 
accidents in the State whose populatIOn IS 4.2 mIllIon. <?u~ figures 
indicate that approximately 60 percent of these adm~ssIOns are 
from road accidents, drivers and passengers of automobIles, pedes-
trians, or motor cyclists. . . .. . 

As part of the admissIOn procedure, every patient who comes In 
has a serum alcohol measure. Of those peopl~ comi~g in from road 
accidents, 50 percent have detectable alcohol In theIr blood stream, 
and four out of five of those have a level of greater than .1. 

Annually, as you have heard from the stz:ttisti~s from the S~ate of 
Maryland, approximately 700 people are killed In traffic aCCIdents. 
What the Governor's task force looked at was the number of people 
of the drivers at fault in those fatal accidents. A level of alcohol 
was detected in over 90 percent of those drivers. 

When we are dealing with an intoxicated dr~ver, it tr~slates 
into a considerable financial expense. Every patient who -IS flown 
into the Baltimore Shock Trauma Unit only stays with .us du~ing 
intensive care, an average of about 12 to 14 days, and hIS medIcal 
expenses are some $12,000. _ 

Althought I have pointed out some figures -of some .of t~e 'pa
tients who come in, I do not know the figur~s of the In~o:~ncated 
driver in the large car hitting the small car WIth .the t~o clt~~ns
driver and passenger-going around about theIr dally busln~sB. 
Those figures are very difficult to obtain, but what you are seeIng 
is probably the tip of the iceberg. 
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To put this into national perspective, as we have heard, the 
impact is staggering. The cost of trauma care-accident care-this 
year will be approximately $82 billion, and 115,000 Americans will 
die of trauma accidentG. _ 

I believe Senator Dole referred earlier to the Vietnam war 
where 45,000 U.S. soldiers were killed by the enemy. In the sam~ 
period of time, 274,000 Americans died on the highway as a direct 
consequence of alcohol intoxication. 

We have heard a lot of suggestions about what we can do to help 
this problem. Medically, I have only a few. One is the continuation 
of the drive for dedicated trauma centers. 

This initiative was only just begun 2 or 3 years ago on a national 
basis. Prof. Francis Small, professor of surgery at Harvard, recog
nized this in his Scudder oration to the American College of Sur
geons in October of 1981. 

I also would stress that managing accid~nts in this way in dedi
. cated trauma units we can probably eradicate the death rate or cut 
it down by approximately one-third, but if we are going to tackle 
the problem we have got to begin at the basis-that is, getting the 
drunk ddver, identifying him early, removing him from the road 
and perhaps rehabilitating him correctly. . ' 

As a sideline to that, we in the shock trauma unit deal with this 
by br~n~ng in some of these young offenders, They look at some of 
the VIctims that we manage, and they look at the trauma that 
these victims have sustained, and that small pilot project does 
seem to be working. 

I thank you for your attention. 
Senator BOSCHWITZ. Thank you. I know the light is on, but have 

you concluded your statement and made all the points you want to? 
Dr. CONN. I believe so; yes, sir. I have given a small written com

ment, and that covers the major points. 
Senator BOSCHWITZ. We will put the entirety of it in the record 

so that the record is complete. . ' 
Dr. CONN. Thank you, sir. 
Senator BOSCHWITZ. Doctor, did you also have a statement? 
Dr. MAICKEL. Yes, you have a copy of it. . 
Senator BOSCHWITZ. This is not a statement, it seems to be a 

background paper. It will also be included in the record. 
May I ask either one of you if there is a perceptual difference 

between the injuries to a drunken driver and to the victims? Spe
cifically, does the drunken driver's condition-the relaxed aspect of 
being drunk-defend him to some degree from being injured quite 
as seriously as the victim? 

Dr. CONN. Not that we can ascertain, sir; no. 
Being intoxicated means that it is more difficult to assess their 

!leurological status. This is one of the difficulties that the paramed
ICS have at the scene. They are not sure whether they have a pa
tient who has a severe head injury and 1 drink or he has had 15 
drinks and a mild head injury. We get a certain number of those 
patients flown in. 

Senator BOSCHWITZ. People do have 15 drinks. I remember once 
during my campaign for this illustrious post I went out with one of 
my staff people, and he had 12 martinis for lunch. It did not seem 
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h' 't did me. He was in treatment to affect him nearly as muc as 1 

very shortly atflt~:~~~ve any questions? DC' you gen . e 
Mr. VELDE. No, thank you. . 

Mr. lIIlANSON. No, thyk YO~~tements were V'ary helpful and illji 
Senator BoSCHWITZ. f: Ou\~ with medical care, and I can wi, 

minating. I am not hSOt amildlower the death rate and lower t e understand where t a . wou 

number of victims of thIS. are convicted or who are drunk 
I thi:ak that taking people "yvt

ho st be quite impressive. It must t h a trauma uni mu d"t <>;n drivers 0 suc tent them from OIng 1 agc;u. . have an impact on them ? pr~v I done? 
I have heard of tJ;1at. Is .It Wide y as a pilot project in one of the 
Dr. CONN. N~, SIr. ThIS began 0 Re eat young offen~ers were 

counties approxImately 2 ye~Sm~ths :nd a year later t~ey we~e 
brought in, and on fol~owup . now expanding, and I beheve thIS 
still not in trouble agaIn. Th:t IS'nvolved in that program, and we 
year we have got four coun Ie~e~ters to initiate similar programs. are encouraging other traum~ kel? 

Senator BOSCHWITZ. Dr. Malc ~oblem in the past, in that there 
Dr. MAICKEL. That has be~n h p should not expose the youthful 

has been a tenden~y ~o sar~ce?to~f:C~ sight of a crash .victim o~ a 
driver to the terrifYIng f own experience, WIthout dOIng. 
crash." I can assur~ y~ll. rom ffiY t' e deterrent. 
any followup statistICS, It IS aide. ec ;ne it would be, and I would 

Senator BOSCHWIT~. I .WOll I~a arading those young, old, or 
have very little hesIt,atlOn hbou hP uch a trauma ward. Is that middle-aged drunk dr~vers t ro~t l~ 

done on a national basIs'IIDTr·hMaIC r: ~ few local facilities; Dr. Conn Dr MAICKEL. Not at a. er~ a . 
has ~ne, and there is one in Cabfo~h~re are not many. of these 

Dr. CONN. Unfortunately, als.( have a severe aCCIdent, you 
t:rauma units yet. For example, tl hYOu'tal so there is no concentranormally taken to the closes OSpl , 
are f . tims t. II 
tion of these types 0 VIC :f go to any hospital prac ICa y, 

Senator BOSCHW1TZI · But lW?~~ one could do that. there must be severa rooms _L 

Dr. MAICKEL. True. h' k th t would be a very worthwile thing Senator BOSCHWITZ. I t In a 
to do. t ? . 

Do you have any commen s. 
Mr VELDE. No, thank you. ? 
Se~ator BOSCHWITZ. Mr. Manson. 

Mr. MANSON. Thank you. I has some comments. .. 
Senator BOSCHWITZ. Counse ld' st like to ask if you can Ident~
Mr. MANSON. Dr. 90nn, I w0l!- Jhas been dedicated to the medi-

fy why perhaps so ~Ittle attenhkn drivers as compared. with other 
cal problems relahng to drun h r so much about today. .. 
medical problems that we s~eth to e~ but I know that the p~sIho~. 

Dr. CONN. I am not s~lre In e ~~~~e the medical profeS~lOn IS 
now is changing, parh~~larly ~: and looking at ways in whICh we very well aware of the rISIng cos 
can lower costs. 
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As I said in my testimony, the way that we are probably going to 
have to do this is to prevent accidents from happening and perhaps 
when we do have accidents to give-them th3 best treatment possi
ble. That is becoming more and more aware within the medical profession. 

Mr. VELDE. What about Federal funds devoted to research in al
coholism as opposed to other major illnesses? 

Dr. MAICKEL. I think one of the problems there is that the funding--

Mr. VELDE. Funding is very low by comparison, is it not? 
Dr. M,uCKEL. It is low, and also it is directed at alcoholism, 

which includes the problem drinking driver but also includes. thE\ 
non driving alcoholic. In many Cases the clinical researr,h funds on 
alcoholism are spent on the individual who is so far along that 
they are not even going to be a viable driver for 2, 5, or 10 years, if ~ver. 

Mr. VELDE. This is not really too germane to the purposes of this 
hearing, but do you find any correlation between alcohol abusers 
who are bad drivers and individuals who also are bad airplane 
pilots, that they h<..tve a criminal history as well, are poor credit 
risks, and other factors? Is there a correlation between alcohol abuse and other social issues? 

Dr. MA,CKEL. We did a study a, number .of years ago through 
NHTSA that found no correlation with any of these other factors, 
at least no statistically significant correlation, in problem drinking drivers. 

However, the difficulty of the impaired driver crashing into 
somebody else-an analogy is becoming very common in industry. 
One of the areas that has a very strong interest in alcoholism and 
alcohol problems is industry. The individual Who is operating a 
forklift in an industrial plant; a punch press, or a steam hammer 
and is impaired by alcohol is just as hazardous to his coworker as 
the driver is on the highway to another driver. Industry is begin
ning to recognize this as a major industrial safety problem as well 
as in the alcohol-drug interaction area. It is broader than just the highway. 

Mr. VELDE. In alcohol-drug interaction you include everything from aspirin on up, do you not? 

Dr. MAICKEL. Most certainly. One of the problems that is very ob
vious is cannabis, and we will not even get into that, because that is a problem all by itself. . 

One of the insidious types of things is that, for example, the indi
vidual who normally goes out and has two cans of beer for lunch 
will probably not be impaired at all on the highway. However, if on 
a given day he or she happens to have taken an over-the-counter 
antihistamine for sniffles that morning and then goes out and has 
two beers for lunch, there may be enough potentiation by the com
bination of drugs that they can be significantly impaired. . 

Mr. VELDE. Thank you. 
Senator BOSCHWITZ. Gentlemen, we thank you very much for 

coming and participating in this hearing. 
[The prepared statements of Messrs. Maickel, Conn, and Schifrin follow:] 
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF DR. ROGER P. MAICKEL 

This statement addresses four interrelated areas of the problem 

generally titled IIdriving while intoxicated" : (I) The pharmacologica,1 

effects of ethyl alcohol that are relevant to operation of a motor 

vehicle; (2) The relationship of traffic fatalities to driving while 

intoxicated; (3) The possible role of other drugs in highway safety; and (4) 
The possible option(s) of the Federal Government in reducing the magnitude 

of this problem. 

I .0 BACKGROUND 

Motor vehicle crashes are a major cause of death in the United States. 

Over the past decade, the annual number of such fatalities (drivers, 

passengers, pedestrians) has consistently .approximated 50,000. Three sets 

of factors emerge from a careful analysis 9f such accidents: (1) Vehicular 

related to the design, construction, maintenarce, and oper~iing character

istics of the motor vehicle; (2) Environmental -- related to operating and 

traffic conditions, highways, time of day; (3) Driver character-

Istics that may influence his/her abil)ty to perform tasks involved in 

operating a motor vehicle (Jones and Joscelyn, 1978). It is estimated 

that 7~ to 90 percent of all motor vehicle accidents are primarily due to 

human fac'.)rs. A major impact in this area is believed to be the alcohol 

drinking behavior of the dr! 19 population (U.S. Department of Transpor

tation, 1968). This'is not new information. In 1904, an article expressing 

concern about the possible adverse effects of alcohol consumption upqn the 

operator.s of "power motor wagons" appeared in the Quarterly Journal of 

Inebriety (U.~. Department of Transportation, 1968)" 

2.0 TERMINOLOGY/SEMANTICS - -
This br'ief review of the simple, yet ccinfusing, terminology involved 

will cl~rify this presentation. 

f. Drug may be defined as any substance (other than food) whlch,//after 
entering the body, produces a significant biological effect.!i 

• Alcohol will be ~xcluslvely defined as ethanol or ethyl alcohol. 

• BAC., the abbreviation for "blood alcohol concentration," Is the 
weight (quantity) of alcohol in a given volume of b.Jood usually 
expressed in the U.S.A. in terms of grams of alcohcil pe~ 100 mill 1-
liters of blJOd (percent). Thus, a BAC of 0.10 percent would be equivalent 
to 0.10 grams (100 mi II igrams, mg) of alcohol per 100 mi II i liters 
(mL) of· blood. 

• OWl, DUI, DWAI are acrcmyms used to describe the state of operating 
a motor vehicle while under the Influence of a drug s!4ch as alcoho1. 
OWl refers to "Q.riving ~hl1e .!..ntoxlcated,1I DUI to "Driving While 
!I.nder the !of 1 u~nce, II and DWA I to "Dr i v i ng Wh i Ie Ab il i ty j s I mpa I red. II 
~epending on the terminology used in: statutes and-the jurisdiction 
I nvo 1 v;~, suc~ 1 aws may. be. interpreted to hold for a 1 coho 1 on 1 y, 
drugs ~!ncludlng alcohol) In general, drugs in combination with 
alcohol. or various permutations and combinations. 

') 
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• ")h • armacological effects are those effects 
that c~n be clearly measured and/or d f' ~f{drugs upon an organism 
elevatIon of blood pressurej as 11 e Ine such as depression or 
(such as drowsiness or sedation)~e as those that are more subjective 

• Antagon I sm refers to the ab II it f 
action{s) of another when both y 0 one drug to block or reverse the 
arithmetic terms, antagonism mayar~ present in the body. In simple 

. e expressed as 2 + 2 < 4. 
• Addition refers to the abilit f 

another, resulting In a simpI~ ~ on~.drug to act in concert with 
When both are present in the b dumma, Ion of magnitude ofeffect{s) 
addition may be expressed as 2°+Yi = 4.slmple arithmetic terms, , 

• S • ynerglsm or potentiation refers to th b" 
th7 action(s) of another when both a e a Illty.of one drug to enhance 
arIthmetic terms, synergism or poten~~ ~~esent In the body. ·!n ~imple 
2 + 2 > 4. a Ion may be expressed as 

l;,.2, PHARMACOLOG I CAL EFFECTS OF ALCOHOL 

Ethyl alcohol Is a small molecule 
b 

' capab I e of read i 1 y . 
mem ranes and generally distributed throu crossing body 
human body. It can b b ghout the water content of the 

e'a sorbed through the skin and ttl 
of the oral caVity, 
and Intestines. 

e mucous membrane 
but the most COmmon sites of absorption are the stomach 

~ Characteristics of Alcohol Absorption 

.. After consuming one drink containing alcohol, 
I the BAC reaches a 

maXImum evel In 20 to 60 minutes .if stomach 
minutes if the stomach was full . I was empty, or 60 to 120 

• n general the t f 
is reli3t"ed to the concentratl f I' ' ra e 0 absorption 

. on 0 a cohol In th b r h' e everage consumed 
eac Ing ~. maximum rate at about 20 to 25 ' 

Th percent (40-50 proof). 
ere are hoc fixed absorption rates for alco' /I. 

Nevertheless, several generalizations hoI and no magIc I imlts." 
1 can be made. Absorption of 

a cohol appears to be more rapid in experienced CiS 
drink Th compared to naive 

ers., e rate of absorpt Ion seems to be 
beverages. In contrast th enhanced by carbonated 

, e rate of absorption 
I f the sub] ect has food In th' appea rs to be slowed 

e stomach. Ha~d e>.{ercise, excitement 
or fear, all of which are known to decreas~the ' 
t th dl rate of blood flow 
o e gestive tract also tend t d 

absorption. ' 0 re uce the rate of alcohol 

U ~acterl$tics of Alcohol El imlnatlon 

Once in the bloodstream, alcohol Is el i • 
in the brea'th (this forms the b i mlnated in smal I amounts 
tests), saliva as s for breath alcohol measurement 

- --, -_._ .' urine, and perspiration M .'. 
alcohol elio~lnatlon .-- - • O,re than 90 percent of 

occurs via chemical br kd -, 
rate t)f breakdown Is relatl I . ea own In the I ivel-. The 

ve Y constant (0 015' 
o although concentrat Ions J~ss than • percent BAC per hour), 
at a slower rate. 0.03 percent BAC are destroyed 

This breakdown t I ra e s sufficiently constant to' 

• 
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permit extrapolation of approximate blood levels. at the tim~ of an 

BAC measurements made at a later time, assuming that incident from 

no further consumption of alcohol occurred. 

Relationship of Alcohol Levels to Amount Consumed 3.3 _ 

=== A formula is often used to relate the BAC at any given point in 

h t Of alcoholic beverages consu~ed prior to that time. time to t e amoun } . 
formula {substantiated and corroborated by many workers requires 

This were consumed over a relatively a few basic assumptions: the beverages 

short period of time (l to 2 hoUl's), and the body weight and body 

water characteristics of the subject are not extremely unusual. 
For the male, in whom body water 

the formula Is expressed as: 

A {oz. of beverage) 

is 68 to 70 percent of body weight, 

BAC x hody wt. (lbs.) x 13.2 
% alcohol in beverage 

For females, in whom body water'is 56 percent of body weight, the 

same formula, is used, but the result is,multiplied by 0.8. Chart 

Illustrates fheappl Icat ion of this forri\ula. 

CHART I 

APPROXIMATE RELATIONSHIP OF BAC TO BODY WEIGHT 
AND NUMBER OF DRINKS CONSUMED 

'130DY WEIGHT .. {1bs} 

No. of Dri nks* 120 140 , 160 180 200 220 

1 .03 .03 .02 

2 .06 .05 .05 

3 .09 .08 .07 

4 .13 .11 .09 

6 .19 .16 .14 

8 .25 .21 .19 

" 
I 

1 .04 .03 • 03 

2 •08 1 .07 .06 

3 .12 .10 .09 

4 .16 .13 .12 

6 
~ 

.24 .20 .18 

8 .31 , .27 .24 

*1 drink equals 1 oz. of 100 proof whiskey, 
of domestic beer. 

.02 .02 

.04 .04 

.06 .06 

.08 .08 

.13 .11 

.17 .15 

.03 .02 

.05 .05 

.08 I ,.07 

.10 .09 

.16 .14. 

• 21 .19 

4 oz. ofwine 

.02 

.03 

.05 

.07 

.10 

.14 

.02,· 

.04 

Jtl')06 

.09 

.13 

.17 

or 12 oz. 
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3.4 Relationship of Blood Alcohol Levels to Behavioral Effects I~~ 

Examination of the relationship of BAC to behavioral effects 

identifies some aspects of human behavior.and performance relevant 

to skills directly involved In motor vehicle operation. These 
relationships include, but are not limited to: 

3.4.1 Vision 

• The ability to see clearly (static visual al~uity) begins to 
show impairment at a BAC level of 0.05-0.08 percent and is 
significant in 85 percent of subjects atD.125 percent BAC. 

• The abi l.ity to see Moving objects (dynamic visual acuity) 
begins to show imoairment at 0.03-0.'08 percent SAC and is 
significant in ~11 subjects at 0.10 percent BAC. 

• Night vision (the ability to see dim objects) is significantly 
impaired in all subjects at 0.08 percent SAC. 

• Glare blindness is significantly impaired in 25 percent of 
subjects at 0.10 percent SAC and in all subjects.at 0.20 
percent SAC. 

'" The ability to change focus rapidly (accol11li1odation) Is impaired 
significantly in most subjects at BAC values of 0.,08 percent 
or higher. 

3.4.2 Headng 

impairment does not occur in all subjects., but may include 

dec.reases in both hearing ability (sounds must be louder and 

higher pitches may not ge heard) and auditory discrimination. 

3.4.3 Judgment 

Impairment is generally seen at SAC values of 0.~08 percent or 

higher. Distances and dimensions ~re misjudged, speed is 

underestimated, and situations are assessed more slowly with 

a reduced quality of assessment and a higher probability of 
inappropriate decisions. 

3.4.4 React ion Time. ' 

Impairment begins in many SUbjects at 0.04 'percent BAC and is 

significant In all subjects at BAC values in excess oJ- O. JO 
percent • 

3.4.5 Coordination 

Impairment generally begJt:ls at BAC values of 0".10 percent BAC, 

with greatest effect em the Yearning proce:ss,. Difficulties In 

.reciting the alphabet occur ,in novice or inexperienced drlnkers_ 

at SAC values of 0.10 percent; experienced drinkers show similar 
impairment at BAC values of 0.15 percent • 

~ Memory' 

Short- and long-term memory Is' Imparr;ed at 0.10 percent BAC,with 
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greatest effect on the learning process. Difficulties In reciting 

the alphabet occur in novice or inexperienced drinkers at BAC 

values of 0.10 percent; experienced drinkers show similar impair-

ment at BAC values of 0.15 percent. 

3.4.7 Reticular Activating System (RAS) 
This system is utilized by the brain to accept, process, and 

distribute information. Impairment begins at BAC values of 

0.03 percent and becomes significant In most subjects at BAC 

values of 0.06-0.08 percent, especially for tasks (such as 

motor vehicle operation) that require divided attention. 

In summary,. there is no doubt that alcohol affects human behavior 

and impairs performance of tasks such as motor ve~icle operation. 

Chart II illustrates relationships that exist between the BAC value 

and the type of impairment. 

4.0 THE RELATIONSHIP OF TRAFFIC FATALITIES TO DRIVING WHILE INTOXICATED 

Attempts to demonstrate relationships between drinking, driving, 

and motor vehicle accidents emphasize the complexity of the situation. 

-
One must ~ estimate the number of crashes involving drivers with a 

significant BAC. If this number is significant, the second step is to 

determine that drinking drivers are more frequently involved in crashes 

than their non-drinking counterparts. If so, the ~ step is to 

determine whether alcohol impairment of driving performance is the 

major causaj~ive phenomena, or if some other factor(s) exist. 
Almq~t 45 years ago, Holcomb (1938) found that alcohol could be 

impl ied a,s.a causative factor in a significant numtJer of motor vehicle' 

accidents. Many subsequent epidemiological studies have confirmed this 

conclusion. A relatively consistent finding, when all crashes are 

con~idered, is that 45 to 55 percent of drivers fatally Injured had 

BAC values of 0.08 percent or higher. For single vehicle crashes that 

fraction rises to 60-70 percent. These studies are reviewed and 

summarized In Jones and Joscelyn, 1978. 
It is i'1!portant to realize that such retrospective studies do not 

(and cannot) pr'ove causatic..n. However, they clearly Imply .alcohol as 

a causative factor In motor. vehicle accidents. Cnarts IliA and IIIB 

illustrate such probabilistic relationship. H the relative probability 

of involvement equals 1 at a BAC value of 0.00 percent, at BAC values of 

0.12 percent, the probabi 1 ity of involvement In')a ~ crash for the 

driver is 12-22 times higher than it Is fdr a non-drinking driver 
_/1 

(Chart IliA). At a'BAC value of 0.12 percent, the probability of 

involvement in. a non-fatal, personal irljury accident is two to three 

times greater than for the non-drinking driver (Chart IIIB) •. 
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CHART II 

APPROXIMATE BAC VALUES NEEDED TO AFFECT HUMAN FUNCTIONS 

Cross-hatched areas 
drivers; open areas 
drivers. 
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CHART III 

RELATIONSHIP OF BAC VALUES TO RELATIVE PROBABILITY OF ACCIDE~! 

(A) Fatal Crashes 
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Thus, using the traffic 'crash toll for J~J5, the numbers of intoxi
cated drivers Involved in accidents can be('approximated: 

• fatal crashes • • • • • 

• personal injury crashes 

• property daM~ge crashes .. 
15,000 

120,000 

765,000 

These accidents cost society an estimated five bi 11 ion dollars. Using . , .: . 
the 1975 figures, the number of crashes that could be prevented if 

!.' " 

alcohol were removed as a probable causative factor are summarized 

in Chart IV. These estimates are based on the most stringent criteria 
available. That is, they are the most conservative. 

BAC 

> .05 

> .10 

> .15 
./ 

CHART IV 

ESTIMATED REDUCTION OF CRASHES IF~LCOHOL=RELATED 
CRASHES ARE ELIMINATED* 

ESTIMATED 
FATAL -----

13,600 

9,400 

5,300 

REDUCTION IN 
PERSONAL INJURY 

118.800 

83,900 

32,700 

CRASHES· 
PROPERTY DAMAGE 

965,000 

621,000 ,. 

153,000 

*Data are taken from Jones and Joscelyn ,(1978) 

1:.2. THE POSS I alE ROLE OF OTHER..2.!iUGS IN HIGHWAY SAFETY II 
'It {, 

Although alcohol is the most likely causative· factor in motor 

vehicle a..ccidents, two other aspects also deserve men1;ion. Other drugs 

can impa! r ;safe motor vE\hlcle operation, alone, ,or by means of drug-dr~g 
(and .. especially drug-alcohol) Interactions. A brief overylew must be 
considered. 

U Other Drugs That Can Impal r ·Sa~.e Motor Vehicle. Operation 

The data available are not as extensive as for alcohol alone. 
Nevertheless, a brief listing of .ag~nts known to alter human 

behavior, especially in terms of perturb~tl9n of perf<;lrmance. ill 
complex tasks such as motor vehl~le operation, Include: 

" • antianxiety agents (chlordtazepoxlde,,,dla:zepam) 
It Cannabis (niarlhiJanaf 

• narcotlcarialgeslcs (codeine, (lxycodone,'propc,xyphene) 
• volatt Ie solvehts 
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• sedative-hypnotics (sleeping pills) 

• antihypertensive medications 
cold medicines) ~ antihistamines (over-the-counter 

~,/t Vehicle Operation 5.2 Drug-d~ Interactions Relevant~o=;o or 

===z A • extensive data are not available, however, based on gain, . • • 
available pharmacological information, the posslbi1-lty of combination 

effects must be considered for a number of agents. This Is especially 

true for additive or synergistic effects with alcohol., Such 

combinations could easily result in a driver with a BAC value of 0.05 

percent showing a degree of performance impairment similar to one 

having a BAC of 0.15 percent. Drugs likely to act in combination 

with alcohol to produce either addlt.ive or synergistic results include 
all those listed In Section 5.1 as well as: 

• antldepress.nt agents 
• antipsychotic agents 

6.0 OPTIONS OPEN TO THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT TO ADDRESS THE ISSUE OF THE 
- j 

IMPAIRED DRIVER 

Several extreme approaches could be adopted, ranging from total 

disregard of the problem in the hope that it will "go away" to 

mandating a rigid series of steps to enforce additional governmental 

controls on the public. The most rational recommendations involve 

a series of efforts covering areas of: (I) research, identification, 

and delineation; (2) education and heightened awareness; (3) standard

iZation and Increased uniformity of control systems; and (4) accept
ance of reality. 

6.1 Research, Identification, and Delineation 

There Is an Imperative need for further research to determine 

the precise role of the drug-impalr.ed driver In highway accidents. 

Severa'l points are involved. For example, determination of BAC 

values In accident-involved or obviously Impaired drivers is a 

common procedure but pr~sent technology is Inadequate to evaluate 

the possible contributions of other drugs. Routine testing 

procedures to assess' impa I rment ,of driving performance ar:e 

virtually non-existent. Crash-risk proba~llltles for prug-alcohol 

combinations need to be determined' and the magnitude of the "re)al 
world" problem must be defined. 

6.2 
=- Education ,and Heightened Awareness 

The hazard of the Impaired driver to society as a whole must 

be brought to the attention of the public. Massive programs of 

generalized statem~nts In the media ("glitterlng generalities 
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and pious pla.tltudes") should be a'joided. Instead, efforts should 

be made to achieve national distribution of educational and 

informational materials to localities, organizations, and 

jurisdictions that deal in person-to-person relationships. While 

not advocating purely "scare" tactics, a strong and realistic 

approach Is needed. The impaired driver should be clothed In the 

same garb a:;. the hardened criminal or, the deviant personali,ty. 

6.3 Standard'za'.:ion and Increased Uniformity of Control Systems 

It is essential that some national norms be established. A 
Federal DWI standard should be established. Many European 

countries have accepted 0.08 percent BAC as a national norm for 

evidence of OWl with considerable success in reducing alcohol

related highway accidents, inJuries, and fatal ities. In this 

country, a precedent exists in the 55 MPH speed limit. At a 

Federal level, a standard for BAC/DWI ~jJld be both rational and 

ieasonable. Jurldiclal standards for handling the convicted 

OWl ,could not be establisheu at a Fe~eral level, but advisory 
recommendations would not. be unwarranted. 

~. Acceptance of Reality 

The most crucial point, but also the most sensitive aspect of 
the problem, Is recognition' of real ity. Onti 1 we, as a nation, 

are willing to accept the fact that the impaired driver is a hazard 

to society, any efforts to reduce the gt'avity of the situation will 

be in vain. One example demonstrates this gravity. In ,1979, a 

total of 32,451 breath tests for' alcohol was administered to 

drivers through the Traffic Services Division of the Michigan 

Department of State Pol ice. Of these, '22,926 (70.4 percent) 

yielded BAC values of,O.J5 percent or greater. The figures for 1980 
were 40,702 and 28,832, respectively; thus, 70.8 percent had BAC 

values of 0.15 percent or greater. For the first six months of 

1981~ the fI'gures were 21,618 and 15,228, respectively, Indicating 

that 70.4. percent had BAC values of 0.15 percent or more. If the 

fractions te~ting &t BAC values of 0.10 percent or greater are 

compared, the relative percentages are 93.1 percent (for 1979), " • {' <t 

93.8 percen.t (for 1980), and 93.5 percent (for the first half 

of 1981). There Is no question that thesF,l flgure~ Indlcctite that 
the Vast majority of drivers Identified as being DWI were most 

certainly drunk and would not operate a motor vehicle with any 
degree of safety! 

Against 'this fype of document. one must plac~ the common 

observation of a lack of societal sensitivity to the problem • 

Any visitor to a traffic court will see a common occurrence-~ 
the legal plea bargain to a· charge lesser than that of a Ilcense-

" . 
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revoca~le offense such as OWl. Virtually every community is aware 

of (and can Identify) citizens who regularly (habitually?) leave 

a bar, tavern, country club, or house party in a condition clearly 

under the influence of alcohol and equally clearly incapable of 

safely opetatlng a motor vehicle. Yet those same communities are 

unwilling or unable to deal with those indivldual5 In a manner that 

will prevent them fro;;: operating a motor vehicle in an obviously 
inebriated condition. 

No individual or group is exempt from this problem. The drunk 

driver is not necessarily a chronic alcoholic. He or she may be a 

laborer, a student, a lawyer, a judge, a housewife, a physician, a 

nurse, an executive, a politician, a bank teller, a law enforcement 

officer; OWl does not have any constraints regarding age, sex, race, 

creed,or color. The conservative may be under the influence of 

alcohol, while the liberal may be under the influence of marihuana. 
The rich may imbibe a $50 bottle of burgundy. The poor may 

consume $2 bottles of muscatel. The net result is the same __ OWl. 

The best thing that we, as a nation, can hope for is that sometime 

in the future we wi II accept the reality that, in order to save 

I ives, to save anguish, to save people, we ~ do ever,thlng possible 
to: 

• ~ the known OWl from the highways 

• ~ the likelihood of a new OWl reaching the highways 

If the drunk driver were a risk only to himself/herself, the 
problem would be simpler. The 'fact that the individual is a risk 

to other citizen; as well demands that the Federal Government take 

an active, leading role in attacking the problem at the state and 
local level. 
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF DR. ALASDAIR CONN 

SENATOR DOLE AND MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE ON 

THE JUDICIARY. I AM SPEAKING TO YOU IN MY CAPACITY AS 

MEDICAL DIRECTOR OF THE FIELD OPERATIONS PROGRAMS FOR THE 

=:'T'IITE OF MARYLAND. I AM RESPOtJSIBLE FOR THE MEDICAL 

DIRECTION OF SOME ELEVEN HUNDRED (1,100) ADVANCED LIFE 

SUPPORT PERSONNEL (PARAMEDICS) AND SOME TWELVE THOUSAND 

(12,OOQ) EMERGENCY MEDICAL TECHNICIANS WHO MAN THE AMBULANCES 

AND RESCUE SQUADS WITHIN THE STATE OF MARYLAND. I'M ALSO 

SPEAKING AS A SURGEON WORKING WITHIN THE BAL~IMORE SHOCK 

TRAUMA CENTER. 

WITHIN THE STATE OF MARYLAND WE HAVE THE BALTIMORE 

SHOCK TRAUMA CENTER SERVING AS THE CENTRAL HUB WITH NINE 

PERIPHERAL TRAUMA CENTERS LINK:::D BY THE MARYLAND STATE POLICE 

AVIATION DIVISION~S TEN HELIC02TERS. SEVERE ACCIDENTS, 

INDUSTRIAL EXPLOSION VICTIMS, ~ND OTHER MARYLAND CITIZENS 

WHO HAVE SUSTAINED ACUTE TRAU~ \ ARE l~L()WN DIRECTLY FROM 

THE SCENE AND RATHER THAN TRANSFERRED TO THE CLOSEST HOSPITAL 

WHERE THE FACILITIES NECESSARY TO TREAT TflAT PATIENT'S 

INJURIES MAY NOT BE IMMEDIATELY AVAILABLE, THEY ARE FLOWN 

TO ONE OF THESE NINE HOSPITALS IN THE STATE. WITHIN THESE 

HOSPITALS WE HAVE MANDATED IMMEDIATE AVAILABILITY OF SURGEONS, 

ANETHESIOLOGISTS, AND OPERATING ROOMS NECESSARY TO KEEP THESE 

VICTIMS ALIVE. 

WITHIN THE BALTIMORE SHOCK TRAUMA CENTER, WE DEAL 

WITH APPROXIMATELY 1,350 PATIEKTS PER YEAR. THESE ARE THE 

MOST SEVERE ACCIDENT VICTIMS FROM ALL OVER THE STATE WHOSE 

POPULATION IS 4.2 MILLION. MY FIGURES INDICATE THAT APPROX

IMATELY 60% OF OUR ADMISSIONS ARE FROM ROAD ACCIDENTS EITHER 

DRIVERS OR PASSENGERS OF-AUTOMOBILES, MOTORCYCLES, OR 

PEDESTRIANS. THE OTHER VICTIMS ARE, OF COURSE, VICTIMS OF 

ASSAULTS, INDUSTRIAL ACCIDENTS, OR EXPLOSIONS. AS PART OF 

THE ADMISSION PROCEDURE, EVERY PATIENT HAS A SERUM ALCOHOL 

II 
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LEVEL MEASURED. OF THESE PEOPLE COMING IN, 50% HAVE 

I N TEEIR BLOODSTREAM AND OF THIS DETECTABLE ALCOHOL LEVELS 

THESE HAD A BLOOD PLCOHOL LEVEL OE 100 MILLIGRAMS 50%, :]0% OF 

PERCENT OR GREATER. THIS LEVEL IS THE LEGAL LIMIT IN ALL 

BUT THREE STATES. MARYLAND STILL HAS A HIGH LIMIT OF 0.13% 

AS THE LEGAL DEFINITION OF INTOXICATION. 

THE LEVE L OF 0.08% WITHIN IN 'fHE NATION. 

CONSIDERED DRIVING UNDER THE INFLUENCE. 

THIS IS THE HIGHEST 

MARYLAND IS 

ANNUALLY WITHIN THE STATE OF MARYLAND, APPROXIMATELY 

700 PEOPLE 

HIGHWAYS. 

ARE KILLED IN TRAFFIC ACCIDENTS ON MARYLAND 

90~ OF THE AT FAULT DRIVERS STUDIES INDICATE TH~T p 

OF ALCOHOL IN THEIR SYSTEM IN FATAL CRASHF.S HAD SOME DEGREE 

AT THE TIME OF THE ACCIDENT. 

DEALING WITH THE INTOXICATED DRIVeR TRANSLATES 

INTO CONSIDERABLE FINANCIAL EXPENSES. EVERY PATIENT FLOWN 

INTO THE BALTIMORE SHOCK TR/\UM.:\ CENTER DEVELOPS A MEDICAL 

BILL,OF APPROXIMATELY 1, • $ 2 000 THIS IS ONLY THEIR INTENSIVE 

CARE STAY, FOR ONCE THEY ARE OVER THIS ACUTE PHASE, THEY 

ARE TRANSFERRED BACK TO HOSPITI\LS NEAR THEIR HOME, TO OTHER 

HOSPITALS WITHIN UNIVERSITY CENTERS OR OFF TO REHABILITATION. 

THESE FIGURES, HORRIFYING AS T~EY MUST BE, PERHAPS HIDE 

ANOTHER STATISTIC, ONE THAT IS DIFFICULT TO DELINEATE. 

SEVERAL TIMES WE GET THE DRIVE~ AND THE PASSENGER OF A SMALL 

CAR THA'r HAS UNFORTUNATELY BEBN IN A COLLISION, THE LARGER, 

HEAVIER CAR DRIVEN BY AN INTOX:~CATED DRIVER WHO HAS, BECAUSE 

OF THIS LARGER 'VEHICLE, SUSTAINED RELATIVELY MINIMAL INJURIES. 

TO TRY TO PUT THIS lUTO THE NATIONAL PERSPECTIVE, 

THE IMPACT IS STAGGERING, L~'f HE JUST ENUNCIATE TWO FURTHER 
/...> -,') .. 

ONE IS THAT '1'R:<.tYMJ, WILL COST THE UNITED STATES STATISTICS. 

OF AMERICA 82 BILLION DOLLARS liND IT WILL KILL 115,000 

AMERICANS - R~LATIVELY YOUNG AMERICANS, AND'ALOT OF THEM 

UNNECESSARILY. THE SECPND ONE IS EQUI\L,I,Y HORRH'YI,N9, IN 

THE TEN YEARS OF THE _ VIETNAM WAR, 45,000 US SOLDIERS WERE 
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KILLED BY THE ENEMY; AND 274,000 U.S. CITIZENS DIED I~' 
MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENTS'INVOLVING }l;LCOHOL. 

WHAT CAN BE DONE 'I'O, REMEDY THIS NATIONAL PROBLEM? 

I HAVE, UNFOR.TUNATELY A FEW SUGGESTIONS. ONE IS THE CONTINUATION 

O!=' DEDICA'I'ED HOSPITALS SPECIALI,Y EQUIPPED TO MANAGE THE CRITICALLY 
INJURED PATIENT 

TRAUMA CENTERS. THIS INITIATIVE WAS BEGUN 

SEVERAL YEARS AGO, BUT ONLY Nm; IS BEGINNING TO ACHIEVE THE' 

RECOGNITION IT DESERVES. PROFI-!SSOR FRANCIS MOORE, 'l;'HE 

EMERITUS PROFESSOR OF SURGERY OF HARVARD MEDICAL SCHOOL IN 

HIS SCUDDER ORATION ON TRAUMA 'i'0 THE AMERICAN COVLEGE OF 

SURGEONS IN OCTOBER OF 1981 STilTED "NATIONAL PREPAREDNESS 

OF CAS(JALTY MANAGEMENT DEPENDS ON. ONGOING COLLABORATION 

BETWEEN MILITARY AND CIVILIAN HESEARCH UNITS, A COLLABORATION 

mHAT ALSO INVOLVES THE MANY NEt'>' TRAUMA CENTERS ESTABLISHED 

THROUGHOUT THE COUN'l'RY." IN THIS D"Y AND AGE, THERE IS NO 

NEAREST HOSPITAL WHICH MAY NOT ijAVE THE EQUIPMENT OR THE 

PERS'ONNEL TO MANAGE HIS INJURY IN A COMPETENT MEDICALLY 

ACCEPTED FASHION. THIS INITIA~'IVE SHOULD BE ENCOURAGED. 

AT THE SAME TIME wi SHOULD ENCOURAGE THE NATIONAL HIGHWAY 

TRAFFIC SAFt:TY ASSOCIATION TO ~~RY TO ENCOURAGE, PEOPLE TO 

UTILIZE PASSIVE RESTRAINT SYSTEMS IN CARS. BEFORE I WORKED 

AT THE SHOCK TRAUMA CENTER, I DID NOT USE MY 'S~FETY BELT: 

NOW I DO, SO ALL THE TIME. 

NEED FOR THE PATIENTS ON THE ROADSIDE TO BB TAKEN TO THE 

MOST .oF THE ADVANCES THAT WE HAVE COME TO EXPECT 

fROM MEP;J:CAL TECHNOLOG¥ ,HAVE BBEN THOSE OF PREVENTIQN. 

THE ERADICATION OF SMALL POX AND POLIO FROM THE UNITED 

STA'l'ES HAS, l;3,EENP,Y ,THE USE OF VACCINES AND THE ESTABLISHMENT 

OF CLEAN,. WATER CODES HAVE DRAMJiTICALLY D~CREASEDTH,f; INCIDENCE 

OF INFECTIOUS DISEASES FROM WA')~ER SOURCES. 

WE MUST ALLOW THE P.oI,ICE FORCE,S ON! OUR HIGHWAYS 

AND BYWAYS TO. MAKE,RANDOM STOP~i AND MANDATE ALCOHOL T,ESTING 

TO A,NY SUSprCI<;>US INDIVIDUALS. WE; ,MUST WrTI-!OLD LICENSES 

FROM THOSE FOUND DRIVING WHILE INTOXICATED, AND WE MUST 

L _____ ~~ __ ____=___ __ ~ ... _~_'_~ .. __ ~_ f , !! 
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BRING HOME TO THE INDIVIDUAL FOUND GUILTY, THE,SERIOUSNESS 

OF HIS CRIME. IN MARYLAND; WE OFTEN ~EHABILITATE THESE PROBLEM 

DRIVERS AND IS PARTICULARLY A PROBLEM AMONGjTHE YOUNG THROUGH 

THE TRAUMA UNIT. AS THEY SEE PATIENTS BEING FLmlN IN." 

SURPRISINGLY IT IS THIS ONE PROGRAM THAT IS HAVI~G THE MOST 

EFFECT IN PREVENTING THESE YOU1~G OFFENDERS FROM BECOMING 

HABITUAL OFFENDERS. MY MOTTO AS A TRAUMA SURGEON SHOULD 

BE ~HELP PUT US OUT OF BUSINESS" AND I AM HOPING WITHIN 

THE NEXT FEW YEARS A MAJOR PUSII IN REt-1OVING THE DRUNK 

DRIVER FROM TEE HIGHWAYS WILL DO EXACTLY THAT. 

I THANK YOU FOR YOUR ATTENTION. 

PREPARED STATEMENT OF PROF. LEONARD G. SCHIFRIN 

Mr. Chc1man and Committee Members: 

My statement has two quite separate parta. In the f~r~t half, 1 will 

provtdesome economic d1aen~1oD to the overall problem of alcohol 2buse, 

v:l.th special foculi on the societal ilIpacts of motor vehicle accidents 'IIhe\!:e . , 

IIlcohol is a factor. The second part of lIlY stateaent considers other faC.~tB 

of beverage alcohol production and consumption, notably the~~agnit~de aud 

pattern of alcohol t:aes accruing to various levels of gove~~nt,a!ld the 

responsiveness of the delllllIld for liquor to changes in its price'" includ,ing 

yariations in price caused by additional taxation •. 
\\ 

I. The Societal Co!'ta of Alcohol Abuse 

AIeohol abuse imposes very large societal costs in the forms of 81ctver!le 

health effects and psycho-social 1IIpacta, Whether 1ile8sured in tems 0:£ di,ath, 
", 

}l1ness, or other health criteria, or in terms of the teal. econoni1e l:osse~~ 
\1, • \\ 

tj~6Y generate. Other re!3earchers (Ralph E. Berry; Jr. and James P. B'pland)\. 
:1' 

utimated these looses to have been ill the $40-43 bUlion range in 1!~75. 

My C¥D estimation, following their proeed!Jr~';/~ puts -the losses at \l ml~ch 

higher level, perhaps in the $48-66 billion roge for'197S and between $74 

and 103 billiofl for 1979 (increasing priDulrily due to inflation). 

My estiJutil'~S fur 1975 and 1919, and the major cOlllpon'ents tiiere!(n, are 
, , 

shown in Table 1.' 
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Category 

Lo~t prqc!uction 
(civ.) . 

(mll.) 

Health care'eosts 

Fire losses 

Sc)cial, response 

TOTALS 

" ".,\, 

" 
~'I,\ 1\'7 

TABLE 1 

Estimated Societal Costs Related tnA1coho1 Abuse, 1979 
($ mi'~lious) 

~ 

keviseu 
1975 

Estimate 

$24,174 - $42,610 

411 

12,743 

5,143 

434 

Updated 
1979 

'Estimate 

$37,881 - $66,770 

454 

20,465 

647 

Basis £t;:c Upd&te 

56.7% increase" in total 
employee compensation 

" 

10~5% increase in total 
military payroll 

60.6% incre.aa~. in nation~l 
health c~re expenditures 

31.6% increase in total 
cost of highway ~.ccidents 

49.1% mean increase in total 
employee compensal2ion, hE;alth 
care expenditures, and general _ 
rate 9£ inflation (GNP deflator incJex)' 

2~857 4,477 

1,'40 3,467 

$47,702 - $65,727' .$74,159 - $103,048 

,. 
i/ 

, Q 

"...J • 

56.7~ increase ift total 
employee compensation 

78.7% increase in government 
receipts l~ss', transfer payments. 
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The econoaic losses"of alcchol abuse, by any mea3U~et are large even 

1 imposed by or associated vi~h other when compared vith the economic osses 

Of disorders such as cancer, heart and vascular disease, _jor groups 

reupiratory disease. ~r .etabolic disease. Further, when society' 8 responses 

d the research and other efforts i~ to these di~ease categories a~e coapare , . ~ 

·re far smaller than the ~esponse to the other regard to alcohol abuse ~ 

These latter two points are indicated in Table 2, disease categories. 

Iilstitute of Hedicine of the National Academy from a recent report by the 

of Science. . (Note here that the cost~ of alcohol abuse are the lower 

d Boland rather than my higher ones.) estimates provided by Berry an , 

TABLE 2 

Health Research Dollars in a on ReI ti to Economic Cost 

NIH/ADAMHA Research DollarD 
Lead Institute t'er Thousand 

Disorder Research Effort Economic Cost Dollars of Cos t 

1978 1975 
$ "in millions $ in billions (U.S.) $ 

Alcoholism/Abuse l6a 43c 0.4 

Cancer 627b 19d 3(, 

Heart & Vascular Disease 284b 46d 6 

Respiratory Diseuse 69b 19d 4 

Sources: ~ 

aADAHHA bata Book, 1979 

bBasic Data Relating to the NIH, 1979 

CBerry ~ a1. 

dHealth US, 1978 (P.ringer ~al'J Kay 1977 report) 

SOURCE: Institute of Medl~ine, National Aea emy 0 d f Sciences"Alcohollsm. 

Alcohol Abuse, and Related Problems': iti S f or Research, p. 7. Opportun e 

. , attention focu8es on the role of alcohol abuse Since this Committee 8 " 

I ·would l:l.ke to return to the data in, Table 1. in motor vehicle crash costs, 
, 

The 1979 estimate given there for motor vehicle aecidents where alcohol is 

a factor is $6.8 billion, but even this figure dO~8 not contain all or th~ 

relevant costs. SOllIe hi~ way h deaths and health care cDst:effects of these 
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accidents are included in other impact categories, those that capture all 
, 

excess deaths and all excess health care costs-of alcohol abusers. Further, 

the sO-caIled'''sOc:lal response" tn alcohol-1:'elated problems is calculated 

separately. Amoug this SOcial response are the cost. o~ alcohol preventionl 

education programs (including safe driving), and some portion of the welfare, 

highway safety, and criminal justice systelU. When all of these elements 

are taken into account, the 197.9 costs of alcohol-related vehicular crashes 

(still me~sured cODservatively.) run to $8.6 billion. The components of that 

total are prOvided below in Table 3. 

TABLE 3 

Alcohol-Related Motor Vehicle Accident Costs, 1979 

Category of Impact 

Fatalities 
Personal injury 
Property dalJlage 
Heal.th care costs 
AlcohOl programs related to driving 
Welfare adlldnistration; highway 

tlilfety; crWnal justice 
(1lrOportionate share) 

TOTAL 

·PreSI!nt value of loat future prodUction 

Cost ($b.) 

$4.2 • 
1.2 • 

.3 
2.4 

.133 

.357 

$8.6 

aervice), privllte COurt and legal costs J inaurance administration, 

accident investigation, or vehicular accidents involving pedestrians in 

I eJDphas:lze that th~se estimates are conservative. First, I h~e not 

included losses in non-market'production (household work and community 

whoa high Bl'~d Alcohol Concentrations (BACs) wer~ observed, prt.arily due 

to either lack of adequate data or for cona1atencyW1:th other studies in 
this general arel'. 

.. 

MOre importantly, those accidents whe~~ alcohol i. a factor are d~fined 
1n my estimate- an those in which alcohol is present in the driver at a BAC 

leVel ,of .10% or higher.' Yet 2iome, and perhaps considerable dr1v~r ll1palr

Ilent lIIay occur at lower BAC levE!1s than .10%; a number of authorities believe 

that 8~e lapairment,per~aps serious, occurs-at aBAC l,vel half as sreat, 
.05%. 

I. 
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Viewing the data .in Table 4 on vehicular aceident8 \~e:r.e alcohol was 

• factor, and comparing the prop~r~ion of all accidents in which SAC levels 

of .OS% or higher were p~e8ent with the proportion in which BAC levels of 

.10% or higher were present, some interesting observations emerge. 

\, 
TABLE 4 

. i.~tes Net Percentage of Crashes 
GUributiC to Alcohol Abuse, By Type of Crash 

I Type of Crash 

\Fatality 

Personal Injury 

'Minor/Koderat~ 

• Severe/Critical 

Property Damage Only 

Source: Berry/Boland 

Estimated Net percent~:f crR8~ 
Due to Alcohol AbuB~~~or Abo!!) 

BAC>' .05% BAC}- .10% 1 
4l.S 32.S 

8.5 

7.S 

3 .• 0 

F1rst~ by whichever definition of alcohol impairment we employ, t 

data show chat the more serious the accident type. the ao is 

a factor. Iuother words. !!h~i!g!!.....hb!!;l~o~o~d~~~~...::~::!!....!~~~=::...;=;&;:.:;..,;.:;.;;,-

tionately to acctdent severity. 

Second. most of the accidents where an alcohol level of at least .05% 

1s pres~nt also remain in our data when the impairment level is raised to 

.;l0%. Thus these ~ata also support the conclusion that high BAC level~ 
, /I _. ,. , 

contribute_disproportionately to accident freq~ency. 
"--.'. . ., 

Since accidents are Influ~nced by factors other than'alcohol consumption. 

such 8S road conditions. weather conditions) traffic density, time of day/ 

nigbt, etc., alcohol consumption cannot be identified as the 80le cause of 
. .:,< Ii 

any given accident. Yet, whe~ these otlier factors ean be held constant. 

alcohol intake. 80metimes at .05% BAC levels, but clear~y At .10% BAC.levels, 

diat;,inct1y uktis, a substantial difference. in the vehicular acc:l.dent data. 

II. SOlIe EconOllic Facets of Beveragl!' Alcohol ·Produc:tiol'l and Cooswaption 

TUrning DOW to another economic perspective on alcoholic beverages, I 
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would like to discuss briefly sOllIe aspects of their production 8.nd consumption. 

These aspects include the taxation of ,beverage alcohol. and sOllIe ch4rac: ... 

teristic8 of' the demand for this gr9up of products. 

Beverage Alcohol Taxation. 

. Excise taxes, license fees. and other taxes and chargee on beverage 

alcohol together .camprise one of the largest components of revenue to the 

various levels of gove~ent. In 19aO, the Fe~e~a1 government collected 

somewhat more than $5.1 billion in alcohol taxes. and for all levels of . ~ - . \. ~, 

government tbe revenues totaledapproltimately $12 billion. The greatest 

propo~tion (about two-thirds) of this reven~e came from liquor, 30 percent 

from baer. and the remainder from wine. 

Total public revenUES have increased ~teadily since repeal, espeCially 

for state.and. local governmenta. Stat~ and local taxes usually are related 

to the price of beverage alcohol, while the Federal tax is based on-volume. 

If t~ rates are Qot changed. inflation of liquor prices automatically 

bringsr.evenue increases to governments that levy' Illcohol sales or excise 

taxes, but not to t~o8e that levy volUJl\e taxes. luJ;'ther •. the. states and 

loealitieshave generally raised alcohol tax rates. while the 1ederal volume 

tax.has remained cons_tant since 1951. Thus, .'state and. local revenues from 

alcohol ~avegrown because of three factors: greater consumption, high~r 

tax rates, and higher pr:f.ces; FO!deral revenues have grown, at least since", 

1951, only as consumption hfJ9 grown. 

It is clear tnat total alcohol taxes accruing to all levels of govern-

.ent fall far short of the total economic costs of alcoholism and alcohol , 
.;4 

abuse that have been presented earlier in this report. In effect, society 

i. compensated in the form of tax revenuea to th2 extent of less than 17 

cents, and perhaps as little as 12 ~ents, for each dollar of alcohol-related 

eosts it bears. 

It is probably true, though, that specific taxes levied on many lndustriee 

provide public revenues only afrectio~ a8 'large as the societal coats thair 

products impose •. The beverage alcohol industries may even compensate society 

to a relatively greate~ extent than do other industries. But two qualifi-
,~ 

cations put the tax-social cost.relationship of the alcohol t~~~le8 into 
~\, 
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perspective. First, the fact that a number of other industries say pay 

smaller relative tax compensations to society could imply that all of them 

lIight warran~ higber tax burdens. Second, tax revenues should be conpared 

to net social costs, that is, costs ~nus societal benefits. When the 

benefits of the output of such industries aa industrial toole, motor venicles, 

and coal mining are considered, they appear ttl offset in large part the 

8izeable mortality, morbidity. and other costs deriving from the production 

or use of their products. In moat such cases, weassum~ that, on bAlance, 

there exist net social benefits -- that total" benefits outweigh total costs. 

For aleoh.,l, firearms, and tobacco, the balance:. '. such that there probably 

are net 80cial costs~ i.E., that total benefits fro. these products fall 

considerably short of the total costs they impose on society. This analysis 

8uggests that in relation to thes~ net social costs, alcohol based tax 

revenues are indeed very modest. 

The $5.J billion coming from th'! beverage-alcohol industries to the 

g~neral fund of the Federal government further dwarfs the Federal research 

outlay on alcoholism described earlier. and also looms many times high~r 

tlum the budgetary cOlllllitment to the National Institute on Alcoholism and 

Alcohol Abuse. Mos't &tate alcohol-tax revenues abo go into their general 

funds. Only 20 etate& earmark any part of their funds for alcoholism trea.t

ment or research programs, and most of these designate tinly a small portion. 

Data on these 20 states are presented below in Table 5. 

- " State 

Alabama 

D.C. 

Indiana 

Miehigan 

TABLE 5 

States with Taxes Earmarked for l..1coholism 

Control 

Yes 

No' 

No 

Yes' 

Taxes Earmarked 

10 percent tax on spirits and wine 
sold by state stores--l/2 to Mental 
Health Fund. 

6 percent of licerts'e" fees (except Class F. -
retail druggist) ,appropriated for treatment 
and rehabilitation of alcoholics.' 

Additional fee of $30 on all retail permits 
to Commission on Alcoholism. 

I percent tax on 1 iquo'r sold for off-premiSe 
consumption for the Alcoholism Fund. 
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TASLE S (continued) 
State 

North Carolina Yes 

Oregon Yes 

~outh Dakota No 

" Tennessee No 

Utah Yes 

Washington Yes 

r 

Wisconsin No 

1# ' 
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Taxes Earmarked 

2 cent and' 5 cent per bottle tax on Beer 
and Naturally Fe7mented Wine to respective 
county commissioners for alcoholism 
rehabilitation. County Dispensaries' 

, Profits--County Boards may expend 7 per
cent for alcohol education or rehabili-
tation. 

33 1/3 percent of Privilege Tax Revenue 
to be distributed to the Mental Health, 
Alcoholism, and Drug Services Account. 

5 cent per gallon on distilled spirits 
and 30 cent per barrel on High Point 
Beer to DiviSion of Alcoh,olism. 

2 percent of sums designated' for munici
palities and counties to Department of 
Mental Health' to assis I: in carrying out 
provisions of the comprehenstve'Alcohol 
and Drug Treatment Act of 1973. 

50 cent of each State Purchaser Permit 
Fee to State Board of Alco~olis~. 

(1) 10 and 15 percent state sale~ taxes 
28 percent to cities, 7 percent to ' 
count!es--2 percent of this distri
bution to be spen~ in alcoholism 
programs. 

(2) Profits of store's--40 percent to 
Cities, 10 percent to counties; 2 
percent of this to alcoholism 
programs. ' 

(3) Class A-F License Fees--20 percent 
to State Department of Social and 
Health Services. 

(4) Fi rs t $1 million 0 f Cl~ss "H" license 
fees, penalties and forfeitures to 
Washington-State University and Uni
versity of Ila,!hington for medical 
and biological r~search. 

Distilled Spirits and Wine taxes--4 
percent of these to the administratiort' 
and enforcement of the beverage tax laws 
and for the cost of administering alcohol 
studies. 

tv 

Source: Dietilled Spirite Council of the U.S., 1976 Public Revenues from 
A1cohol~e Beverases, Part IV l~. 

\ 

Beverage alcohol produ,c:tion 18 a $,50 billion industry in the United 

States, and the absolute volUlle of tax revenues it generates ill large. Yet, 

88-986 0-82--9 

L-______________________ --lL---_~ __ __"_~ ________________ ~_~_~,~~ ___ _ 
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for the most part. little of this revenue is redirected back toward preventing 

or resolving the societal impacts of alcohol abuee. One implication of thi" 

fact is that, from the governmental point of view, beverage alcohol is a 

good source of general revenues that governments are reluctant to earmark 

for specific use. 

Raising Beverage Alcohol TaxeR: The Price Elasticity of Demand for'Liquor 

What then of the wisdom of using additional taxes to attack the problems 

of alcohol abusef If, on the one hand, demand is sensitive to price increases, 

additional taxesnnght discourage use sufficiently to reduce the associated 

problems by a significant amount. On tHe other hand, if higher prices do not 

discourage consumption, then additional taxes may produce new revenues that 

~ght be earmarked for alcohol abuse programs, without causing any sizeable 

production and emplo:vment effects on the industry. What does the available 

evidence tell about these two very different possibilities? 

Tentative estimates of the price elasticity of demand for liquor pla~e 

it in the range of 0.2 to O.S (i.e., a 1 percent increase in 1iqu~r prices 

i. estimated to reduce 9uantity' demanded by 0.2 percent to O.S percent, a 

less than proportionate response). Accordingly, such price inelasticity 

suggests that additional taxes on liquor would have only a modest effect on 

consumption, particularly if all beverage alcohol were to incur the additional 

tax. The policy implications deriving from this observation relate to the 

two hypotheses poeed above: (1) higher taxes !~r the specific purpose of 

curbing consumption are not likely to be successful unless they arc very 

high; but (2) higher taxes to generate revenues that coul.d be directed 

considerable additional funds with little impact on the total quantity of 

alcohol produced. and consumed in the U.S., ~~ on employme~t and other 

economic dimensi~ns of the beverage alcohol industries. Admittedly, further 

research on t~1s particular feature of the demand for beverage a1cohal is 

needed before decisions of this sort should be made, but, in =y opinion, 

the very large negative social effects of alcohol abuse, in veh:f.cular 

accidents and in other forms, warrant serious consideration of alcohol"sur-

taxes to provide even mode8t funds to attack these compelling problems. 
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Senator BOSCHWITZ. We will now adjourn the hearing. Thank you 
very much. 

[Whereupon, at 1:50 p~m., the hearing was recessed subject to 
the call of the Chair.J ' 
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A P PEN D I X 

ADDITiONAL STATEMENTS FOR THE RECORD 

STATEMENT 

of the 

AMERICAN MEDICAL ASSOCIATION 

The American Medical Association is very concerned about the pub~ic 
health aspects of drunk driving. The following data and observations are 

provided to the Committee with the hope that wider recognition of the 

i'njury and destruction caused by drunk d'rivers will ,generate 'effective 
'.,' .:;.. f 

programs to ameliorate the problem. 

Acute traumatic injuries are the leading cause of death of persons in 

the United 'States who are 1 to 44 years old. According to th~,Inst:ltute 
of Medicine, such injuries are second in economic cost among ail 

illnesses; in terms of time lost from ,work' or schoo1~' visits to 

phYs1cian~ and hospitals, and years of life lost to society. few if any 

conditions have the overall impact of injuries. 
" 

MOtor vehicle crashes are responsible for aoout' half of all deaths 

due to injuries: in 1979; about 51;900 persons in the U.S. di~d in such 
, "I 

catastrophes. Alcohol is a very significant factor in vehicle-related 

crashes and deaths. Of drivers who are fatally injured in single-vehicle 

crashes, 65% have bio~d alcohol con
0
centrations of .10% (100 mgIIO~l) cor 

above. If a person dieG in an early morning crash; the chances are 3 in 

5 that he or she was intoxicated. 
About 6% of all 'dii,vers involved in 

- \.!' 

crashes are intoxicated by legal standards. Sut-veysof representative 

areas in ,this cQdntry sh~wed 'that depending on the', time ~f day; 2 ,to 10% 
f?\, 

of all drivers are intoxicated. 

:.':)' 
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The consensus among experts is that the ability to drive a car is 

definitely impaired at blood alcohol concentrations (BACs) of .05% and 

above. A reiated problem is th~t while self confidence increases with 

alcohol use. actual ability decreases. Concentrations of .08% or above 

are not compatible with the safe operation of a vehicle,; the higher the 

level of alcohol in the blood. the greater is the likelihood of being 

responsible for ~ crash. 

AMA believes that a blood alcohol concentration of 100 mg/lOO ml 

should be set by state laws as constituting prima facie evidence of 

intoxication. The effect of alcohol on anyone individual depends on 

physiological factors such as one's weight; whether one has eaten 

recently; tolerance to alcohol; overall health status and use of 

medications. and on psychological factors such as fatigue and personality 

makeup. Blodd Rlcohol levels that impair t~9n-age drivers may be lower 

than for adu} .. ts. and the effects of marijuana when combined with alcohol 

are of ,iJarticular concern at present. 

Safety programs and standards regarding alcohol' as they relate to 

traffic problems have traditionally been the province of the states;, and 

AMA believes such issues should continue to be addressed at the state 

level. The federal government; however; might well consider the' 

development of model guidelines for consideration by to the states. 

Studies undertaken recently by New York State may be particularly usef~l. 

Fortunately. the average; non-intoxicated driver can take some 

actions to prevent injury in the event of a crash. One of the best 

preventive measures is the use of the,lapbelt-shoulder harness; which is 

about 45% effective in preventing serious injury. Larger~ heavier 

vehicles offer more protection in a crash than lighte~ ones; and the 

ser~ous injury rates are only half as high on divided highways as on 

two-lane roads with two-way traffic. Reducing speed limits to 55 mph had 

a salutary effect in reducing" deaths from crashes; even in the face of 

grea~er exposure ~o crashes; that is. more vehicle miles traveled. 

Passive preventive measures. however; in which the individual need 
. , 

carry out no specific act to reap the benefits; are the ideal. Examples 
,., 

of safe. effective, passive preventives in other areas 9f public health 

I ' 
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includ'e the chlorination "of water; the pasteurization of milk. and the 

use of high penetration resistant (H~) Windshields. If some of th~ 

factors that contribut~ to injuries could be changed; such as the 

relatively hard internal surfaces of motor vehicles and their relatively 

weak passenger enclosures. injuries might more ~ffectively be prevented. 

Because the uSfl'of alcohol is'so widespread In o~r society~ and human 

character is so difficult to modify; neutralizing or overcoming the 

"alcohol factor" in vehicle-related ~njuries; and in ;injuries of ali 

kinds. will be extremely difficult. 

*** 

Attachec:l is a bi~1iography of sources of additional information for 

possible use by the Subcommittee. 

1. Accident Facts. Chicago~ National Safety Council; 1980. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

Rice DP~ Feldman JJ; and White KL: The current burden of illness in 
the United Stat~s.,Paper )presented at Institute of Medicine~ 
National Academy of Sciences; Washington; D.C. 

Doege; TC: An injury is no accident. 
(March 2); 1978. 

ii, 
New Engl J. Med 298:509-510 

Hartunian NS; Smart CN, ;and Thompson MS: Inciden~e and economic costs 
of cancer; motor vehic,le injuries~ coronary hear,t disease and' stroke 
- a comparative analysis •. Amer J Public Health 70: 1249-1260 (Dec); 
1980. 

5. Perrine MW: Alcohol involvement in highway crashes. Clinics in 
Plastic ,Surgery, 2:11,-34 (Jan), 1975. 

6. Wolfe .AC: 1973 'U~ S. National roadside breathtesting $urvey. Hit Lab 
Reports 4:1-16 (July); 1974. 

7. Alcohol and the Impaired Driver. AMA; Ch~cago; 1968. 

8. Jones JR and Doege TC: 
" 9). 1981. Seat belts and ~~fety. JAMA 246:1660 (Oct 

9. Doege TC and LeVYiPS:,Cbanges in fatal and nonfatal crash rates on a 
toll highway. Amer J Epidem:1ol 103;236-241; 1976. 

10. Robertson LS: Motor vehicle injuries. Public Health Re~iews 6:25~35 
(June); 1977. 

11. Dedera S: Drinkinga~ D~iving. AMA~ Chicago;~1977. 

12. DeLuca JR: 
Congr~~s. 
1981~ 

Alcohol and Health. 4th Special Report to the" U,'S, 
Depanmen~. of Health and HumanS~rvices. ~1jlshington. DC; 

" . 
13. Anonymous': Drinking driving laws: what works'? ' Washington. DC 

In~urance C Institute for Highway Safety; 1981. 
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.i 1 ::V national citizen.s for 

l~ sare drivers 
P.O. BOX 42018 / WASHINGTON, D.C. 20015 / PHONE, 301/469-6588 

•• 1 1\ 

TESTIMONY fOR U.S, SENATE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE ON COURTS 
November 6, 1981 

Citizens for Safe Drivers(CSD) is a national non-profit public 

interest organization dedicated to reducing deaths and injuries on our 

highways by working on the problems of the drunk driver and other 

chronic offenders. Our members across the country include concerned 

citizens, highway safety experts, law enforcement officials, health 

professionals, and famil ies and friends of highway crash victims .•• 

both. as individual members and as affiliate groups. 

We welcome this opportunity to comment on the courts in relation 

to problem drivers. particularly the drun~; driver. 

We continually receive phone calls and letters from the families 

of highway crash victims. They are angry because the court system in its 

efforts to protect the rights of the problem driver ignores the rights 

of the families of victims. They .are outraged because the courts consider 

the livelihood of the defendant who killed their loved one more important 

than the life of hhe victim. They are frustrated because most of .the 

courts give famities little or no information about the criminal court 

'hearing, often misinforming them about theil;' .rights under a system which 

seeks to work primarily for the defendant. They are shattered because 

the courts demeans the victims and their families in the process. 

Their experience with th.e ii:ourts. adds a tratimatic burden to their 

grief. 

Courts and the juries are infected by the "there but for the 

gra6'e ,..of God .gO I" syndrome which. causes them to 9verempat;hir,e with 
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the defendants. 13ut few j.'l1dges or juries or prose'cutors consider 

themselves as potential highway' crash victims. Yet the I.ational Safety 

Council predicts that one out of twc. Americans' in their lifetime will 

be involved in a serious' highway crasp. reSUlting in either death or 

a disabling injury. 

We'recall one mother of it vic;tim·lamenting that IItheynever 

once called David. by his name •.. always it was 'that kid' or 'the 

deceased. ,tI' To the court :lle; was a non-person •.. 3. nobody." 

We have found that we can be most helpful to the families of victims 

by redirecting their grief and anger .into positive social action .•• to 

save other lives. 

The victim's family is usually concerned first about soine specifi.c 

aspect in the crash which killed their loved 'one. It may be the failure 

to give a BAC(blood alcohol content) test or its inedmissa,biHty as 

evidence; the complexity of the laws and its strong tendency to protect 

the defendant; or the weaknessess of the 'vehicular homoCide laws which 

make it almost .impossible to convict the kiner; or the wrongful death 

laws which consider the value of our children's lives as nothing; the 

insensitiVity of the system which allows the drunk driver to get back 

in a car and continue to drive again, often years before any decision 

is made in his case. !n state after state, the entire system of drLmk 

driving lawsiies the.hands of driver licensing officials~ polite. and 

the courts. Even where strong laws do exist they often are not enforced 

by the police or used by th~ courts. 

As a result of citizens public information and media' campaigns " 
r 

some states have begun to take a new look at their drunk drj.ving laws' 

and to strengthen them. Maine now :has mandatory penal ties fo:r' drunk 

driving~ Its courts should be watched to see how the! are reacting • 

Will the courts iIi Maine (inere'ly 11b~g'radelthe charges 'of alcohol to 
if . 

avoid the mandatory penalties? Or will they really use the law? . 

Over the past' several year$,a few other 'states such as New York, 

Maryland, and Illinois have made some ·progress. In most states the 

first problem that must be tackled is "prpba,tion before judgment" 
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. sometimes called "court jurisdict;ion" or given some other naJlle. 

This system wipes the alcohol charge off the record if the driver 

takes an alcohol or driver safety course and has a clear record for 

the duration of his 3 to 6 months probation. Each time the offender 

comes before the court for repeat offenses, he is treated as a first 

offender, sometimes in several counties or municipalities at the saJlle 

time. 

We fee!.. strongly that the key to dealing with the problem of drunk 

drivers and chronic offenders, who are overrepresented in serious 

crashes, is an accurate, 'complete, and timely driver records system 

wi thin each states with full interchange of records between the states 

and complete use of the National Driver Register to prevent drivers 

already suspended or revoked in one state from rushing to another state 

to obtain a license. 

Unless the court knows whether the driver is a one-time offender, 

a near-problem driver, or a true problem driver, it cannot appropriately 

propose treatment or sentencing. 

Although the courts are supposed. to consider the full driver record 

~efore sentencing,many judges fail to check them. Prosecutors also need 

to consider this valuable information in determining how to handle the 

charges. 

In many cases the dr~¥er record ... for all intents and purposes .•• 

is falsified when charge:s are downgraded or plea bargained out of alcohol 
, 

to reckless driv~ng or even to non-moving violations. In IOWIl, some 

courts have been report.ed to reduce serious charges to phony loud muffler 

violations. 

Even where there is an official conviction for an alcohol offense 

or other moving vio.1atioJi, some courts fail or delay sending this 

information back to the central state file and it is lost to the record 

~ystem. 

In our highly mobile society many driving violations occur in 

states other than the state of residence. Some states, like Connecticut, 

do not forward the record,of the conviction back to the home state. In 
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other states like Colorado, when a report on a Colorado driver is received 

from another state it is filed; •• in the wastebasket. Or if a state does 

record the Violation, it enters a reduced number of points. The driver 

himself often obtains multl'pl~ ll'censes t d' 
" . 0 sprea POlnts among a number 

of states to avoid suspension. When the driver moves to a new state, he 

is born again with a clean record. And if the judges want to check the 

record, there is none to be found. 

. In almost every state the driver records system needs to be upgraded. 

In some states, these records are stacked'in boxes, inacessible and 

unavailable if requested by the courts. Each court needs a computer 

terminal to quickly determine the driver record and .to quickly relay back 

its own decisions. 

The states need uniform ticketing systems so they can account 

for every ticket and the disposition of the case can be recorded. 

Continuous research needs to be conducted to determine whether the courts 

/ are giving consistent and full sentences based on the complete facts or 

merely continuing "slap-oll-the-wrist justice." 

Families of victims want stronger laws and want them to be 

effective. We want the chances that a drinking driver will be 

arrested to be great enoug}l so that it will act as a deterrent to driving 

while drunk. We ,also wan,t the records to be accurate, complel:e, and 

timely so that judges can give fair sentences and so that the alcohol 

treatment professionals can provide suitable rehabilitation. We want 

the courts to give penalties that are consistent and appropriate to 

the offense • 

Deterring drinking and driving will not only redllce the number of 

victims but will also reduce the likelihood of the drinking driver 

himself being killed or injured. 

Drunk driving is part and llarcel of the total problem driver i~sue 

and~river records are a significant key to the solution. We believe 

that :the failure of safety profes\sionals and citizens alike to recognize 

this fact is pllrtly responsible for the past inability to lessen'the 

problem of the drunk driver. 
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Violations and accidents by the unidentified drunk driver ••• the 

driver whose blood alcohol content has not been tested. or whose charges 

have been downgraded. or whose violation has resulted from drinking at 

a lower'than legal limit ••• should not be overlooked or minimized. 

The role of driver license suspensions and revocations as a safety ... 

tool must be given more emphasis as a penalty by the courts. 

The California Hagen Report indicates that .evenin hard core 

multiple offending drunk driving cases. license suspensions and revocations 

are by far the most effective penalty ••• more so than jail, fines. Or·l 

treatment. and the effects on reducing crashes last up to 4 years. 

In this era of budget austerity, it is important to find new ways to 

pay for the costs of reducing alcohol related crashes. 

We recommend that part of the needed funds for suggested safety 

programs be obtained from an alcohol excise tax placed in a Traffic 

Safety Trust, Fund similar to the Highway Trust Fund obtained from 

gasoline taxes. . 

Funds from this source should be allocated to the states on a 

formula based on adherence to safety program which can help alleviate 

the drunk driver and other chronic offender problems. Among these 

problems are unform ticketing; accurate.,col~lete. and timely driver 

records systems both wi thin states and for interstate exchange of :records. 

and for records coordination with the NOR system; uniform and stronger 

drunk driving laws; consistent enforcement and consistent penalties 

commensurate with the violation; training of judges for alcohol and 

injury cases; use of terminals by the courts for immediate access to 

driver records before sentencing; driver history profiles; research 

on disposition of cases and resulting driver crashes and violations; 

membership and conformity with ~tate driver licensing compacts; alcohol 

counseling. treatment and driver improvement programs; and other related 

safety programs. 
The federal excise 'tax on alcohol' has not been increased in many 

years. If i~creased in the same proportion to the price of alcohol when 

the tax was last adjusted. the available funds would be a major source 

for safety projects. 
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The overall court system has begun to consider the victims and to 

use victim impact statements in their sentencing process but the traffic 

court. regardless of the severity of the violation and its resulting 

deaths or maimings.still ha l·ttl s ~e concern for the victim and the family 

of the victim. 

We commend thO . 
1S comm1ttee for looking into this problem at this 

time because the 53,000 highway deaths· 9 
1n I 80 are expected to reach 

70,000 annually by 1990. 

What other,major epidemic would get such short shrift by the 

segment of authority that could do the most to correct 
the problem.? 

The court affects most every phase 
of the process. Yet the court's attitude 

and often ina . 
ppropr1ate sentencing discourages the police Who see their 

efforts wasted. It devastates the families of highway 
crash Victims, invites 

the irresponsible driver to continu,e his unlawful 
and dangerous behavior , 

and indicates to our youth that soc~ety 
~ does not care. The courts must 

act responsibly. 
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